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Advanced Leadership

INNOVATION

The wwelfth edition of Advanced Accounting raises the standard in accounting education.
Providing the most innovative, up-to-date, and comprehensive coverage of advanced financial
accounting topics on the market today, this edition incorporates pedagogically strong elements
throughout. The end result is a valuable and useful resource for both the present and the future.
Fischer/Taylor/Cheng’s Advanced Accounting offers the learner the ability to understand, and
then to apply, new knowledge like no other advanced accounting text available. Leading the
way are these unique, innovative, and helpful features:

¢ Understanding and applying the new Financial Accounting Standards Board
codification terms:

¢ Coverage of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

# References throughout have been updated to reflect codification terms.

¢ All subsidiary accounts are adjusted to full fair value whenever control is achieved. The
noncontrolling interest is adjusted to fair value.

¢ Instead of allocating the available amount to fixed assets in a bargain purchase, all
accounts are recorded at full fair value and the bargain results in a gain.

# Changes in the parent’s ownership interest are treated as equity transactions with no
impact on income.

¢ Changes in the subsidiary’s equity are treated as equity transactions with no impact on
income.

¢ Excelling with ease—easy-to-follow Excel® tutorials and convenient electronic working
papers available on the text’s Web site (www.cengagebrain.com):

¢ This unique tutorial teaches a step-by-step process for completing consolidations
worksheets in an Excel-based environment. The tutorial makes it possible to master
consolidations worksheets more quickly.

¢ The tutorial guides the student through the creation of Excel worksheets. Each chapter of
the tutorial adds the consolidations processes to parallel those presented in Chapters 1-6
of the text.

¢ The electronic working papers in Excel format provide students with the basic worksheet
structure for selected assignments throughout the text. These assignments are identified in
the text by the icon shown here.

¢ Comprehending through consistency—common coding for the worksheets:

¢ All consolidations worksheets use a common coding for the eliminations and
adjustments. A complete listing of the codes is presented on the inside of the front cover.
Students are now able to quickly recall worksheet adjustments as they move from one
chapter to the next.

¢ Within the chapter narrative, the worksheet eliminations and adjustments are shown in
journal entry form and are referenced using the same coding. This provides consistent
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reinforcement of the consolidations process and aids students in their understanding of
the worksheet procedures. An example follows:

(CY1)  Eliminate currentyear equity income:
Subsidiary Income. . ... 60,000
Investmentin Company S. . ... ... 60,000

(EL) Eliminate 80% of subsidiary equity against investment in
subsidiary account:
Common Stock ($10 par}—Company S.................. 80,000
Retained Earnings, January 1, 2011—Company S ......... 56,000
Investmentin Company S.......... ... o 136,000

(1S) Eliminate intercompany merchandise sales:
Sales ... 100,000
Costof Goods Sold ... ..o 100,000

¢ The same codes are continued in the Excel tutorial and the worksheet solutions.
¢ Taming a tough topic—coverage of derivatives and related accounting issues in a module:

* A comprehensive module deals with derivative instruments and related accounting issues.
This module, located just before Chapter 10, sets forth the basic characteristics of derivative
financial instruments and explains the features of common types of derivatives. Accounting
for derivatives held as an investment and as a part of a hedging strategy is discussed. Alchough
covering the derivatives module prior to Chapter 10 is recommended, Chapter 10 can be
taught without coverage of the derivatives module.

# Fair value and cash flow hedges are clearly defined, and the special accounting given such
hedges is set forth in a clear and concise manner. Options, futures, and interest rate swaps
are used to demonstrate accounting for fair value hedges and cash flow hedges.

¢ New explanations, examples, and end-of-chapter problems have been added to help
simplify this complex topic.

¢ The more complex issues that are associated with the use of forward contracts are introduced
in the module and then fully addressed in Chapter 10. Thus, Chapter 10’s discussion of
hedging foreign currency transactions is more streamlined and less cumbersome.

* Most of the chapter’s discussion of hedging foreign currency transactions involves the use
of forward contracts. The focus is on the use of such contracts to hedge foreign currency
transactions, commitments, and forecasted transactions.

¢ Accounting for change—coverage of government reporting model and estate tax planning:

¢ Comprehensive coverage of governmental standards through GASB Statement No. 71,
including the historic changes to the reporting model.

¢ Government and not-for-profit chapters include material for CPA Exam preparation.

® Chapters are designed for use in advanced accounting courses or in standalone
governmental and not-for-profit courses.

1

OBJECTIVE

¢ Measuring student mastery—Learning Objectives:

# Each chapter begins with a list of measurable learning objectives, which are repeated in

Explain why transactions the margin near the related coverage.

between members of a ¢ The exercises and problems at the end of the chapter indicate the specific learning
consolidated firm should objectives that they reinforce. This helpful indicator, along with the assignment titles,
not be reflected in the provides a quick reference for both student and instructor.

consolidated financial

statements. ¢ Staying up to date—JASB Perspectives:

¢ Within relevant chapters, a new box feature provides information and commentary
regarding how standards differ between U.S. GAAP and IFRS.

® This feature provides students with a clear understanding as to how IASB proposals may
differ and what questions to consider moving forward with their studies.

Copyright 2016 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



PREFACE

|ASB PERSPECTIVES

* |FRS considers potential voting rights if they are currently exercisable, in measuring
control, while GAAP does not.

* [FRS also allows consolidation when there is “de facto” control. This is a situation in
which there is only one large stockholder that owns less than 50% of the shares, but
IASB other share holdings are disbursed and the owners do not generally exercise their voting
standards rights. This is similar to the SEC position indicated above.

¢ Communicating the core content—Reflection:

¢ Concluding every main section is a reflection on the core information contained in that
section.

® These reflections provide students with a clear picture of the key points they should grasp
and give them a helpful tool for quick review.

REFLECTTION

* The combining of the statements of a parent and its subsidiaries into consolidated
statements is required when parent ownership exceeds 50% of the controlled firm's
shares.

* Consolidation is required for any company that is controlled, even in cases where less
than 51% of the company’s shares is owned by the parent.

¢ Thinking it through—Understanding the Issues:

# These questions at the end of the chapter emphasize and reinforce the core issues of the
chapter.

UNDERSTANDING THE ISSUES

1. A parent company paid $500,000 for a 100% interest in a subsidiary. At the end of
the first year, the subsidiary reported net income of $40,000 and paid $5,000 in divi-
dends. The price paid reflected understated equipment of $70,000, which will be
amortized over 10 years. What would be the subsidiary income reported on the
parent’s unconsolidated income statement, and what would the parent’s investment
balance be at the end of the first year under each of these methods?

a. The simple equity method
b. The sophisticated equity method
¢. The cost method

2. What is meant by date alignment? Does it exist on the consolidated worksheet under
the following methods, and if not, how is it created prior to elimination of the invest-
ment account under each of these methods?

a. The simple equity method
b. The sophisticated equity method
¢. The cost method
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® They encourage students to think in greater depth about the topics and expand their
reasoning skills. Discussion skills are also developed through use of the questions as
springboards for class interaction.

THEORY BLENDED WITH APPLICATION

With a strong tradition of combining sound theoretical foundations with a hands-on, learn-by-
example approach, the twelfth edition continues its prominent leadership position in advanced
accounting classrooms across the country. The authors build upon Advanced Accounting's clear
writing style, comprehensive coverage, and focus on conceptual understanding,

Realizing that students reap the greatest benefits when they can visualize the application of
theories, Advanced Accounting closely links theory and practice by providing examples through
relevant exhibits and tables that are common to real-world accounting. When students can visu-
alize the concept being discussed and apply it directly to an example, their understanding
greatly improves. This focus on conceptual understanding makes even the most complex topics
approachable.

Assignments are clearly defined. End-of-chapter questions are used to reinforce theory, and
exercises are short, focused applications of specific topics in the chapter. These exercises are very
helpful when students use them as preparation for possible class presentations. The book’s prob-
lems, which are designed to be more comprehensive than the exercises, often combine topics
and are designed to work well as after-class assignments. For group projects, the cases found in
the business combinations chapters provide an innovative way to blend theoretical and numeri-
cal analysis.

ENHANCED COVERAGE

Advanced Accounting reflects changes in accounting procedures and standards while improving
on those features that aid in student comprehension.

¢ Chapter 1
¢ New material on Goodwill including ability of non-public companies to amortize
goodwill and new impairment procedures for goodwill.
* Expanded coverage of contingent consideration in the purchase of a business.

¢ Chapter 2
¢ New, simplified procedure for valuation schedule that covers all potential situations.
¢ Introduction of Variable Interest Entities (VIE) as another application of consolidation
procedures.
¢ Expanded and updated coverage of reverse acquisitions.

¢ Chapter 3

¢ New information on disclosure for an intraperiod purchase.

¢ Chapter 4
¢ Updated end-of-chapter material.

¢ Chapter 5
¢ Updated end-of-chapter material.

¢ Chapter 6
¢ Improved coverage of amortizations of excess cost as they impact cash flow statement.
Section on nonconsolidated investments has been moved to an appendix.
Updated consolidated statement of cash flows example.
Revised coverage of consolidated earnings per share.
Revised coverage of taxation of consolidated companies including foreign subsidiaries.

L R R R 2
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¢ Chapter 7
¢ Updated coverage on sale of parent interest in a subsidiary.

¢ Chapter 8
¢ Revised discussion of subsidiary stock dividends.
¢ New section called “Parent Company Shares Purchased by Subsidiary.”
# Section on stick swap has been removed.
¢ The reciprocal method of consolidating ownership of parent shares by the subsidiary has
been eliminated.

¢ Special Appendix 1: Accounting for Influential Investments
# Revised content to reflect current FASB Codification updates.
# Updated section called “Fair Value Option.”
¢ Updated end-of-appendix material.

¢ Special Appendix 2: Variable Interest Entities
¢ Defining a VIE.
¢ Application of the consolidations model to a VIE.

¢ Chapter 9
¢ Updated discussion of the scale of international activity and how it relates to foreign
currency transactions, foreign currency translation, and international standard setting.
¢ Added coverage of the current positions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB), the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) regarding convergence to IFRS.

¢ Chapter 10
¢ Simplified entries necessary to account for derivatives.
# Revised end-of-chapter materials place a greater focus on the impact of hedging on both
financial position and operating results.
¢ Updated coverage of highlights of the IASB’s proposed standard on hedging are set forth
in the “TASB Perspectives” feature.

¢ Chapter 11
¢ New illustration of the consolidation of a U.S. parent and a foreign subsidiary.
¢ Incorporated new standards as they relate to consolidations.

¢ Chapter 12
¢ End-of-chapter materials have been updated and revised.
¢ All footnotes have been changed to reference relevant sections of the Accounting

Standards Codification (ASC).

¢ Chapter 13
¢ End-of-chapter materials have been updated and revised.
¢ All footnotes have been changed to reference relevant sections of the Accounting

Standards Codification.

¢ Chapter 14
¢ End-of-chapter materials have been updated and revised.

¢ All footnotes have been changed to reference relevant sections of the Accounting
Standards Codification.

¢ Chapter 15
¢ Include a discussion of deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources.
¢ Updated entries for examples.
¢ Updated end-of-chapter material.
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¢ Chapter 16
¢ Updated entries for examples.
¢ Updated end-of-chapter material.

¢ Chapter 17
¢ Updated entries for examples.
¢ Updated end-of-chapter material.

¢ Chapter 18
¢ Updated entries for examples.
¢ Updated end-of-chapter material.

¢ Chapter 19
¢ Updated entries for examples.
¢ Updated end-of-chapter material.

¢ Chapter 20
# Revised exclusions and rates are employed and an explanation for this logic is set forth at
the beginning of the chapter.
¢ Updated pedagogical aspects of accounting for estates and trusts are firmly set forth.
¢ Updated website material is conveyed regarding Congressional actions concerning estate
taxation (www.cengagebrain.com).

¢ Chapter 21
¢ End-of-chapter materials have been updated and revised.
® All footnotes have been changed to reference relevant sections of the Accounting

Standards Codification.

¢ Appendix
¢ Applies the equity method to nonconsolidated (influential) investments.
¢ Updated coverage includes the fair value option.

FLEXIBILITY

The book’s flexible coverage of topics allows for professors to teach the course at their own pace
and in their preferred order. There are no dependencies between major sections of the text
except that coverage of consolidations should precede multinational accounting if one is to
understand accounting for foreign subsidiaries. It is also advisable that students master the mod-
ule on derivatives before advancing to the chapter on foreign currency transactions. The book
contains enough coverage to fill two advanced courses, but when only one semester is available,
many professors find it ideal to cover the first four to six chapters in business combinations.
The text is divided into the following major topics:

Business Combinations—Basic Topics (Chapters 1-6)

Chapter 1 demonstrates the FASB rules for assigning the cost of an acquired company to its
assets and liabilities. Goodwill impairment replaces amortization and is fully explained.
Chapters 2 through 5 cover the basics of preparing a consolidated income statement and
balance sheet. In 1977, we introduced two schedules that have been much appreciated by stu-
dents and faculty alike—the determination and distribution of excess schedule and income dis-
tribution schedule. The determination and distribution schedule (quickly termed the D&D
schedule by students) analyzes the difference between the fair value of the acquired company
and the underlying equity of the subsidiary. The D&D schedule has been reconfigured to
revalue the entire company, including the noncontrolling interest. It provides a check figure for
all subsequent years” worksheets, details all information for the distribution of differences
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between book and fair values, and reveals all data for the amortization of the differences. The
schedule provides rules for all types of acquisition situations. The income distribution schedule
(known as the IDS) is a set of T accounts that distributes income between the noncontrolling
and controlling interests. It also provides a useful check function to ensure that all intercom-
pany eliminations are properly accounted for. These chapters give the student all topics needed
for the CPA Exam. (For easy reference, the text contains a callout in the margin, as shown here,
that ties the narrative to the worksheets. In addition, the related narrative pages are indicated in
the upper right side of each worksheet. This allows the reader to quickly locate important
explanations.)

With regard to the alternative worksheet methods and why we follow the approaches we do,
consider the method used to record the investment in the subsidiary’s and the parent’s books.
There are two key points of general agreement. The first is that it doesn’t really matter which
method is used, since the investment account is eliminated. Second, when the course is over, a
student should know how to handle each method: simple equity, full (we call it sophisticated)
equity, and cost. The real issue is which method is the easiest one to learn first. We believe the
winner is simple equity, since it is totally symmetric with the equity accounts of the subsidiary.
It simplifies elimination of subsidiary equity against the investment account. Every change in
subsidiary equity is reflected, on a pro rata basis, in the parent’s investment account. Thus, the
simple equity method becomes the mainline method of the text. We teach the student to con-
vert investments maintained under the cost method to the simple equity method. In practice,
most firms and the majority of the problems in the text use the cost method. This means that
the simple equity method is employed to solve problems that begin as cither simple equity or
cost method problems.

We also cover the sophisticated equity method, which amortizes the excess of cost or book
value through the investment account. This method should also adjust for intercompany profits
through the investment account. The method is cumbersome because it requires the student to
deal with amortizations of excess and intercompany profits in the investment account before
getting to the consolidated worksheet, which is designed to handle these topics. This means
teaching consolidating procedures without the benefit of a worksheet. We cover the method
after the student is proficient with a worksheet and the other methods. Thorough understand-
ing of the sophisticated method is important so that it can be applied to influential investments
that are not consolidated. (This is covered in the Appendix.)

Another major concern among advanced accounting professors has to do with the work-
sheet style used. There are three choices: the horizontal (trial balance) format, the vertical
(stacked) method, and the balance sheet only. Again, we do cover all three, but the horizontal
format is our main method. Horizontal is by far the most appealing to students. They have used
it in both introductory and intermediate accounting. It is also the most likely method to be
found in practice. On this basis, we use it initially to develop all topics. We cover the vertical
format but not until the student is proficient with the horizontal format. There is no difference
in the elimination procedures; only the worksheet logistics differ. It takes only one problem
assignment to teach the students this approach so they are prepared for its possible appearance
on the CPA Exam. The balance-sheet-only format has no reason to exist other than its use as a
CPA Exam testing shortcut. We cover it in the Appendix.

Chapter 6 may be more essential for those entering practice than it is for the CPA Exam. It
contains cash flow for consolidated firms, consolidated earnings per share, and taxation issues.
Support schedules guide the worksheet procedures for consolidated companies, which are taxed
as separate entities. Taxation is the most difficult application of consolidation procedures. Every
intercompany transaction is a tax allocation issue. Teaching the tax allocation issues with every
topic as it is introduced is very confusing to students. We prefer to have the students fully
understand worksheet procedures without taxes and then introduce taxes.

Business Combinations—Specialized Topics (Chapters 7 and 8)

These chapters deal with topics that occasionally surface in practice and have seldom appeared
on the CPA Exam. Studying these chapters perfects the students’ understanding of consolida-
tions and stockholders” equity accounting, thus affording a valuable experience. Chapter 7 deals
with piecemeal acquisitions of an investment in a subsidiary, sale of the parent’s investment,

Worksheet 3-1: page 150
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and the impact of preferred stock in the subsidiary’s equity structure. Chapter 8 deals with the
impact of subsidiary equity transactions including stock dividends, sale of common stock
shares, and subsidiary reacquisitions of shares. The chapter also considers indirect or three-tier
ownership structures and reciprocal holdings where the subsidiary owns parent shares.

Accounting for equity method investments is located in the Appendix that follows Chapter 8.
The methods used for consolidations are adapted to influential investments. The IDS schedule
used to distribute consolidated net income is used to calculate investment income.

Multinational Accounting and Other Reporting Concerns
(Chapters 9-11 and Module)

As business has developed beyond national boundaries, the discipline of accounting also has
evolved internationally. As our global economy develops, so, too, does the demand for reliable
and comparable financial information. Chapter 9 discusses the international accounting envi-
ronment and current efforts to converge U.S. generally accepted accounting principles with
international standards.

The use of derivative financial instruments and the related accounting is a very complex
subject that is discussed in a separate module. The principles set forth in FASB Codification are
set forth in a clear manner. The module may be used to support a standalone topic dealing
with derivatives or as a preface to the multinational chapter dealing with foreign currency
transactions. Regardless of how one chooses to use the module, students will benefit from an
understanding of this important topic. The nature of derivatives is discussed along with a more
in-depth look at the common types of derivative instruments. The basic accounting for deriva-
tives held as an investment is illustrated. Options, futures, and interest rate swaps are used for
illustrative purposes. The accounting for derivatives that are designated as a hedge is illustrated
for both fair value and cash flow hedges. More specifically, the use of a derivative to hedge a
recognized transaction (asset or liability), an unrecognized firm commitment, or a forecasted
transaction is discussed and illustrated. Throughout the module, illustrative entries and
graphics are used to improve the students’” understanding of this topic.

Chapter 10 discusses the accounting for transactions that are denominated or settled in a
foreign currency. Following this discussion, the hedging of such transactions with the use of for-
ward contracts is introduced. Hedging foreign currency recognized transactions, unrecognized
firm commitments, and forecasted transactions is discussed in order to illustrate the business
purpose and special accounting associated with such hedging strategies in an international set-
ting. The chapter is not overly complicated, given the fact that the concept of hedging and the
special accounting given hedges have already been discussed in a separate module on derivatives
and related accounting issues.

Chapter 11 demonstrates the remeasurement and/or translation of a foreign entity’s finan-
cial statements into a U.S. investor’s currency. Wherever possible, examples of footnote disclo-
sure relating to international accounting issues are presented.

The usefulness of financial information naturally increases if it is communicated on a timely
basis. Therefore, interim financial statements and reporting requirements are now widely
accepted. In Chapter 12, the concept of an interim period as an integral part of a larger annual
accounting period is set forth as a basis for explaining the specialized accounting principles of
interim reporting. Particular attention is paid to the determination of the interim income tax
provision including the tax implications of net operating losses. Chapter 12 also examines seg-
mental reporting and the various disclosure requirements. A worksheet format for developing
segmental data is used, and students are able to review the segmental footnote disclosure for a
large public company.

Accounting for Partnerships (Chapters 13 and 14)

Chapters 13 and 14 take students through the entire life cycle of a partnership, beginning with
formation and ending in liquidation. Although new forms of organization such as the limited
liability corporation are available, partnerships continue to be a common form of organization.
Practicing accountants must be aware of the characteristics of this form of organization and the
unique accounting principles. The accounting aspects of profit and loss agreements, changes in
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the composition of partners (admissions and withdrawals), and partnership liquidations are
fully illustrated. The end-of-chapter material in this area focuses on evaluating various alterna-
tive strategies available to partners, for example, deciding whether it would be better to liquidate
a partnership or admit a new partner.

Governmental and Not-for-Profit Accounting (Chapters 15-19)

Chapters 15-19 provide comprehensive coverage of accounting and financial reporting of state
and local governments, colleges and universities, health care entities, and not-for-profit organi-
zations. Since the eleventh edition of this text was released, standards-setting bodies have issued
several accounting, auditing, and financial reporting standards that impact topics covered in
these chapters. This edition discusses recent developments in state and local government
accounting and financial reporting.

Chapter 15 covers the unique accounting and financial reporting issues of state and local
governments. It describes the basics of accounting and financial reporting of the general fund
and account groups. The chapter incorporates GASB guidance on accounting for revenues and
expenditures using a financial resources measurement focus and a modified accrual basis of
accounting. The unique ways of accounting for capital assets and long-term debrt are detailed.

Chapter 16 details accounting for the specialized funds of government, e.g., those estab-
lished to account for restricted operating resources, long-term construction projects or acquisi-
tion of major fixed assets, and servicing of principal and interest on long-term debt. The
chapter also covers the unique accounting for various trust funds, including permanent funds
and proprietary (business-type) funds. Illustrated examples include accounting for pensions,
postretirement benefits other than pensions, recognition of assets and liabilities and related dis-
closures arising from securities lending transactions, accounting for certain investments at fair
value, and accounting for landfill operations.

Chapter 17 presents the required governmental basic financial statements. The unique fea-
tures of the funds-based statements, which maintain the traditional measurement focus and basis
of accounting for both governmental and proprietary funds, and the government-wide state-
ments, which use the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of
accounting for both the government and proprietary activities, are detailed. The chapter
includes a discussion of the requirement for governments to report all capital assets, including
reporting of infrastructure assets. Detailed illustrations help to clarify the requirements to report
depreciation or use the modified approach. The chapter contains a sample government-wide
statement of net assets that reports governmental and proprietary activities in separate columns
and a program- or function-oriented statement of activities. The requirements for the manage-
ments discussion and analysis (MD&A) are highlighted. End-of-chapter problems are designed
to link theory to practice through the use of electronic working papers and supporting sched-
ules. Additional coverage surrounds key issues in governmental audit, including the single audit
requirements, from AICPA, OMB, and GAO authoritative sources.

Chapter 18 begins with an overall summary of the accounting and financial reporting stand-
ards as they apply to all not-for-profit organizations. Coverage of ASC 958 is included.
Expanded illustrations enable the student to better grasp the unique requirements for revenue
and expense recognition of not-for-profit organizations. External financial statements are illus-
trated without a funds structure. Since the FASB standards have shifted financial reporting away
from fund accounting, funds are viewed as internal control and management tools throughout
this chapter. The appendix to the chapter includes a discussion of the fund structure tradition-
ally used in not-for-profit organizations and illustrates financial statements incorporating the
funds.

Chapter 19 offers a complete description of accounting for private and governmental uni-
versities and private and governmental health care organizations. The concepts from Chapters
15-18 are applied to college and university accounting. A comparison of the governmental and
nongovernmental reporting requirements and/or practices is highlighted to enable the student
to gain a better understanding of differences between them. Updated illustrations and end-of-
chapter materials are also designed to compare and contrast the government and private-sector
requirements.
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xii

PREFACE

Fiduciary Accounting (Chapters 20 and 21)

The role of estate planning and the use of trusts are important to many individuals and present
some unique accounting principles. The tax implications of estate planning are discussed so that
the student has a basic understanding of this area. Various accounting reports necessary for the
administration of an estate or trust are illustrated in Chapter 20. Current estate tax rates and
unified credit amounts are set forth in the chapter.

No business is immune from financial difficulty. Chapter 21 discusses various responses to
such difficulties, including troubled debt restructuring, quasi-reorganizations, corporate liqui-
dations, and corporate reorganizations.

UNPARALLELED SUPPORT

Supplementary Materials for the Instructor

Solutions Manual. This manual provides answers to all end-of-chapter “Understanding the
Issues” questions and solutions to all exercises, problems, and cases. The electronic files for this
ancillary can be found on the Instructor’s Resource CD and in the Instructor Resources section
of the text’s Web site (www.cengagebrain.com).

Test Bank. Consisting of a variety of multiple-choice questions and short problems and the
related solutions, this test bank had been updated. The content includes testing questions for
the text chapters and the derivatives module.

PowerPoint” Slides. Instructor PowerPoint presentations are available in electronic format.
Instructor Web Site (www.cengagebrain.com). All supplemental materials are available online

atw ww.cengagebrain.com.

Valuable Supplementary Material for the Student

Excel® Tutorial and Working Papers. Provided on the text’s Web site (www.cengagebrain
.com), this step-by-step tutorial carefully guides students as they learn how to set up worksheets
in Excel and apply their consolidations knowledge learned in Chapters 1-6 of the text.
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he acquisition of one company by another is a

commonplace business activity. Frequently, a com-

pany is groomed for sale. Also, the recent prolifera-
tion of new technology businesses and financial services
firms that merge into larger companies is an expected, and
often planned for, occurrence. For three decades, prior to
2001, accounting standards for business combinations had
remained stable. Two models of recording combinations
had coexisted. The pooling-of-interests method brought
over the assets and liabilities of the acquired company at
existing book values. The purchase method brought the ac-
quired company’s assets and liabilities to the acquiring
firm’s books at fair market value. FASB Statement No. 141,
issued in July 2001, ended the use of the pooling method
and gave new guidance for recording business combinations
under purchase accounting principles.

Two new FASB Statements issued in 2007 brought
major changes to accounting for business combinations.
FASB Statement 14lr required that all accounts of an
acquired company be recorded at fair value, no matter the
percentage of interest acquired or the price paid. FASB
Statement 160 required new rules for accounting for the
interest not acquired by the acquiring firm. This interest is
known as the noncontrolling interest. It is now recorded at
fair value on the acquisition date and is considered a part of
the stockholder’s equity of the consolidated firm.

The contents of FASB Statements 14lr and 160 are now
incorporated into FASB ASC 805 and 810, respectively.
ASC stands for Accounting Standards Codification. These
statements are unique in that they were produced in a
joint effort with the International Accounting Standards

Board (IASB). Some minor differences still exist between
U.S. GAAP and international rules. They are described in
Chapter 2. Throughout this book, a new feature called
“IASB Perspectives” will address the ever-changing rela-
tionship between U.S. GAAP and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).This feature is not found in
all chapters, but has been included where applicable.

There are two types of accounting transactions to accom-
plish a combination. The first is to acquire the assets and
liabilities of a company directly from the company itself by
paying cash or by issuing bonds or stock. This is called a direct
asset acquisition and is studied in Chapter 1. The assets and
liabilities of the new company are directly recorded on the
parent company’s books. All of the theory involving acquisi-
tions is first explained in this context.

The more common way to achieve control is to acquire
a controlling interest, usually over 50%, in the voting com-
mon stock of another company. The acquiring company
simply records an investment account for its interest in the
new company. Both companies maintain their own account-
ing records. However, when two companies are under com-
mon control, a single set of consolidated statements must
be prepared to meet external reporting requirements. The in-
vestment account is eliminated and the individual assets and
liabilities of the acquired company are merged with those of
the parent company. Chapters 2 through 8 provide the meth-
ods for consolidating the separate statements of the affiliated
firms into a consolidated set of financial statements. The
consolidation process becomes a continuous activity, which
is further complicated by continuing transactions between
the affiliated companies.
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Business Combinations:
New Rules for a Long-Standing

Business Practice

Learning Objectives
When you have completed this chapter, you should be able to
1. Describe the major economic advantages of business combinations.

2. Differentiate between accounting for an acquisition of assets and accounting for an
acquisition of a controlling interest in the common stock of a company.

Explain the basics of the acquisition model.

Allocate the acquisition price to the assets and liabilities of the acquired company.
Demonstrate an understanding of the tax issues that arise in an acquisition.
Explain the disclosure that is required in the period in which an acquisition occurs.

Apply the impairment test to goodwill and adjust goodwill when needed.

® N o v W

Estimate the value of goodwill. (Appendix)

Business combinations have been a common business transaction since the start of commercial
activity. The concept is simple: A business combination is the acquisition of all of a company’s
assets at a single price. Business combinations is a comprehensive term covering all acquisitions of
one firm by another. Such combinations can be further categorized as either mergers or consoli-
dations. The term merger applies when an existing company acquires another company and
combines that company’s operations with its own. The term consolidation applies when two or
more previously separate firms join and become one new, continuing company. Business combi-
nations make headlines not only in the business press but also in the local newspapers of the
communities where the participating companies are located. While investors may delight in the
price received for their interest, employees become concerned about continued employment,
and local citizens worry about a possible relocation of the business.

The popularity of business combinations grew steadily during the 1990s and peaked in 1998.
From then undl 2003, activity slowed considerably, with the dollar amount of deals falling even more
than the number of deals. From 2003 to 2007, there was a steady rise in deals and the dollar amount
of acquisitions. By 2009, the number of deals and their value fell to roughly half of their 2007 levels.
Exhibit 1-1 includes the Merger Completion Record covering 1999 through 2009. The data include
all acquisitions in which a U.S. company was involved as either a buyer or seller. The drastic change
in business combinations can be attributed to several possible causes, such as the following:

¢ The growth period prior to 2002 reflects, in part, the boom economy of that period,
especially in high-tech industries. There was also a motivation to complete acquisitions prior
to July 1, 2001, when FASB Statement No. 141, Business Combinations, became effective.
FASB Statement No. 141 eliminated the pooling-of-interests method. Pooling allowed
companies to record the acquired assets at existing book value. This meant less depreciation
and amortization charges in later periods. When the alternative purchase method was used
prior to 2001, any goodwill that was recorded could be amortized over 40 years. After 2001,
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Exhibit 1

-1

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

10-Year Merger Completion Record: 1999-2009

10-Year Merger Completion No. of 10-Year Merger Completion Value
Record: 1999 to 2009 Deals Record: 1999 to 2009 ($bil)
10000 2000
No. of % Value % 9000 -ﬁ I?\R 1800
Year | Deals | Change | ($bil) | Change 8000 ,l/ \ 1600
1999 | 9,248 — |1,4231 - 7000 __-/ \ d / \ 1400
2000 | 8,974| -3.0 |1,786.3| 255 6000 / \ \ 1200
2001 | 6,423 | 284 |1,155.4| -35.3 ¢ [
2002 | 5,685 -11.5 | 6267 | -45.8 5000 \ 1000
2003 | 6,269 | 10.3 5269 | 159 4000 x / > 800
2004 | 7,350 | 17.2 866.4 | 64.4 3000 600
2005 | 8,249 | 12.2 1,012.2 16.8 2000 ¢ —- Number of Deals 200
2006 | 9,141 | 10.8 |1,431.3| 41.4 @ Valus ($bi)
2007 | 9,575| 47 |1,808.1| 263 1000 200
2008 | 7,917 | -17.3 999.2 | -44.7 0 T T T T T T T T T T 0
2009 | 5514 -30.4 703.1 | —29.6 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Source: Mergers and Acquisitions Almanac, February 2010, p. 31.

1

FASB Statement No. 141 required goodwill impairment testing, which meant there was a
risk of a major goodwill impairment loss in a future period.

The decline in acquisition activity could also be attributed to the soft economy during the
post-2001 period. The high-tech sector of the economy, which had been a hotbed of
combinations, was especially weak. Add to it the increased scrutiny of companies being
acquired, as caused by the accounting and business scandals of the period, and the
motivation to acquire was lessened.

Aside from broad-based accounting infractions, specific allegations of precombination
beautification arose. It became clear that adjustments were made to the books of the
company being acquired to make it look more valuable as a takeover candidate. This
included arranging in advance to meet the pooling-of-interests criteria and making
substantial write-offs to enhance post-acquisition income. In the fall of 1999, it was alleged
that Tyco International arranged to have targeted companies take major write-downs before
being acquired by Tyco. This concern caused a major decline in the value of Tyco shares and
led to stockholder suits against the company.

The steady increase in acquisition activity after 2002 could be attributed to a growing
economy and stabilization in the accounting method used.

The steep decline in activity since 2007 is likely a result of the deep recession during that time
period. With improvements in the economy during 2010, business acquisitions have accelerated.
Acquisitions per year have been fairly level since 2010. For an updated count of activity, do a
computer Internet search using “Thomson-Reuters Mergers and Acquisitions Review” and
select the latest quarterly report.

ECONOMIC ADVANTAGES OF COMBINATIONS

OBJECTIVE

Describe the m

economic advantages of

business comb

ajor

inations.

Business combinations are typically viewed as a way to jump-start economies of scale. Savings may

result from the elimination of duplicative assets. Perhaps both companies will utilize common facil-
ities and share fixed costs. There may be further economies as one management team replaces two
separate sets of managers. It may be possible to better coordinate production, marketing, and
administrative actions. The U.S. Federal Trade Commission defines six types of mergers. They are:

Copyright 2016 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



Chapter 1~ BUsINEss COMBINATIONS: NEW RULES FOR A LONG-STANDING BUSINESS PRACTICE

Backward Vertical Integration. This is a deal where a company moves down the production—
marketing cycle by acquiring a supplier of products or services it provides.

Example: The acquisition of Smith International by Slumberger. Smith International is a
provider of drilling bits and fluids to the oil industry. Slumberger is an oil field service company
providing a range of services to oil companies including drilling of oil wells. The transaction
was stock for stock and will likely be a tax-free exchange for investors (to be explained in
a following section).

Forward Vertical Integration. This is a merger where a company moves up the production—
marketing cycle by acquiring a company that uses its products.

Example: The acquisition of Healthvision Solutions, Inc., by Lawson Software. Lawson is a pro-
vider of software solutions including healthcare applications. Healthvision provides integrated
healthcare technologies directly to healthcare organizations. This was an acquisition for cash.

Horizontal Merger. This is a merger of companies that offer similar products or services and
are likely competitors in the same market space.

Example: The huge drug store chain, Walgreen Company, acquired the New-York-based
drug store chain of Duane Reade Holdings, Inc. This cash acquisition quadrupled the number
of stores Walgreen has in the metro New York area.

Product Extension Merger. This is a merger where the acquiring company is expanding its pro-
duct offerings in the marketplace in which it already sells products and/or services.

Example: R. R. Donnelley & Sons Company acquired, for cash, Browne & Company.
Donnelley provides integrated communication services for a wide range of customers. Browne
provides critical capital markets communications.

Market Extension Merger. This merger increases the geographic market coverage of the same
products or services already offered by the acquiring company.

Example: First Energy acquired Allegheny Energy. Both companies are power companies.
The acquisition expands First Energy’s market in Pennsylvania and extends its market to include
portions of West Virginia, Maryland, and Virginia.

Conglomerate Merger. Example: This is an acquisition of a firm in an unrelated line of busi-
ness. In effect, the acquiring firm has a portfolio of investments. Some have said that a conglom-
erate is similar to a mutual fund in its purpose to maximize returns over a range of companies.

Thomas H. Lee Partners acquired for cash CKE Restaurants, Inc. CKE owns the Carl’s Jr. and
Hardee’s quick service restaurant chains. Thomas H. Lee Partners businesses include information
services, lending, publishing, music, and consumer products, including Snapple.

Tax Advantages of Combinations

Perhaps the most universal economic benefit in business combinations is a possible tax advantage.
The owners of a business, whether sole proprietors, partners, or shareholders, may wish to retire
from active management of the company. If they were to sell their interest for cash or accept debt
instruments, they would have an immediate taxable gain. If, however, they accept the common
stock of another corporation in exchange for their interest and carefully craft the transaction as a
“tax-free reorganization,” they may account for the transaction as a tax-free exchange. No taxes are
paid until the shareholders sell the shares received in the business combination. The shareholder
records the new shares received (for tax purposes) at the book value of the exchanged shares.

In early 2014, Iberiabank Corporation filed a form 8K with the SEC which provided the
following information concerning its merger with Teche Holding Company:

On January 12, 2014, IBERIABANK Corporation (“IBKC”) the parent company of
IBERIABANK, entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with
Teche Holding Company (“TSH”), the parent company of leche Federal Bank. Under the
Merger Agreement, TSH will merge into the IBKC (the “Merger”) afier which Teche Federal
Bank will merge with and into IBERIABANK. Each outstanding share of TSH's common
stock will be converted into the right to receive 1.162 shares of IBKC common stock at the effec-
tive time of the Merger (the “Exchange Ratio”) plus cash in lieu of any fractional interest. The
Exchange Ratio will be adjusted if the market price of IBKC common stock on the NASDAQ
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OBJECTIVE

Differentiate between
accounting for an
acquisition of assets and
accounting for an
acquisition of a controlling
interest in the common
stock of a company.

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

Global Select Market during the prescribed measurement period to the merger falls below
$55.80 or rises above $68.20, pursuant to the formula set forth in the Merger Agreement. All
TSH stock options, whether or not vested, will be cashed out and shares of restricted stock will
become fully vested in connection with the transaction and will be exchanged for shares of
IBKC common stock like the other shares of TSH common stock.

The Merger is intended to qualify as a tax-free reorganization for federal income tax pur-
poses. The Merger is expected to close during the second quarter of 2014. If the Merger is not
consummated under certain circumstances, TSH has agreed to pay IBKC a termination fee up
to $5,000,000, and ]lBKC has agreed to pay TSH a termination fee of up to $4,000,000 in

certain circumstances.

Further tax advantages exist when the target company has reported losses on its tax returns
in prior periods. Section 172 of the Internal Revenue Code provides that operating losses can
generally be carried back two years to obtain a refund of taxes paid in previous years. In an effort
to stimulate the economy, Congress enacted a special 5-year carryback for 2008 and 2009 oper-
ating losses. Should the loss not be offset by income in the allowed prior years, the loss may be
carried forward up to 20 years to offset future taxable income, thus eliminating or reducing
income taxes that would otherwise be payable. These loss maneuvers have little or no value to a
target company that has not had income in the two prior years and does not expect profitable
operations in the near future. However, tax losses are transferable in a business combination. To
an acquiring company that has a profit in the current year and/or expects profitable periods in
the future, the tax losses of a target company may have real value. That value, viewed as an asset
by the acquiring company, will be reflected in the price paid. However, the acquiring company
must exercise caution in anticipating the benefits of tax loss carryovers. The realization of the
tax benefits may be denied if it can be shown that the primary motivation for the combination
was the transfer of the tax loss benefit.

A tax benefit may also be available in a subsequent period as a consolidated tax return is filed
by the single remaining corporation. The losses of one of the affiliated companies can be used
to offset the net income of another affiliated company to lessen the taxes that would otherwise

be paid by the profitable company.

REFLECTTION

* Business combinations may have a wide range of economic advantages to a firm
including vertical and horizontal integration, market and product expansion and
diversification as a conglomerate company.

¢ Potential sellers may be motivated by the tax advantages available to them in a business
combination.

ACQUISITION OF CONTROL

Control of another company may be achieved by cither acquiring the assets of the target com-
pany or acquiring a controlling interest (typically over 50%) in the target company’s voting
common stock. In an acquisition of assets, all of the company’s assets are acquired directly from
the company. In most cases, existing liabilities of the acquired company also are assumed. When
assets are acquired and liabilities are assumed, we refer to the transaction as an acquisition of
“net assets.” Payment could be made in cash, exchanged property, or issuance of either debt or
equity securities. It is common to issue securities since this avoids depleting cash or other
assets that may be needed in future operations. Legally, a statutory consolidation refers to the

1 Iberiabank Corp (IBKC) form 8K filed with SEC on January 13, 2014.
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combining of two or more previously independent legal entities into one new legal entity. The
previous companies are dissolved and are then replaced by a single continuing company. A szaz-
utory merger refers to the absorption of one or more former legal entities by another company
that continues as the sole surviving legal entity. The absorbed company ceases to exist as a legal
entity but may continue as a division of the surviving company.

In a stock acquisition, a controlling interest (typically, more than 50%) of another company’s
voting common stock is acquired. The company making the acquisition is termed the parent
(also the acquirer), and the company acquired is termed a subsidiary (also the acquiree). Both
the parent and the subsidiary remain separate legal entities and maintain their own financial
records and statements. However, for external financial reporting purposes, the companies
usually will combine their individual financial statements into a single set of consolidated state-
ments. Thus, the term “consolidation” may refer to a statutory combination or, more com-
monly, to the consolidated statements of a parent and its subsidiary.

There may be several advantages to obtaining control by acquiring a controlling interest
in stock. The most obvious one is that the total cost is lower, since only a controlling inter-
est in the assets, and not the total assets, must be acquired. In addition, control through
stock ownership may be simpler to achieve since no formal negotiations or transactions with
the acquiree’s management are necessary. Further advantages may result from maintaining
the separate legal identity of the acquiree company. First of all, risk is lowered because the
legal liability of each corporation is limited to its own assets. Secondly, separate legal enti-
ties may be desirable when only one of the companies, such as a utility company, is subject
to government control. Lastly, tax advantages may result from the preservation of the legal
entities.

Stock acquisitions are said to be “friendly” when the stockholders of the acquiree corpora-
tion, as a group, decide to sell or exchange their shares. In such a case, an offer may be made
to the board of directors by the acquiring company. If the directors approve, they will recom-
mend acceptance of the offer to the sharcholders, who are likely to approve the transaction.
Often, a two-thirds vote is required. Once approval is gained, the exchange of shares will be
made with the individual shareholders. If the officers decline the offer, or if no offer is made,
the acquirer may deal directly with individual sharcholders in an attempt to secure a control-
ling interest. Frequently, the acquirer may make a formal render offer. The tender offer typi-
cally will be published in newspapers and will offer a greater-than-market price for shares
made available by a stated date. The acquirer may reserve the right to withdraw the offer if an
insufficient number of shares is made available to it. Where management and/or a significant
number of shareholders oppose the acquisition of the company by the intended buyer, the
acquisition is viewed as hostile. Unfriendly offers are so common that several standard
defensive mechanisms have evolved. Following are the common terms used to describe these
defensive moves.

Greenmail. The target company may pay a premium price (“greenmail”) to buy back its own
shares. It may either buy shares already owned by a potential acquiring company or purchase
shares from a current owner who, it is feared, would sell to the acquiring company. The price
paid for these shares in excess of their market price may not be deducted from stockholders’
equity; instead, it is expensed.”

White Knight. The target company locates a different company to acquire a controlling inter-
est. This could occur when the original acquiring company is in a similar industry and it is
feared that current management of the target company would be displaced. The replacement
acquiring company, the “white knight,” might be in a different industry and could be expected
to keep current management intact.

Poison Pill. The “poison pill” involves the issuance of stock rights to existing shareholders to
purchase additional shares at a price far below fair value. However, the rights are exercisable
only when an acquiring company purchases or makes a bid to purchase a stated number of
shares. The effect of the options is to substantially raise the cost to the acquiring company. If
the attempt fails, there is at least a greater gain for the original sharcholders.

2 FASB ASC 505-30-25-4, Equity-Treasury Stock—Recognition (Norwalk, CT, 2010).
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Selling the Crown Jewels. This approach has the management of the target company selling
vital assets (the “crown jewels”) of the target company to others to make the company less
attractive to the acquiring company.

Leveraged Buyouts. The management of the existing target company attempts to purchase a
controlling interest in that company. Often, substantial debt will be incurred to raise the funds
needed to purchase the stock; hence the term “leveraged buyout.” When bonds are sold to pro-
vide this financing, the bonds may be referred to as “junk bonds,” since they are often high-
interest and high-risk due to the high debt-to-equity ratio of the resulting corporation.

Further protection against takeovers is offered by federal and state law. The Clayton Act of
1914 (Section 7) is a federal law that prohibits business combinations in which “the effect of
such acquisition may be substantially to lessen competition or to tend to create a monopoly.”

The Williams Act of 1968 is a federal law that regulates tender offers; it is enforced by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Several states also have enacted laws to discourage
hostile takeovers. These laws are motivated, in part, by the fear of losing employment and taxes.

Accounting Ramifications of Control

When control is achieved through an asset acquisition, the acquiring company records on its
books the assets and assumed liabilities of the acquired company. From the acquisition date on,
all transactions of both the acquiring and acquired company are recorded in one combined set
of accounts. The only new skill one needs to master is the proper recording of the acquisition
when it occurs. Once the initial acquisition is properly recorded, subsequent accounting
procedures are the same as for any single accounting entity. Combined statements of the
new, larger company for periods following the combination are automatic.

Accounting procedures are more involved when control is achieved through a stock acquisi-
tion. The controlling company, the parent, will record only an investment account to reflect its
interest in the controlled company, the subsidiary. Both the parent and the subsidiary remain
separate legal entities with their own separate sets of accounts and separate financial statements.
Accounting theory holds that where one company has effective control over another, there is
only one economic entity and there should be only one set of financial statements that combines
the activities of the entities under common control. The accountant will prepare a worksheet,
referred to as the consolidated worksheet, that starts with the separate accounts of the parent and
the subsidiary. Various adjustments and eliminations will be made on this worksheet to merge
the separate accounts of the two companies into a single set of financial statements, which are
called consolidared statements.

This chapter discusses business combinations resulting from asset acquisitions, since the
accounting principles are more easily understood in this context. The principles developed are
applied directly to stock acquisitions that are presented in the chapters that follow.

REFLECTTION

¢ Control of another company is gained by either acquiring all of that firm's assets (and
usually its liabilities) or by acquiring a controlling interest in that company’s voting
common stock.

¢ Control through an acquisition of assets requires the correct initial recording of the
purchase. Combined statements for future periods are automatically produced.

EVOLUTION OF ACCOUNTING METHODS

Prior to the issuance of FASB Statement No. 141 in 2001, two methods were used to account
for business combinations. These were the purchase method and the pooling-of-interests
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method. The purchase method usually recorded all assets and liabilities of the company acquired
at fair value. The purchase method was the primary method in use. However, under some cir-
cumstances, the pooling-of-interests method was allowed. The pooling-of-interests method
recorded the assets and liabilities of the acquired firm at their existing book values. This method
was intended to be applied to business combinations that were a “merger of equals.” Specific
criteria existed as to combinations that would qualify. Ninety percent of the stock of the firm
acquired had to be received in exchange for the shares of the acquiring firm. All shareholders of
the acquired firm had to be treated equally. Numerous other criteria also attempted to guarantee
a fusion of existing owners rather than a takeover of one company by another. In the end, some
companies engaged in a series of equity transactions prior to the combination so that they
would be able to meet the pooling criteria. Pooling allowed the carry over of book values to the
acquiring firm. That resulted in greater future income because of typically lower depreciation
and amortization charges on assets. Pooling did not result in new goodwill being recorded. At
that time goodwill was amortized. Thus, pooling also led to greater income in the future since
there would be no goodwill amortization.

FASB Statement No. 141 eliminated the pooling method. Assets and liabilities acquired in
a pooling of interests, that began prior to the effective date of FASB Statement No. 141, were
allowed to continue as originally recorded. This means that current-era financial statements still
include assets and liabilities of a firm acquired in a pooling that were initially recorded at their
book values on the acquisition date.

The purchase method required under FASB Statement No. 141 focused only on recording
fair values for the portion of the assets and liabilities acquired in the purchase. The accounts of
the acquired company would only be adjusted to full fair value if the parent company acquired
a 100% interest in the acquired firm. If, for example, the purchasing company bought only an
80% interest in the acquired firm, accounts would be adjusted by only 80% of the difference
between book and fair value. Thus, in an 80% purchase, an asset with a book value of $6,000
and a fair value of $10,000 would be recorded at $9,200 ($6,000 book value plus 80% X
$4,000 excess of fair value over book value).

The new acquisition method included in FASB Statement No. 14Ir (now included in FASB
ASC 805), issued in 2007, requires that all assets and liabilities be recorded at fair value regard-
less of the percentage interest purchased by the acquiring company (provided that the interest
purchased is large enough to constitute a controlling interest). In the above example, the asset
illustrated would be recorded at the full $10,000 fair value even though the acquiring company
only purchased an 80% interest in the company that owns the asset. The acquisition method
also eliminated the prior practice of discounting of fixed and intangible assets to a value less
than fair value. This would happen under the purchase method when, in a rare case, the acquir-
ing firm made a “bargain purchase.” A bargain purchase occurs when the price paid for a com-
pany is less than the sum of the fair value of its net assets (sum of all assets minus all liabilities).

Applying the Acquisition Method
The four steps in the acquisition method are as follows:

1. Identify the acquirer.

2. Determine the acquisition date.

3. Measure the fair value of the acquiree (the company being acquired).
4. Record the acquiree’s assets and liabilities that are assumed.

Identify the Acquirer. In an asset acquisition, the company transferring cash or other assets
and/or assuming liabilities is the acquiring company. In a stock acquisition, the acquirer is, in
most cases, the company transferring cash or other assets for a controlling interest in the voting
common stock of the acquiree (company being acquired). Some stock acquisitions may be
accomplished by exchanging voting common stock. Most often, the company issuing the voting
common stock is the acquirer. In some cases, the acquiree may issue the stock in the acquisition.
This “reverse acquisition” may occur when a publicly traded company is acquired by a privately
traded company. The appendix at the end of Chapter 2 considers this situation and provides the
applicable accounting methods.
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When an acquisition is accomplished through an exchange of equity interests, the factors
considered in determining the acquirer firm include the following:

1. Voting rights—The entity with the largest share of voting rights is typically the acquirer.

2. Large minority interest—Where the company purchases only a large minority interest (under
50%) and no other owner or group has a significant voting interest, the company acquiring
the large minority interest is likely the acquirer. Determination of control could be based on
domination of the decision-making process to obtain the related economic benefits.

3. Governing body of combined entity—The entity that has the ability to elect or appoint
a majority of the combined entity is likely the acquirer.

4. Terms of exchange—Typically, the acquirer pays a premium over the precombination
market value of the shares acquired.

Determine the Acquisition Date. This is the date that the acquiring firm makes payment by
transferring assets, issuing stock, and assuming the liabilities of the acquired company. Nor-
mally, this is also the legal closing date. The closing can, however, occur after the acquisition
date if there is a written agreement that the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.

The acquisition date is critical because it is the date used to establish the total fair value of
the company acquired, and it is usually the date that fair values are established for the assets and
liabilities of the acquired company.

Measure the Fair Value of the Acquiree. Unless there is evidence to the contrary, the fair value
of the acquiree as an entity is assumed to be the price paid by the acquirer. The price paid is
based on the sum of the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities assumed, and the stock
issued by the acquirer. If the information to establish the fair value of the acquiree is not avail-
able on the acquisition date, a measurement period is available to ascertain the value. This period
ends when either the needed information is available or is judged to not be obtainable. In no
case can the measurement period exceed one year from the acquisition date.
Specific guidance as to what may be included in the price calculation is as follows:

a. The price includes the estimated value of contingent consideration. Contingent considera-
tion is an agreement to issue additional consideration (assets or stock) at a later date if speci-
fied events occur. The most common agreements focus on a targeted sales or income
performance by the acquiree company. An estimate must be made of the probable settle-
ment cost and that amount is included in the price paid. The measurement period is avail-
able to refine the estimated value.

A contingent agreement that would require the issuance of stock is classified as either a
liability or equity. Subsequent to the measurement period, agreements that create a liability
are remeasured and the changes are included in the income of the subsequent period. Agree-
ments classified as equity are not remeasured. Generally, an agreement is classified as equity
if the settlement is to be in shares (or shares or cash at the option of the acquirer). However,
even if the settlement is in shares, the agreement is considered a liability if:

1. Itis a fixed amount known at the time of the purchase.
2. Itisan agreement to make up for a decline in the value of the acquirer’s shares.
3. Itis an amount that varies on something other than the fair value of the acquirer shares.

To qualify as equity, the agreement would have to be the grant of additional shares based
solely on the performance of the acquiree company. The agreement could be fixed as to the
number of shares or could base the settlement on the value of the shares used for settlement.
There would be no adjustments for the change in the estimated value during the duration of
the agreement. Guidance for the classification of contingent consideration as a liability or
equity comes from FASB ASC 815-40-25-1 through 28.

b. The costs of accomplishing the acquisition, such as accounting costs and legal fees, are
not included in the price of the company acquired and are expensed. In the period of the
acquisition, the notes to the financial statements must disclose the amount of the acquisi-
tion costs and state the line item expense on the income statement that includes these costs.
(3) Where the consideration used is the stock of the acquirer, the issue costs may also be
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expensed or they can be deducted from the value assigned to paid-in capital in excess
of par, but they are not included in the price paid.

Record the Acquiree’s Assets and Liabilities That Are Assumed. The fair values of all identifi-
able assets and liabilities of the acquiree are determined and recorded. Fair value is the amount
that the asset or liability would be bought or sold for in a current, normal (nonforced) sale
between willing parties. Fair values are determined following the guidance of FASB ASC 820, Fair
Value Measurement and Disclosure. FASB ASC 820-10-35-37 to 54A provides a hierarchy of
values, where the highest level measurement possible should be used. The hierarchy is as follows:

¢ Level 1—Unadjusted quoted market value in an actively traded market. This method would
apply to actively traded investments and to inventory.

¢ Level 2—Adjusted market value based on prices of similar assets or on observable other
inputs such as interest rates. This approach might apply to work-in-process inventory and
plant and equipment that sells in an organized market.

¢ Level 3—Fair value based on unobservable inputs, such as the entities’ best estimate of an
exit (sale) value. The value of plant and equipment, not normally sold in an active market,
would likely be calculated under this approach.

There are a few exceptions to the fair value rule that will be discussed. The sum of all identifiable
assets, less liabilities recorded, is referred to as the fair value of the net assets. The identifiable
assets never include goodwill that may exist on the acquiree’s books. The only goodwill recorded
in an acquisition is “new” goodwill based on the price paid by the acquirer. The fair value
recorded for the net assets is not likely to be equal to the fair value of the acquiree as an entire
entity (which is normally equal to the price paid).

Goodwill. Goodwill results when the price paid exceeds the fair value of the acquiree’s net
identifiable assets. The excess of the fair value of the acquiree over the values assigned to net
identifiable assets is “new” goodwill. The goodwill recorded is not amortized but is impairment
tested in future accounting periods.

Bargain Purchase. A bargain purchase occurs when the fair value assigned to the net identifiable
assets exceeds the price paid. When this occurs, every effort should be made to revalue the amounts
assigned to net identifiable assets to eliminate the difference. If; after reconsideration of the fair values,
an excess of fair value of the net identifiable assets over the price paid still exists, the excess is recorded
as a “gain” on the acquisition by the acquirer. Disclosure for the period of the acquisition must show
the gain as a separate line item on the income statement or identify the line item that includes the
gain. Exhibit 1-2, the 2014 Ralph Lauren Corporation, Consolidated Statements of Income, includes
a “gain on the acquisition of Chaps.” The note, just below the income statements, explains the calcu-
lation of the gain.

Exhibit 1-2
Ralph Lauren Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Income

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,

2014 2013 2012
(millions, except per share data)
Net sales $7,284 $ 6,763 $ 6,679
Licensing revenue 166 182 181
Net revenues 7,450 6,945 6,860
Cost of goods sold® (3,140) (2,789) (2,862)
Gross profit 4,310 4,156 3,998

(continued)
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Other costs and expenses:

COMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

Selling, general, and administrative expenses!® (3,142) (2,971) (2,91¢)
Amortization of intangible assets (35) (27) (29)
Gain on acquisition of Chaps 16 — —
Impairments of assets (1) (19) (2)
Restructuring and other charges (18) (12) (12)

Total other costs and expenses, net (3,180) (3,029) (2,959)
Operating income 1,130 1,127 1,039
Foreign currency losses (8) (12) (2)
Interest expense (20) (22) (24)
Interest and other income, net 3 6 11
Equity in losses of equity-method investees (?) (10) (9)
Income before provision for income taxes 1,096 1,089 1,015
Provision for income taxes (320) (339) (334)
Net income $ 776 $ 750 $ 681
Net income per common share:

Basic $ 8.55 $ 8.21 $ 7.35

Diluted $ 8.43 $ 8.00 $ 7.13
Weighted average common shares

outstanding:

Basic 90.7 91.3 92.7

Diluted 92.0 93.7 95.5
Dividends declared per share $ 1.70 $ 1.60 $ 0.80
©Includes total depreciation expense of: $ (223) $ (206) $ (19¢)

See accompanying notes.

Ralph Lauren Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012

(millions)

Net income $776 $750 $681
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 52 (23) (50)
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives (27) (13) 32
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale

investments (5) 4 1
Net realized and unrealized losses on defined benefit plans — (M (2)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 20 (103) (19)
Total comprehensive income $796 $ 647 $662

Chaps Menswear License Acquisition On April 10, 2013, in connection with the transition of
the North American Chaps-branded men’s sportswear business ("‘Chaps Menswear Business'’) from
a licensed to a wholly-owned operation, the Company entered into an agreement with The Warnaco
Group, Inc. ("Warnaco”), a subsidiary of PYH Corp. (“PVH"), to acquire certain net assets in
exchange for an aggregate payment of approximately $18 million (the “Chaps Menswear License
Acquisition”’). Warnaco was the Company’s licensee for the Chaps Menswear Business. The Com-
pany funded the Chaps Menswear License Acquisition during the first quarter of Fiscal 2014 with

available cash on-hand. )
(continued)
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The Company accounted for the Chaps Menswear License Acquisition as a business combina-
tion during the first quarter of Fiscal 2014. The acquisition cost was allocated to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on an assessment of their respective fair values, as follows
(in millions):

Assets acquired:
Inventory $ 30
Accounts receivable 19
Licensed trademark intangible asset 9
Total assets acquired 58
Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable (22)
Other net liabilities (2)
Total net liabilities assumed (24)
Fair value of net assets acquired 34
Consideration paid 18
Gain on acquisition'® $16

(a) Represents the difference between the acquisition date fair value of net assets acquired and the contractually-
defined purchase price under the Company’s license agreement with Warnaco, which granted the Company the
right to early-terminate the license upon PVH's acquisition of Warnaco in February 2013.

The licensed trademark intangible asset was valued using the excess earnings method, discount-
ing the estimated affertax cash flows associated with the Chaps-branded men's sportswear licensed
trademark as of the acquisition date, factoring in market participant-based operating and cash flow
assumptions. The reacquired licensed trademark intangible asset was amortized over a nine-month
period through December 31, 2013, representing the remaining ferm of the prior license agreement
that was terminated in connection with this acquisition.

The operating results of the Chaps Menswear Business have been consolidated into the Com-
pany’s operating results beginning on April 10, 2013. Transaction costs of $3 million were
expensed as incurred and classified within SG&A expenses in the consolidated statement of income
for Fiscal 2014.

Prior to FASB 141r, there was an extraordinary gain when the price paid exceeded the total
of only current assets minus all liabilities. Under current rules, there is an “ordinary” gain when
fair value of the net identifiable assets exceeds the price paid.

REFLECTTION

e The acquisition method records all accounts of the acquiree at fair value. Any goodwill
on the acquiree’s books is ignored.

* An acquisition cost in excess of the fair value of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets
results in goodwill.

¢ An acquisition cost less than the fair values of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets results
in an ordinary gain being recorded by the acquirer.
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4

OBJECTIVE

Allocate the acquisition
price to the assets and
liabilities of the acquired
company.

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

VALUATION OF IDENTIFIABLE ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES

The first step in recording an acquisition is to record the existing asset and liability accounts
(except goodwill). As a general rule, assets and liabilities are to be recorded at their individually
determined fair values. The preferred method is quoted market value when an active market
for the item exists. Where there is not an active market, independent appraisals, discounted
cash flow analysis, and other types of analysis are used to estimate fair values. There are some
exceptions to the use of fair value that apply to accounts such as assets for resale and deferred
taxes.

The acquiring firm is not required to establish values immediately on the acquisition date.
A measurement period of up to one year is allowed for measurement. Temporary values would
be used in financial statements prepared prior to the end of the measurement period. A note to
the statements would explain the use of temporary values. Any change in the recorded values is
adjusted retroactively to the date of the acquisition. Prior-period statements are revised to reflect
the final values and any related amortizations.

The procedures for recording the assets and liabilities of the acquired firm are as follows:

1. Current assets—These are recorded at estimated fair values. This would include recording
accounts and notes receivable at the estimated amounts to be collected. Accounts and notes
receivable are to be recorded in a net account that represents the probable cash flows; a
separate valuation account for uncollectible accounts is not allowed. All accounts share the
rule that only the net fair value is recorded, and valuation accounts are not used.

2. Existing liabilities—These are also recorded at fair value. For current contractual liabil-
ities, that is likely to be the existing recorded value. For estimated liabilities, a new fair value
may be used in place of recorded values. Long-term liabilities will be adjusted to a value
different from recorded value if there has been a material change in interest rates.

3. Property, plant, and equipment—Operating assets will require an estimate of fair value
and will be recorded at that net amount with no separate accumulated depreciation account.

4. Existing intangible assets, other than goodwill—These will also be recorded at estimated
fair value. The valuation of these items, such as patents and copyrights, will typically
require the use of discounted cash flow analysis.

5. Assets that are going to be sold rather than used in operations—Such assets are 7oz
recorded at fair value. They are recorded at net realizable value and are listed as current assets.

6. When the acquiree is a lessee with respect to assets in use—The original classification of
a lease as operating or capital is not changed by the acquisition unless the terms of the lease
are modified as part of the acquisition. The acquiree has no recorded asset for assets under
operating leases. If, however, the terms of the lease are favorable as compared to current
market rent rates, an intangible asset would be recorded equal to the discounted present
value of the savings. If the lease terms are unfavorable, an estimated liability would be
recorded equal to the discounted present value of the rent in excess of fair rental rates.

EXAMPLE

The acquiree is a party to a 5-year remaining term operating lease requiring payments of
$1,000 per month at the start of each month. The current rental rate for such an asset on a
new 5-year lease would be $1,300 per month. Assuming an annual interest rate for this type
of transaction of 8%, the calculation would be as follows:

Payment $ 300 (excess of fair rent value over contractual amount)
n 60

Rate 8%/12

Present Value $14,894 (beginning mode)

An intangible asset, Favorable Operating Lease Terms, would be recorded and amortized
over five years. The effective interest method of amortization should be applied.
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If the acquiree is a party to a capital lease, the asset would be recorded at fair value as
would the liability under the capital lease.

7. When the acquiree may have acted as a lessor—Again, the classification of the lease is
not changed unless the terms are changed. For operating leases, the acquiree has the asset
recorded on its balance sheet. The asset is recorded at fair value, and it is not impacted by
the terms of any lease applicable to that asset. If the terms of the operating lease include
rental rates that are different than current rental rates, an intangible asset or estimated liabi-
lity is recorded. An intangible asset would be recorded for favorable lease terms, and an esti-
mated liability would be recorded for unfavorable terms. Note that the lessor terms are
favorable when the contract rental rate exceeds fair rental value, and terms are unfavorable
when the fair rental value exceeds the contract rate. The value of the intangible asset or esti-
mated liability uses the same procedure as illustrated for the lessee above.

If the lease is a capital lease, the acquiree has no asset recorded other than the minimum
lease payments receivable account. This account would be remeasured at the discounted
present value of the payments at the current market interest rate for such a transaction.

EXAMPLE

The acquiree/lessor has a minimum lease payment receivable on its books at $178,024 (96
beginning-of-the-month payments of $2,500 at 8% annual interest rate). If the current
market rate of interest for this transaction is 12% annual, the fair value of the minimum
lease payment receivable would be calculated and recorded as follows:

Payment $ 2,500, beginning of the month

n 96 months

Rate 12%/12 =1%

Present Value $155,357 (This is the amount of the minimum lease payment

receivable that would be recorded.)

8. Intangible assets not currently recorded by the acquiree—Identifiable intangible assets
must be separately recorded; their value cannot be swept into the “goodwill” classification.
An intangible asset is identifiable if it arises from contractual or other legal rights (even if it
is not separable) or is separable. For example, the acquiree may have a customer list that
could be sold separately and has a determinable value. The acquiree cannot record the value
of this self-developed intangible asset. However, this value must be estimated and recorded
as one of the assets acquired in the acquisition.

FASB ASC 805-20-55 provides examples of intangible assets that are identifiable. They

include:

® Marketing-related intangible assets including trademarks, trade names, service
marks, collective marks, and certification marks

¢ Internet domain names

¢ Customer-related intangible assets including customer lists, order or production
backlog, customer contracts and related customer relationships, and non-contractual
customer relationships

¢ Artistic-related intangible assets including plays, operas, ballets, books, magazines,
newspapers, musical works, pictures, and video materials

¢ Contract-based intangible assets including licensing, royalty and standstill
agreements, advertising, construction, management, service and supply contracts,
construction permits, franchise agreements, operating and broadcast rights, servicing
contracts, employment contracts, and use rights

¢ Technology-based intangible assets including patented technology, computer
software and mask works, unpatented technology, databases, and trade secrets
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9. Research and development assets—The fair values of both tangible and intangible
rescarch and development assets are recorded even where the assets do not have alternative
future uses (the usual criteria for capitalization of R&D assets). Where the assets included
in the acquisition have value only for a given project, the assets are considered to have an
“indefinite” life and are not amortized until the project is completed. Upon completion,
the useful life is to be estimated and used as the amortization period. The assets are to be
expensed at the completion or abandonment of an unsuccessful project.

Tangible and intangible R&D assets that are used for multiple R&D projects are sepa-

rately recorded and are amortize ased on the projects serve € assets.
tely ded and tized based on the project d by th t

10. Contingent assets and liabilities—This refers to contingent assets and liabilities possessed
by the acquiree on the acquisition date and must not be confused with contingent consid-
eration that is part of the acquisition agreement. The fair value of a contingent asset or lia-
bility is recorded at its fair value on the acquisition date, if such a value exists. The
measurement period allows added time to estimate these values.

If a fair value does not exist on the acquisition date, guidance for estimating the value
comes from FASB ASC 805-20-25-20. Two criteria must be met for an estimate of the
contingent asset or liability to be recorded:

¢ Information available by the end of the measurement date indicates that it is probable
that an asset existed or a liability had been incurred as of the acquisition date. It is
implicit in this condition that it must be probable at the acquisition date that one or
more future events confirming the existence of the asset or liability will occur.

¢ The amount of the asset or liability can be reasonable estimated.

Examples of contingent assets would include possible bonuses, refunds stemming from
tax disputes, and possible favorable outcomes of lawsuits. Contingent assets can not be
recorded except as a part of a business acquisition. Contingent liabilities include pending
claims such as unfavorable lawsuits, warranty costs, premiums and coupons, and environ-
mental liabilities.

11. Liabilities associated with restructuring or exit activities—The fair value of an existing
restructuring or exit activity for which the acquiree is obligated is recorded as a sep-
arate liability. To record a liability, there must be an existing obligation to other entities.’
The possible future costs connected with restructuring or exit activities that may be planned
by the acquirer are not part of the cost of the acquisition and are expensed in future periods.

12. Employee benefit plans—The asset or liability under employee benefit plans is not
recorded at fair value. Instead, a liability is recorded if the projected benefit obligation
exceeds the plan assets. An asset is recorded when the plan assets exceed the projected bene-
fit obligation. The same procedure is applicable to other employee benefit plans.

13. Deferred taxes—Some acquisitions will be structured as nontaxable exchanges as to the
acquiree. In such cases, the acquirer must continue to base deductions for amortization or
depreciation of acquired accounts on their existing tax basis. A deferred tax liability is
recorded for added estimated taxes caused by the excess of fair value depreciation over book
value depreciation. A deferred tax asset is recorded for estimated future tax savings.

The acquirer would also record deferred tax assets or liabilities for temporary tax differ-
ences, such as using straight-line depreciation for financial reporting and an accelerated
depreciation method for tax purposes.

The acquirer will also record a deferred tax asset for any operating tax losses or invest-
ment credit carryovers acquired from the acquiree.

Taxation issues are considered in the “Tax Issues” section of this chapter.

Applying the Acquisition Model

Let us assume that the Johnson Company to be acquired by Acquisitions, Inc., has the following
balance sheet on the October 1, 2017, acquisition date:

3 FASB ASC 420-10-25-2, Exist or Disposal Cost Obligations—Overall—Recognition (Norwalk, CT, 2010).
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Johnson Company
Balance Sheet
October 1, 2017
Cash oo $ 40,000 Currentliabilities . ................. $ 25,000
Marketable investments. . ..... ... 60,000 8%, 5-yearbond payable ........... 100,000
Inventory . ..., 100,000 Total liabilities . . .................. $125,000
land. ... 30,000 Common stock ($1 par)............. $ 10,000
Buildings (net) ................. 150,000 Paid-in capital in excess of par .. ... .. 140,000
Equipment(net) ........ ... ... .. 80,000 Retainedearnings................. 185,000
Total equity ... $335,000
Totalassets. . ................ $460,000 Liabilities plus equity ............. $460,000
Note 1: A customer list with significant value exists.
Note 2: There is an unrecorded warranty liability on prior-product sales.
Fair values for all accounts have been established as of October 1, 2017 as follows:*
Account Method of Estimation Fair Value
Cash Book value $ 40,000
Marketable investment Level 1—Market value 66,000
Inventory Level 1—Market value 110,000
Land Level 2—Adjusted market value 72,000
Buildings Level 2—Adjusted market value 288,000
Equipment Level 1—Market value 145,000
Customer list Level 3—Other estimate, discounted cash flow based
on estimated future cash flows 125,000
Total assets $ 846,000
Current liabilities Book value $ (25,000)
Bonds payable Face value (adjusted with premium/discount) (100,000)
Premium on bonds payable Level 2—adjusted market value, using market-based
interest rate applied o contractual cash flows (4,000)
Warranty liability Level 3—other estimate, discounted cash flow based on
estimated future cash flows (12,000)
Total liabilities (141,000)
Fair value of net identifiable assets $ 705,000

Recording the Acquisition. The price paid for the company being acquired is normally mea-
sured as the sum of the consideration (total assets) exchanged for the business. This would be
the sum of the cash, other assets, debt securities issued, and any stock issued by the acquiring
company. In a rare case, the fair value of the company being purchased may be more determin-
able than the consideration given. This could be the case where stock is issued that is not pub-
licly traded and the fair value of the business acquired is more measurable. The basic procedures

to record the purchase are as follows:

¢ All accounts identified are measured at estimated fair value as demonstrated above. This is
true even if the consideration given for a company is less than the sum of the fair values of
the net assets (assets minus liabilities assumed, $705,000 in the above example).

4 FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure (Norwalk, CT, 2010)
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¢ If the total consideration given for a company exceeds the fair value of its net identifiable
assets ($705,000), the excess price paid is recorded as goodwill.

® In a rare case where total consideration given for a company is less than the fair value of its
net identifiable assets ($705,000), the excess of the net assets over the price paid is recorded
as an ordinary gain in the period of the purchase.

¢ All acquisition costs are expensed in the period of the purchase. These costs could include the
fees of accountants and lawyers that were necessary to negotiate and consummate the purchase.
In the past, these costs were included as part of the price paid for the company purchased.

Examples of Recording an Acquisition Using Value Analysis. Prior to attempting to record a
purchase, an analysis should be made comparing the price paid for the company with the fair
value of the net assets acquired.

® If the price exceeds the sum of the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired, the excess
price is goodwill.

¢ If the price is less than the sum of the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired, the
price deficiency is a gain.

1. Price paid exceeds fair value of net identifiable assets acquired.
Acquisitions, Inc., issues 40,000 shares of its $1 par value common stock shares with a
market value of $20 each for Johnson Company, illustrated above. Acquisitions, Inc., pays
related acquisition costs of $35,000.

Value Analysis:

Total price paid (consideration given), 40,000 shares x $20 marketvalue ............ $ 800,000
Total fair value of net assets acquired from Johnson Company .. ..................... (705,000)
Goodwill (excess of total cost over fair value of netassets) ... ..................... .. $ 95,000
Expense acquisition costs . ... ... $ 35,000

Dr Cr.

To record purchase of net assets:

Cash . 40,000

Marketable Investments. .. ... .. 66,000

Inventory . ... 110,000

Land. . 72,000

Buildings .. ..o 288,000

Equipment . .. 145,000

Customer List .. ... . 125,000

Goodwill. . ... . 95,000
CurrentLiabilities. . .. ..o 25,000
BondsPayable. . ... ... . 100,000
PremiumonBondsPayable .. ....... ... ... ... L 4,000
Warranty Liability .. ... 12,000
Common Stock ($1 par, 40,000 sharesissved) ................. 40,000
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par ($20 per share x 40,000 shares less

$40,000 assignedtopar) .. ..o 760,000

Dr.=Cr.CheckTotals. .. ... ... . . . . . 941,000 941,000

To record acquisition costs:

Acquisition Expense ... ... 35,000
Cash . 35,000
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Chapter 1~ BUsINEss COMBINATIONS: NEW RULES FOR A LONG-STANDING BUSINESS PRACTICE

2. Price paid is less than fair value of net identifiable assets acquired.
Acquisitions, Inc., issues 25,000 shares of its $1 par value common stock with a market
value of $20 each for Johnson Company, illustrated above. Acquisitions, Inc., pays related
acquisition costs of $35,000.

Value Analysis:

Total price paid (consideration given), 25,000 shares x $20 market value . . . ... $ 500,000
Total fair value of net assets acquired from Johnson Company .. ............... (705,000)
Gain on purchase of business (excess of fair value of net assets over total cost) . . . . $(205,000)
Expense acquisition costs .. .. ... $ 35,000

Entries to record the purchase and related costs are as follows:

Dr Cr.

To record purchase of net assets:

Cash . 40,000

Marketable Investments. ... ... .. 66,000

Inventory ... o 110,000

land. ... 72,000

Buildings . ... 288,000

Equipment . .. 145,000

Customer List .. ... 125,000
CurrentLiabilities. ... ... oo 25,000
BondsPayable. ... ... .. ... . . 100,000
Premium onBondsPayable . .......... ... ... . .. L. 4,000
Warranty Liability ... 12,000
Common Stock ($1 par, 25,000 sharesissved) ................. 25,000
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par ($20 per share x 25,000 shares less

$25,000 assignedtopar) .. ... 475,000

Gain on Acquisitionof Business . . . ...................... 205,000
Dr.=Cr.Check Totals . . ... . . . . 846,000 846,000

To record acquisition costs:

Acquisition Expense . ........ .. 35,000
Cash oo 35,000

The gain must be reported as a separate line item in the income statement of the acquirer in the
g q

period of the acquisition. Notes must include an explanation of the reasons that allowed the
gain to exist.

Recording Changes in Value During Measurement Period

During the measurement period, values assigned to accounts recorded as a part of the acqui-
sition may be adjusted to better reflect the value of the accounts as of the acquisition date. It
is possible that new assets and liabilities that existed on the acquisition date may become
known during the measurement period; they must also be recorded as part of the adjust-
ment. Changes in value caused by events that occur after the acquisition date are not part of
this adjustment. They would usually be adjusted to income in the period in which they
occur.

The values recorded on the acquisition date are considered “provisional.” They must be
used in financial statements with dates prior to the end of the measurement period. The mea-
surement period ends when the improved information is available or it is obvious that no better
information is available. In no case can the measurement period exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

Let us return to the earlier example of the acquisition of Johnson Company in exchange for
stock with a total value of $800,000. Assume now that the values assigned to the buildings, customer
list, and warranty liability are provisional. The 2017 financial year will include the income statement
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20 Part I COMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS
accounts for the acquired, Johnson Company, starting as of the October 1 acquisition date. The
values and resulting adjustments to income for 2017 and projected for 2018 are as follows:

Recorded in | Projected for
Provisional 2017 2018
Account Value Depreciation/Amortization Method (3 months) (full year)
Buildings $288,000 | 20-year straightline with $48,000 residual value. $240,000/ $3,000 $12,000
20 years = $12,000 per year, $1,000 per month
Customer List 125,000 | 5-year amortization, calculated monthly. $125,000/5 years = 6,250 25,000
$25,000 per year, Y annual amount for 2017
Warranty Liability (12,000) | Debited as repairs are made 3,500 7,000

Better estimates of values for these accounts become available in early 2018. The new values
and revised depreciation/amortization are as follows:

Adjusted | Amount to Be
Revised Amount for | Recorded in
Account Value Depreciation/Amortization Method 2017 2018
Buildings $320,000 | 20-ear straightline with $50,000 residual value. $270,000/ $3,375 $13,500
20 years = $13,500 per year, $1,125 per month
Customer List 150,000 | 5-year amortization, calculated monthly. $150,000/5 years = 7,500 30,000
$30,000 per year, $2,500 per month
Warranty Liability (18,000) | Debited as repairs are made 3,500 10,000
The recorded values are adjusted during 2018 as follows:
Dr. Cr.
Buildings ($320,000 new estimate — $288,000 provisional value). . . . . .. 32,000
Customer List ($150,000 new estimate — $125,000 provisional value). . . 25,000
Warranty Liability ($18,000 new estimate — $12,000 provisional volue) 6,000
Goodwill (sum of above adjustments) . ............. ... ... L 51,000

Goodwill would normally absorb the impact of the adjustments to all other accounts since
it is the difference between the price paid and the values assigned to identifiable net assets. Had
there been a gain on the original acquisition date, the gain would be adjusted at the end of the
measurement period. Since the gain was recorded in the prior period, the entry to adjust the
amount of the gain would be made to retained earnings. If there is goodwill but the increase in
net assets is greater than the amount of goodwill, a gain would be recorded for the balance of
the adjustment.

The depreciation/amortizations for the prior period must also be adjusted retroactively. The
entry made in 2018 would be as follows:

Dr. Cr.
Retained Earnings (net adjustment of $375 + $1,250) ... .. 1,625
Accumulated Depreciation—Buildings .. .............. 375
CustomerlList . ... ... . . 1,250

The comparative statements, which include 2017, would include the revised amounts. The
revised depreciation and amortization amounts ($13,500 and $30,000, respectively, for 2018)
would be recorded in 2018.
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Recording Contingent Consideration

Let us again revisit the acquisition of Johnson Company. This time, we will assume that the acquirer
issued 40,000 shares of stock with a market value of $800,000. In addition to the stock issue, the
acquirer agreed to pay an additional $100,000 on January 1, 2020, if the average income during the
2-year period of 2018-2019 exceeds $80,000 per year. The expected value is calculated as $40,000
based on the 40% probability of exceeding an average income of $80,000 and having to pay the
added $100,000. The revised value analysis and recording of the acquisition would be as follows:

Value Analysis:

Total price paid:

Stock issued, 40,000 shares x $20 marketvalue ............... $800,000

Estimated value of contingent payment . .. ............... ... ... 40,000 $ 840,000
Total fair value of net assets acquired from Johnson Company . . . . .. (705,000)
Goodwill . .. $ 135,000
Expense acquisitioncosts ... $ 35,000

Entries to record acquisition and related costs are as follows:

Dr. Cr.

To record purchase of net assets:

Cash .o 40,000

Marketable Investments. . . ... .o 66,000

INVeNtory . .o 110,000

Land. oo 72,000

Buildings .. ..o 288,000

Equipment . .. 145,000

Customer List .. ... . 125,000

Goodwill. ... ... 135,000
Current Liabilities. ... ..o 25,000
BondsPayable. ... ... ... 100,000
PremiumonBondsPayable . ............ ... ... ... 4,000
Warranty Liability ... o 12,000
Estimated Liability for Contingent Consideration . . . ... . .. 40,000
Common Stock ($1 par, 40,000 sharesissved) ................. 40,000
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par ($20 per share x 40,000 shares less

$40,000 assignedtopar) .. ... 760,000

Dr.=Cr. Check Totals . . ... 981,000 981,000

To record acquisition costs:

Acquisition Expense . .......... . 35,000
Cash oo 35,000

If during the measurement period, the contingent consideration was revalued based on
improved information, the estimated liability and the goodwill (or gain in a bargain acquisi-
tion) would be adjusted. For example, assume that within the measurement period the estimate
was revised to $50,000, the adjustment would then be as follows:

Goodwill ($50,000 new estimate — $40,000 provisional value) . . . . . . 10,000
Estimated Liability for Contingent Consideration. . ............... 10,000

If the estimate is again revised after the measurement period, the adjustment is included in
the income of the later period. If the estimate was revised to $65,000 after the measurement
period, the following adjustment would be recorded:

Expense, Increase in Estimated Contingent Consideration Payment. . . . 15,000
Estimated Liability for Contingent Consideration. . ............... 15,000
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Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

Contingency agreements can include other factors than an earnings target including market
share or research milestones achieved by the acquired firm. The acquired firm may be concerned
with the future value of the shares it receives from the acquiring company. In such a case, there
may be a contingent agreement to issue additional shares to make up for a fall in the price of the
stock issued in the purchase.

In general, contingent consideration agreements require the recording of a liability, and its
subsequent adjustment through income as demonstrated in the preceding example. There may
be cases where the contingency is to be settled by issuing additional shares of stock and the
agreement qualifies as equity based on the requirements listed on page 10.

Assume that in the preceding example, the $100,000 potential contingent payment was to
be settled by issuing additional shares with a value of $100,000 such that the agreement quali-
fied as equity transaction. Assume that the expected value was again $40,000. The entry to
record the purchase would be the same as that above except the $40,000 entry crediting the
“Estimated Liability for Contingent Consideration” would be replaced with the following
credit:

Paid-In Capital Contingent Share Agreement ... .................. 40,000

Contingent share agreements, classified as equity, are not subject to re-estimation and
remain at their originally recorded value until settled. The following entry would be made if the
agreement required 4,000 shares (worth $25 each) to be issued:

Paid-In Capital Contingent Share Agreement . .................... 40,000
Common Stock, $Tpar. ... 4,000
Paid-In Capital in Excessof Par . ............ ... . ... ... ..., 36,000
If the contingency provision is not met, the $40,000 would be transferred to paid-in capital
as follows:
Paid-In Capital Contingent Share Agreement ... .................. 40,000
Paid-In Capital in Excessof Par . ............ ... .. ... ... ..., 40,000

Accounting for the Acquisition by the Acquiree

The goodwill recorded by the acquirer is not tied to the gain (or loss) recorded by the acquiree.
The acquiree records the removal of net assets at their book values. Recall the initial example of
the acquisition of Johnson Company for $800,000 (on pages 16 and 17). The excess of the
price received by the seller ($800,000) over the sum of the net asset book value of $335,000
($460,000 assets — $125,000 liabilities) is recorded as a gain on the sale. In this case, the gain is
$465,000. The entry on Johnson’s books would be as follows:

Dr. Cr.
Investment in Acquisitions, Inc., Stock . .. ......... . 800,000
CurrentLiabilities. ... ... 25,000
8% 5-YearBondsPayable............. .. ... ...l 100,000
Cash oo 40,000
Marketable Investments . ... ..o 60,000
INVENIOTY o 100,000
Land. .o 30,000
Buildings (net) . ... . 150,000
Equipment(net) . ... 80,000
GainonSale of Business .. ... 465,000
Dr.=Cr. Check Totals. . .. ... 925,000 925,000

The only remaining asset of Johnson Company is the stock of Acquisitions, Inc. Johnson
would typically distribute the stock received to its shareholders and cease operations.
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REFLECTTION

e The acquirer records all accounts of the acquiree company at fair value on the acquisition
date, but adjustments are allowed during the measurement period.

¢ The acquisition cost includes the estimated expected value of contingent consideration.

e The acquiree removes the book values of the accounts transferred and records a gain or
loss on the sale.

TAX ISSUES

In some acquisitions, the acquiree may have operating losses in periods prior to the acquisition.
The acquirer may be able to carry these losses forward to offset its income taxes payable periods
after the acquisition. This is a “deferred tax asset” to which value will be assigned. The sale of a
business may be structured as either a taxable or nontaxable event, which means the seller pays
taxes on any gain in a taxable exchange but defers the taxes on a gain in a nontaxable exchange.
If the exchange is taxable, the acquirer records all accounts at fair value for tax purposes and gets
depreciation and amortization deductions based on the fair value of the assets on the acquisition
date. There may be some differences in the tax basis and recorded financial accounting
amounts. If the exchange is nontaxable, the acquirer will base future amortization and deprecia-
tion on the book value of the acquiree’s accounts on the acquisition date. This leads to deferred
tax assets or liabilities that need to be recorded on the acquisition date.

Tax Loss Carryovers

Tax law provides that an existing company with a tax loss may first carry the loss back to the pre-
vious two years to offset income and thus receive a refund of taxes paid in the preceding years. If the
loss exceeds income available in the prior 2-year period, the loss can be carried forward up to 20
years to offset future income and, therefore, reduce the taxes that otherwise would be paid. As
mentioned earlier, Congress has extended the carryback period to five years for losses incurred in
2008-2009. Our examples will use a 2-year carryback period. The acquired company may have
unused tax loss carryovers that it has not been able to utilize due to an absence of sufficient income
in prior years. This becomes a potential benefit for the purchasing company. Tax provisions limit the
amount of the net operating loss (NOL) available to the acquiring company to discourage business
combinations that are motivated primarily by tax loss carryovers. The purchaser is allowed to use the
acquired company’s tax loss carryovers to offset its own income in the current and future periods
(but not prior periods) subject to limitations contained in Internal Revenue Code Section 382.

The value of the expected future tax loss carryovers is recorded as a deferred tax asset (DTA)
on the date of the acquisition. It is, however, necessary to attempt to determine whether there
will be adequate future tax liabilities to support the value of the deferred tax asset. The accoun-
tant would have to consider existing evidence to make this determination. If it is likely that
some or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized, the contra account Allowance for
Unrealizable Tax Assets would be used to reduce the deferred tax asset to an estimated amount
to be realized.” This may have the practical effect of the contra account totally offsetting the
deferred tax asset. The inability to record a net deferred tax asset often will result in the con-
sideration paid for the NOL carryover being assigned to goodwill. This occurs because the
price paid will exceed the value of the net assets that are allowed to be recorded.

5 FASB ASC 740-10-30-5, Income Tax—Overall—Initial Measurement (Norwalk, CT, 2010).
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OBJECTIVE

Demonstrate an
understanding of the tax
issues that arise in an
acquisition.
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Bergen Company had the following book and fair values on the date it was acquired by Panther

Company:

Account Book Value Fair Value
Cash $ 30,000 $ 30,000
Accounts Receivable 80,000 80,000
Inventory 100,000 120,000
Land 140,000 200,000
Building (net) 250,000 465,000
Equipment (nef) 50,000 75,000
Patent 0 50,000
Accounts Payable (20,000) (90,000)
Bonds Payable (100,000) (100,000)

Net Assets $ 460,000 $ 830,000

Assume that the price paid for Bergen Company is $1,000,000. Bergen Company has tax
loss carryforwards of $200,000.

The value of the tax loss carryforward is calculated as follows:

Losses that may be carriedforward . ... .......... ... $200,000
Applicable taxrate . ... ... x 40%
Potential tax savings .. ......... . ... $ 80,000
Adjustment for amount not likely tobe usable . ... ........... .. (30,000)
Net value of tax loss carryforward. .. ............ .. .. .. ... $ 50,000
Value Analysis:
Total price paid:
Stock issued, 50,000 shares x $20 marketvalue ................. $1,000,000
Fair value of netassets acquired .. ........... ... .. ... ... (830,000)
Net value of tax loss carryforward. . ... ... . L (50,000)
GoodWill ..o $ 120,000

The entry to record the acquisition is as follows:

Dr. Cr.
To record purchase of net assets:
Cash 30,000
Accounts Receivable . ... ... . 80,000
INVENTOrY . oo 120,000
Land. ... 200,000
Buildings . .. ..o 465,000
Equipment . ..o 75,000
Patent. . .o 50,000
DeferredTax Asset ... ........... ... .. 80,000
Goodwill. . ... ... .. 120,000
Valuation Allowance for Deferred Tax Asset. . ............... 30,000
Accounts Payable . ... ... ... 90,000
BondsPayable. ... ... 100,000
Common Stock ($1 par, 50,000 sharesissued) ..................... 50,000
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par ($20 per share x 50,000 shares less 950,000
$50,000 assignedtopar) . ..ot
Dr.=Cr.CheckTotals. . ...... ... .. 1,220,000 1,220,000
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If there is a decrease in estimate for the valuation account within one year of the acquisition
date, goodwill is reduced for the same amount. Thus, if within one year, the valuation account
were lowered by $20,000 (from $30,000 to $10,000), Goodwill would be credited for $20,000
as follows:

Valuation Allowance for Deferred Tax Asset. . .. ..o 20,000
Goodwill ... 20,000

However, if the adjustment is caused by events that occur after the acquisition, the
credit would be to the current provision for taxes.® Changes in the valuation account after
the 1-year period result in an adjustment to the tax provision for the period in which the new
estimate is made.

Tax Values in an Acquisition

There may be limitations on amounts that can be assigned to certain accounts even in a taxable
exchange. For example, a fixed asset may have the following values:

Book value on the books of acquiree. . .. ............ ... .. ... $75,000
Estimated fair value for financial accounting. .. .......... ... ... 90,000
Basis required at acquisition for tax purposes . .. ............... 50,000

This would occur when the company used straight-line depreciation for financial reporting,
but used accelerated depreciation for its tax returns. The asset would still be recorded at the fair
value of $90,000, but a deferred tax liability (DTL) would be recorded for the lost tax deductibility

equal to the tax rate (40%) times the excess of the fair value over tax value calculated as follows:

Fairvalue. ... o $90,000
Taxvalue . ..o 50,000
Excessnotdeductible .. ... ... .. ... 40,000
Taxrate .. x 40%
Deferred tax liability ........... .. .. ... .. .. .. $16,000

The DTL would be amortized over the depreciable life of the asset. Assuming a 5-year asset
life and straight-line depreciation, the annual tax impact using a 40% tax rate would be $3,200
($16,000/5 years), which would be recorded as follows:

Deferred Tax Liability. . ... ..o 3,200
Current Tax Liability . . . ..o 3,200

Goodwill, while not amortized for financial reporting purposes, is amortized straight-line
over 15 years for tax purposes.

Nontaxable Exchange

In a nontaxable exchange, the acquirer is limited to deductions for amortization and depreciation
based on the book values of the acquiree on the acquisition date. Despite this, all accounts are still
recorded at full fair value, and deferred tax liability or asset accounts are recorded as follows:

Difference Results in:
Fair value of identifiable asset exceeds book value DTL
Book value of identifiable asset exceed:s fair value DTA
Fair value of liability exceeds book value DTA
Book value of liability exceeds fair value DTL

6 FASB ASC 805-740-45-4, Business Combinations—Income Taxes—Other Presentation Matters (Norwalk, CT,
2010).
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EXAMPLE

To understand the impact of a nontaxable exchange, consider an example of the acquisition of
Book Company for $1,500,000. The consideration was 50,000 shares of $1 par value shares of
the acquirer company. The market value of an acquirer share was $30. The tax rate is 40%. Fair
values are compared to the tax basis of Book Company as shown below.

Column 1 2 3 4
Fair Value in Excess
of Tax Basis DTA (DTL)
Account Fair Value Tax Basis (Col. 1. = Col. 2) (—40% x Col. 3)
Cash $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 0 $ 0
Accounts Receivable 150,000 180,000 (30,000) 12,000
Inventory 200,000 160,000 40,000 (16,000)
Land 200,000 150,000 50,000 (20,000)
Building 600,000 450,000 150,000 (60,000)
Equipment 300,000 200,000 100,000 (40,000)
Copyrights 100,000 2,000 98,000 (39,200)
Accounts Payable (250,000) (250,000) 0 0
Bonds Payable (315,000) (300,000) (15,000) 6,000
Net Identifiable Assets | $1,085,000 $ 692,000 $393,000 $(157,200)

Value Analysis:

Total price paid:

Stock issued, 50,000 shares x $30 market value $1,500,000

Fair value of net assets acquired .. ............ $1,085,000

DTL. .o 157,200

Net identifiable assets lessnet DTL. ... ......... 927,800
Goodwill ... $ 572,200

The entry to record the acquisition is as follows:

Dr. Cr.
To record purchase of net assets:
Cash oo 100,000
Accounts Receivable . ... ... . 150,000
Inventory . ... 200,000
Land. ... o 200,000
Buildings . .. .o 600,000
Equipment ... 300,000
Copyright . ..o 100,000
Goodwill. ... ... . .. 572,200
DTL . 157,200
AccountsPayable ...... ... ... 250,000
BondsPayable. ... ... ... 300,000
PremiumonBondsPayable .. ........ ... .. ... L 15,000
Common Stock ($1 par, 50,000 sharesissued) ................. 50,000
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par ($30 per share x 50,000 shares less 1,450,000
$50,000 assignedtopar) .. ...
Dr.=Cr. Check Totals. . ... 2,222,200 2,222,200
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While the DTL is recorded as a single amount, each component would be realized sepa-
rately. The amount applicable to accounts payable would be realized as the accounts are col-
lected; the amount applicable to inventory would be realized when the inventory is sold. The
amounts applicable to the land would be deferred until the land is sold. All other amounts are
amortized over the life of the accounts to which the DTA/DTL pertains.

REFLECTTION

e The acquisition may include a tax loss carryover from the acquiree which results in the
recording a deferred tax asset (DTA).

¢ In ataxable exchange, the values used for taxation may differ from those assigned in the
acquisition. Typically, lower book values will be used for depreciation in future years. This
results in a deferred tax liability (DTL).

¢ The acquisition may be a nontaxable exchange, which means the book values will be used
for taxation and fair values will be used for financial reporting. Because book values are
usually lower than fair value, this also results in a DTL.

REQUIRED DISCLOSURE

Substantial disclosure requirements for an acquisition occur during the reporting period. These
requirements are detailed in FASB ASC 805-10-50-2 and can be summarized as follows:

The name and description of the acquiree.

The acquisition date.

The percentage of voting equity interest acquired.

The primary reasons for the acquisition and the factors that contributed to the recording of

goodwill (if any).

A qualitative description of factors that make up the goodwill recognized.

The acquisition date fair value of all types of consideration, including cash, other assets,

contingent consideration, and debt and equity instruments issued.

g. Detailed information concerning contingent consideration, including a description of the
arrangements and the range of outcomes.

h. Details concerning acquired receivables, including gross amount, fair value and the
expected collections.

i. Disclosure showing amounts recorded for each major class of assets and liabilities. For the

acquisition of Johnson Company for $800,000 in stock on pages 16 and 17, the disclosure

information would appear as follows:

o o

™o

CUMTENt ASSEIS o . oo e e e e $216,000
Property, plant, and equipment. ....... ... ... oL 505,000
Intangible assets subject o amortization. .......... ... ... ... 125,000
Intangible assets not subject to amortization. . ............ ... ... 0
Goodwill . ..o 95,000

Total assets acquired. . .. ... ... $941,000
Currentliabilities . .. ... ... .. . $ 37,000
longtermdebt. ... ... 104,000

Total liabilitiesassumed .. ... .. ... ... . $141,000
Netassets acquired . .. ...t $800,000
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OBJECTIVE

Explain the disclosure that
is required in the period in
which an acquisition
occurs.
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Information on assets and liabilities arising from contingencies.
The goodwill that will be deductible for tax purposes.
Goodwill assigned to reportable segments (if any).
. Information concerning transactions between the companies that are not recorded as part
of the acquisition.
n. Disclosure of acquisition costs and issue costs associated with the transaction. This includes
identifying the line item of the income statement that includes the acquisition costs.
0. Any gain resulting from the acquisition. The gain is to be disclosed as a separate line item
on the income statement. The reasons for the gain must also be disclosed.
p. The fair value of the noncontrolling interest and the method used to value it.
q. The gain or loss on prior investments in a step acquisition. A step acquisition is where a
controlling interest is purchased in stages (explained in Chapter 7).
r. Publicly traded firms must disclose the following performance measures:

1. Revenue and earnings of the acquiree since the acquisition date

2. Pro forma revenue and earnings had the acquisition occurred at the start of the reporting
period

3. If comparative statements are issued, pro forma revenue and earnings for all prior peri-
ods for which comparative statements are issued

Exhibit 1-3 is a complete example of the disclosure required for an acquisition during the
reporting period. It is the 2012 acquisition of Pringles by the Kellogg Company. It includes the
required pro-forma disclosure.

Exhibit 1-3

Note 2

Goodwill and other Intangible Assets
Pringles® acquisition

On May 31, 2012, the Company completed its acquisition of the Pringles® business (Pringles) from
The Procter & Gamble Company (P&G) for $2,695 billion, or $2,683 billion net of cash and cash
equivalents, subject to certain purchase price adjustments, which resulted in a reduction of the pur-
chase price by approximately $15 million to $2,668 billion net of cash and cash equivalents. The
acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method and was financed through a combination
of cash on hand, and short-term and long-ferm debt. The assets and liabilities of Pringles are included
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012 and the
results of the Pringles operations subsequent to the acquisition date are included in the Consolidated
Statement of Income.

The purchase price allocation, including the allocation to reportable segments, was completed
during the quarter ended June 29, 2013 when the valuations of fixed assets and intangible assets
were finalized resulting in a reallocation from that reported as of December 29, 2012 of goodwill
between the Company’s reportable segments. Prior year amounts were revised to reflect these
changes as of the date of the acquisition, resulting in reductions to goodwill and the foreign currency
translation component of other comprehensive income (OCI) of $15 million as of December 29,
2012.

During the quarter ended September 28, 2013, the Company recorded an immaterial correc-
tion of an error fo the purchase price allocation for Pringles that was outside of the measurement per-
iod, which resulted in an increase to other non-current liabilities, goodwill and non-current deferred
tax assets of $15 million, $13 million and $2 million, respectively. The goodwill of $13 million was
allocated to our operating segments as follows: Europe, $10 million and Asia Pacific, $3 million.

The final acquired assets and assumed liabilities include the following:

May 31,
(millions) 2012
Accounts receivable, net $ 128
Inventories 103
Other prepaid assets 18
Property 317
Goodwill 1,319

(continued)
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Chapter 1~ BUsINEss COMBINATIONS: NEW RULES FOR A LONG-STANDING BUSINESS PRACTICE

Other intangibles:

Definite-lived intangible assets 79

Brand 776
Other assets:

Deferred income taxes 23

Other 16
Notes payable (3)
Accounts payable (9)
Other current liabilities (24)
Other liabilities (75)

Goodwill of $645 million is expected to be deductible for statutory tax purposes.

Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets
recognized. The goodwill recorded as part of the acquisition primarily reflects the value of providing
an established platform to leverage the Company’s existing brands in the international snacks cate-
gory, synergies expected to arise from the combined brand porffolios, as well as any intangible
assets that do not qualify for separate recognition.

For the year ended December 28, 2013, the Company incurred integration-related costs as part
of the Pringles acquisition as follows: $46 million recorded in SGA, $15 million recorded in COGS
and $5 million in net sales. Transaction fees and other integration-related costs incurred through
December 29, 2012 were as follows: $73 million recorded in SGA, $3 million recorded in COGS
and $5 million in fees for a bridge financing facility which are recorded in OIE.

For the year ended December 28, 2013, Pringles contributed net revenues of $1,658 million
and net earnings of $132 million, including the integration-related costs discussed above. Through
December 29, 2012, Pringles contributed net revenues of $887 million and net earnings of $31 mil-
lion, including the transaction fees and other integration-related costs discussed above. The unau-
dited pro forma combined historical results, as if Pringles had been acquired at the beginning of
fiscal 2011 are estimated to be:

(millions, except per share data) 2012 2011

Net sales $14,862 $14,722
Net income $ 1,001 $ 954
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests - (2)
Net income attributable to Kellogg Company $ 1,001 $ 956
Net earnings per share $ 2.78 $ 263

The pro forma results include transaction and bridge financing costs, interest expense on the
debt issued to finance the acquisition, amortization of the definite lived intangible assets, and depre-
ciation based on estimated fair value and useful lives. The pro forma results are not necessarily indi-
cative of what actually would have occurred if the acquisition had been completed as of the
beginning of 2011, nor are they necessarily indicative of future consolidated results.

The pro-forma disclosure is also to be included in the notes for an acquisition that occurs
after the balance sheet date but prior to the issuance date of the financial statement. If the initial
accounting for the acquisition is incomplete, those disclosures that could not be made and why
they could not be made must be stated.

REFLECTTION

¢ There are detailed disclosure requirements for the period in which an acquisition occurs.

¢ Disclosure includes pro forma amounts for revenue and earnings for the entire period
and for prior periods shown in comparative statements.
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OBJECTIVE

Apply the impairment test
to goodwill and adjust
goodwill when needed.

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

GOODWILL ACCOUNTING AFTER THE ACQUISITION

Publicly traded companies do not amortize goodwill. Instead they impairment test it each per-
iod and record an impairment loss when appropriate. This is not parallel to tax law in the U.S.,
which provides for the amortization of goodwill over a 15-year life. That difference will create
an inter-period tax allocation procedure.

Effective December 14, 2014, non-public (privately held) companies can elect to amortize
new or existing goodwill over a period not to exceed 10 years.” The amortized balance is still
subject to impairment testing.

Five specific concerns need to be addressed to apply impairment testing.

1. Goodwill must be allocated to reporting units if the acquired company contains more than
one reporting unit.

2. Methods for valuing the reporting unit must be established.

3. Impairment testing is normally done on an annual basis. There are, however, excep-
tions to annual testing and some cases where testing may be required between annual
testing dates.

4. The procedure for determining if impairment has occurred must be established.

5. The procedure for determining the amount of the impairment loss, which is also the
decrease in the goodwill amount recorded, must be established.

Allocating Goodwill to Reporting Units

In most cases, the company acquired will be made up of more than one reporting unit. For pur-
poses of segment reporting, under FASB ASC 280-10-50-1,® a reporting unit is either the same
level or one level lower than an operating segment. To be a reporting unit that is one level below
an operating unit, both of the following criteria must be met:

¢ Segment managers measure and review performance at this level.

¢ The unit has separate financial information available and has economic characteristics that
distinguish it from other units of the operating segment.

All assets and liabilities are to be allocated to the underlying reporting units. Goodwill is
allocated to the reporting segments by subtracting the identifiable net assets of the unit from the
estimated fair value of the entire reporting unit. The method of estimating the fair value of the
reporting unit should be documented. In essence, an estimate must be made of the price that
would have been paid for only the specific reporting unit.

Reporting Unit Valuation Procedures

The steps in the reporting unit measurement process will be illustrated with the following
example of the acquisition of Lakeland Company, which is a purchase of a single operat-
ing unit.

A. Determine the valuation method and estimated fair value of the identifiable assets,
goodwill, and all liabilities of the reporting unit.

At the time of acquisition, the valuations of Lakeland Company’s identifiable
assets, liabilities, and goodwill were as shown on page 31. [The asterisk (*) indicates
numbers have been rounded for presentation purposes.]

7 FASB 350-20-35-62
8 FASB ASC 280-10-50-1, Segment Reporting—QOverall—Disclosure (Norwalk, CT, 2010).
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Chapter 1~ BUsINEss COMBINATIONS: NEW RULES FOR A LONG-STANDING BUSINESS PRACTICE

Assets Comments Valuation Method Fair Value
Inventory available Replacement cost Market replacement cost for similar items $ 45,000
Accounts receivable Recorded amount is adjusted for Aging schedule used for valuation 28,000
estimated bad debts
Land Per-acre value well established Five acres at $10,000 per acre 50,000
Building Most reliable measure is rent Rent estimated at $20,000 per year for 80,000*
potential 20 years, discounted at 14% return for
similar properties; present value of
$132,463 reduced for $50,000
land value
Equipment Cost of replacement capacity can be Estimated purchase cost of equipment with 50,000
estimated similar capacity
Patent Recorded by seller at only legal cost; Added profit made possible by patent is 30,000*

Brand-name copyright
Current liabilities
Bonds payable

Net identifiable assets
at fair value

Price paid for reporting
unit

Goodwill

has significant future value

Not recorded by seller

Recorded amounts are accurate

Specified interest rate is above
market rate

Believed to exist based on projected
future cash flows

*Rounded to nearest thousands to reflect nature of estimate.

$11,600 per year for four years; discounted
at risk adjusted rate for similar investments of

20% per year; PV equals $30,029

Estimated sales value 40,000
Recorded value (5,000)
Discount at market interest rate
(21,000)
$297,000
360,000
Implied by price paid
$ 63,000

B. Measure the fair value of the reporting unit and document assumptions and models
used to make the measurement. This measurement is made to:

® Serve as a test for the amount of goodwill recorded for the reporting unit.

¢ Establish the procedure to be used to value the reporting unit in later periods.

If the stock of the reporting unit is publicly traded, the market capitalization of the reporting
unit may be indicative of its fair value, but it need not be the only measure considered. The
price paid to acquire all of the shares or a controlling interest could exceed the product of the
fair value per share times the number of shares outstanding. A common method used to esti-
mate fair value is to determine the present value of the unit’s future cash flows. The following is
an example of that approach.

Assumptions:

. The reporting unit will provide operating cash flows, net of tax, of $40,000 during the next
reporting period.

. Operating cash flows will increase at the rate of 10% per year for the next four reporting per-
iods and then will remain steady for 15 more years.

. Forecast cash flows will be adjusted for capital expenditures needed to maintain market posi-
tion and productive capacity.

. Cash flows defined as net of cash from operations less capital expenditures will be discounted
at an after-tax discount rate of 12%. An annual rate of 12% is a reasonable risk-adjusted rate
of return for investments of this type.

. An estimate of salvage value (net of tax effect of gains or losses) of the assets at the end of
20 years will be used to approximate salvage value. This is a conservative assumption, since
the unit may be operated after that period.
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Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

Schedule of net tax cash flows:

Net of Tax Capital
Year Operating Flow* Expenditure Salvage Value Net Cash Flow

1 $40,000 $ 40,000
2 44,000 44,000
3 48,400 48,400
4 53,240 53,240
5 58,564 $(25,000) 33,564
6 58,564 58,564
7 58,564 58,564
8 58,564 58,564
9 58,564 58,564
10 58,564 (30,000) 28,564
11 58,564 58,564
12 58,564 58,564
13 58,564 58,564
14 58,564 58 564
15 58,564 (35,000) 23,564
16 58,564 58,564
17 58,564 58,564
18 58,564 58,564
19 58,564 58,564
20 58,564 $75,000 133,564
Net present value at 12% annual rate $376,173

*Reflects assumed 10% annual increase in years 2-5.

C. Compare fair value of reporting unit with amounts assigned to identifiable net assets

plus goodwill.
Estimated fair value of reportingunit ........................ $376,173
Price paid for reportingunit............ .. ... i 360,000
Excess of fair value of reporting unit over netassets. .......... $16,173

An excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the value of the net assets indicated that the
price paid was reasonable and below a theoretical maximum purchase price. It requires no adjust-
ment of assigned values. If, however, the fair value of the net assets, including goodwill, exceeds the
fair value of the reporting unit, the model used to determine the fair value of the reporting unit
should be reassessed. If the re-estimation of the values assigned to the net assets, including goodwill,
and the reporting unit still indicates an excess of the value of the net assets, including goodwill, over
the value of the reporting unit, goodwill is to be tested for impairment. This would likely result in
an impairment loss being recorded on the goodwill at the time of the acquisition.

Impairment Procedures for Goodwill after Acquisition

The normal procedure is to perform impairment testing of goodwill on an annual basis. Impair-
ment testing should also be done between annual tests if it is more likely than not that events or
circumstances have occurred that could reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carry-
ing value.

An entity has the option of assessing qualitative factors to determine if it is likely (greater
than 50% probability) that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value. In
making that evaluation the company is to consider events and circumstances that cause the
decline in value. Examples would be macroeconomic events, industry and market considera-
tions, and cost factors. Qualitative testing is not required; an entity can make an annual election
to bypass the qualitative assessment and proceed directly to the first step of the goodwill
impairment test.
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Step 1: Quantitative Impairment Test. Goodwill is considered to be impaired if the
implied fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying value of the reporting
unit’s net assets (including goodwill). Remember, since the acquired net assets were recorded
at their fair values as of the acquisition date, it is the subsequent carrying (book) value based on
those amounts that is used for later periods of impairment testing.

Let us revisit the Lakeland Company example. Assume that the following new estimates
were made at the end of the first year:

Estimated implied fair value of the reporting unit, based on analysis of

projected cash flow (discounted at 12% annualrate) . ............... .. $320,000
Existing net book value (including values assigned on acquisition date) of the

reporting unit (including goodwill) ......... ... 345,000

Since the recorded net book value of the reporting unit exceeds its implied fair value, good-
will is considered to be impaired. If the estimated fair value exceeds the existing book value,
there is no impairment, and there is no need to proceed to Step 2 to calculate a goodwill impair-
ment loss.

Step2: Impairment Loss Calculation. 1f Step 1 indicates impairment, the impairment loss

must be estimated. The impairment loss for goodwill is the excess of the implied fair value

of the reporting unit over the fair value of the reporting unit’s identifiable net assets

(excluding goodwill) on the impairment date. These are the values that would be assigned to

those accounts if the reporting unit were purchased on the date of impairment measurement.
For our example, the following calculation was made for the impairment loss:

Estimated implied fair value of reporting unit, based on cash flow analysis

(discounted ata 12% annualrate) ................ ... . ... ..., $320,000
Less: Fair value of net assets on the date of measurement, exclusive of

goodwill ... 285,000
Implied fair value of goodwill ........ ... .. .. ... . $ 35,000
Existing recorded goodwill . ...... ... 63,000
Estimated impairmentloss . .. ... $ (28,000)

The following journal entry would be made:

Goodwill Impairment Loss. . ... 28,000
GoOodWill . 28,000

The impairment loss will be shown as a separate line item within the operating section
unless it is identified with a discontinued operation, in which case, it is part of the gain or loss
on disposal. Once goodwill is written down, it cannot be adjusted to a higher amount.

Two important issues must be understood at this point.

1. Step 1: qualitative impairment test compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit,
$320,000, to the unit’s book value (including goodwill), $345,000. Step 2: impairment
loss calculation compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit, $320,000, to the
unic’s estimated fair values (excluding goodwill), $285,000, on the impairment date.

2. While fair values of net assets are used to measure the impairment loss, they are not
recorded. The existing book values on the impairment date remain in place (unless they are
adjusted for their own impairment loss).

3. If a non-public company elects to amortize goodwill, Steps 1 and 2 still are applied to the
remaining, unamortized goodwill balance.

Significant disclosure requirements for goodwill exist in any period in which goodwill
changes. A note must accompany the balance sheet in any period that has a change in goodwill.
The note would explain the goodwill acquired, the goodwill impairment losses, and the good-
will written off as part of a disposal of a reporting unit. It is further required that information
be included that provides the details of any impairment loss recorded during the period. The
information would include the reporting unit involved, the circumstances leading to the
impairment, and the possibility of further adjustments.
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OBJECTIVE

Estimate the value of
goodwill.

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

REFLECTTION

e Procedures must be established for estimating goodwill.
* Goodwill is subject to impairment testing.

* When impaired, the goodwill is reduced to a lower estimated value.

APPENDIX: ESTIMATING THE VALUE OF GOODWILL

An acquirer may attempt to forecast the future income of a target company in order to arrive at
a logical purchase price. Goodwill is often, at least in part, a payment for above-normal
expected future earnings. A forecast of future income may start by projecting recent years’
incomes into the future. When this is done, it is important to factor out “one-time” occurrences
that will not likely recur in the near future. Examples would include extraordinary items, dis-
continued operations, or any other unusual event. Expected future income is compared to
“normal” income. Normal income is the product of the appropriate industry rate of return on
assets times the fair value of the gross assets (no deduction for liabilities) of the acquired com-
pany. Gross assets include specifically identifiable intangible assets such as patents and copy-
rights but do not include existing goodwill. The following calculation of earnings in excess of
normal might be made for the Johnson Company example on pages 16 and 17:

Expected average futureincome . . ........... ... L $100,000
Less normal return on assets:
Fair value of total identifiable assets .................. ... ... $846,000
Industry normal rate of return. .. ... x 10%
Normal returnonassets . . . ... 84,600
Expected annual earnings in excess of normal .. .......... ... ... $ 15,400

Several methods use the expected annual earnings in excess of normal to estimate goodwill.
A common approach is to pay for a given number of years of excess earnings. For instance,
Acquisitions, Inc., might offer to pay for four years of excess earnings, which would total
$61,600 ($15,400 X 4 years). Alternatively, the excess earnings could be viewed as an annuity.
The most optimistic purchaser might expect the excess earnings to continue forever. If so, the
buyer might capitalize the excess earnings as a perpetuity at the normal industry rate of return
according to the following formula:

Annual Excess Earnings
Industry Normal Rate of Return
~ $15,400
0.0
= $154,000

Goodwill =

Another estimation method views the factors that produce excess earnings to be of limited
duration, such as 10 years, for example. This purchaser would calculate goodwill as follows:

Goodwill = Discounted present value of a $15,400-per-year annuity for 10 years at 10%
= $15,400 x 10-year,10% present value of annuity factor
=$15,400 x 6.1446
= $94,627

Other analysts view the normal industry earning rate to be appropriate only for identifiable
assets and not goodwill. Thus, they might capitalize excess earnings at a higher rate of return to
reflect the higher risk inherent in goodwill.

All calculations of goodwill are only estimates used to assist in the determination of the price
to be paid for a company. For example, Acquisitions might add the $94,627 estimate of good-
will to the $705,000 fair value of Johnson’s other net assets to arrive at a tentative maximum
price of $799,627. However, estimates of goodwill may differ from actual negotiated goodwill.
If the final agreed-upon price for Johnson’s net assets was $790,000, the actual negotiated good-
will would be $85,000, which is the price paid less the fair value of the net assets acquired.
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REFLECTTION

¢ Goodwill estimates are based on an estimate of predicted income in excess of normal.

* Predicted excess income is typically discounted either as perpetuity or as a limited term
annuity.

UNDERSTANDING THE ISSUES

1. Identify each of the following business combinations as being vertical-backward,
vertical-forward, horizontal, product extension, market extension, or conglomerate:

a. An inboard marine engine manufacturer is acquired by an outboard engine
manufacturer.

. A cosmetics manufacturer acquires a drug store chain.

. Afinancial holding company acquires a mail order movie rental company.

. A computer manufacturer acquires a chip manufacturer.

. The Walt Disney Company acquires a broadcasting company.

. A California-based electric utility acquires a Colorado electric utility company.

SO Qo 0T

N

. Abrams Company is a sole proprietorship. The book value of its identifiable net assets
is $400,000, and the fair value of the same net assets is $600,000. It is agreed that the
business is worth $850,000. What advantage might there be for the seller if the com-
pany is exchanged for the common stock of another corporation as opposed to
receiving cash? Consider both the immediate and future impact.

w

. Major Corporation is acquiring Abrams Company by issuing its common stock in a
nontaxable exchange. Major is issuing common stock with a fair value of $850,000
for net identifiable assets with book and fair values of $400,000 and $600,000,
respectively. What values will Major assign to the identifiable assets, to goodwiill,
and to the deferred tax liability? Assume a 40% tax rate.

N

. Panther Company is about to acquire a 100% interest in Snake Company. Snake has
identifiable net assets with book and fair values of $300,000 and $500,000, respec-
tively. As payment, Panther will issue common stock with a fair value of $750,000.
How would the transaction be recorded if the acquisition is:

a. An acquisition of net assets?
b. An acquisition of Snake's common stock and Snake remains a separate legal
entity?

Ul

. Puncho Company is acquiring the net assets of Semos Company in exchange for com-
mon stock valued at $900,000. The Semos identifiable net assets have book and fair
values of $400,000 and $800,000, respectively. Compare accounting for the acquisi-
tion (including assignment of the price paid) by Puncho with accounting for the sale
by Semos.

03}

. Panther Company is acquiring the net assets of Sharon Company. The book and fair
values of Sharon’s accounts are as follows:

Accounts Book Fair

CUrent ASSets . . . v $100,000 $120,000
Land. ..o 50,000 80,000
Building and Equipment . ...... ... .. 300,000 400,000
Customer List .. ... 0 20,000
Liabilities . ... ... 100,000 100,000
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What values will be assigned to current assets, land, building and equipment, the
customer list, liabilities, goodwill, and gain under each of the following acquisition
price scenarios?

a. $800,000
b. $450,000

7. Pam Company acquires the net assets of Jam Company for an agreed-upon price of
$900,000 on July 1, 2015. The value is tentatively assigned as follows:

Current assets . . .vvv $ 100,000

land. ... 50,000

Equipment ... ... 200,000 (5-year life)
Building . . ..o 500,000 (20-year life)
Currentliabilities . . ............... .. . . (150,000)

Goodwill . ..o 200,000

Values are subject to change during the measurement period. Depreciation is
taken to the nearest month. The measurement period expires on July 1, 2016, at
which time the fair values of the equipment and building as of the acquisition date
are revised to $180,000 and $550,000, respectively.

At the end of 2016, what adjustments are needed for the financial statements for
the period ending December 31, 2015 and 2016?

8. Harms acquires Blake on January 1, 2015, for $1,000,000. The amount of $800,000 is
assigned to identifiable net assets. Goodwill is being impairment tested on December
31, 2019. There have not been any prior impairment adjustments. The following
values apply on that date:

Estimated fair value of the Blake operating unit. . ............ ... ... ..... $1,200,000
Fair value of net identifiable assets (excluding goodwill) ................... 1,120,000
Book value of net identifiable assets (including goodwill) . . ................. 1,250,000

The book values include those resulting from assignment of fair value to accounts
included in the January 1, 2015, acquisition.
Is goodwill impaired? If it is, what is the amount of the impairment adjustment?

9. What are the accounting ramifications of each of the three following situations
involving the payment of contingent consideration in an acquisition?

a. P Company issues 100,000 shares of its $50 fair value ($1 par) common stock as pay-
ment to buy S Company on January 1, 2015. P agrees to pay $100,000 cash two
years later if S income exceeds an income target. The target is exceeded.

b. P Company issues 100,000 shares of its $50 fair value ($1 par) common stock as pay-
ment to buy S Company on January 1, 2015. P agrees to issue 10,000 additional
shares of its stock two years later if S income exceeds an income target. The target
is exceeded.

¢. P Company issues 100,000 shares of its $50 fair value ($1 par) common stock as
payment to buy S Company on January 1, 2015. P agrees to issue 5,000 addi-
tional shares two years later if the fair value of P shares falls below $50 per
share. Two years later, the stock has a fair value below $50, and added shares
are issued to S.

10. P Company acquired the S Company for an agreed value of $900,000 and issues its
common stock to make the deal. The fair value of the Company S net identifiable
assets is $800,000. The issue costs of the stock used for payment is $50,000. If P Com-
pany was eligible to use IFRS for SME’s and decided to do so, how would the record-
ing of the transaction differ from U.S. GAAP?
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Exercise 1 (L0 2, 3, 4) Asset versus stock acquisition. Barstow Company is contemplat-
ing the acquisition of the net assets of Crown Company for $875,000 cash. To complete the
transaction, acquisition costs are $15,000. The balance sheet of Crown Company on the pur-
chase date is as follows:

Crown Company
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity

Currentassets . ....ooeeeen. $ 80,000 Licbilities ................ $100,000
land. ..o 70,000  Common stock ($10 par). . .. 100,000
Building . .............. ... L. 450,000  Paid-in capital in excess of par 150,000
Accumulated depreciation—building . . . (200,000)  Retained earnings ......... 250,000
Equipment . ... ... o 300,000
Accumulated depreciation—equipment . (100,000)

Totalassets. . .. ..o $ 600,000 Total liabilities and equity . $600,000

The following fair values have been obtained for Crown’s identifiable assets and liabilities:

Current assets . ..o v $ 85,000
land. .. ... 90,000
Building . . ..o 300,000
Equipment ... 275,000
Liabilities . ... ..o 102,000

1. Record the acquisition of the net assets of Crown Company on Barstow Company’s books.

2. Record the sale of the net assets on the books of Crown Company.

3. Record the acquisition of 100% of the common stock of Crown Company on Barstow’s
books. Crown Company will remain a separate legal entity.

Exercise 2 (LO 3, 4) Acquisition with goodwill. Smith Company is acquired by Roan
Corporation on July 1, 2015. Roan exchanges 60,000 shares of its $1 par stock, with a fair value
of $18 per share, for the net assets of Smith Company.

Roan incurs the following costs as a result of this transaction:

Acquisition costs ... ... $25,000
Stock registration and issuance costs. . . ... ...... ... 10,000
Totalcosts .. .o $35,000

The balance sheet of Smyth Company, on the day of the acquisition, is as follows:

Smith Company
Balance Sheet

July 1,2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity

Cash ... . $ 100,000 Currentliabilities . ............... $ 80,000
Inventory .................. 250,000 Bondspayable ................. 500,000 $ 580,000
Property, plant, and equipment: Stockholders’ equity:

land. ... ... $200,000 Commonstock . ............... $200,000

Buildings (nef) ............ 250,000 Paid-in capital in excess of par ... 100,000

Equipment (net) ........... 200,000 650,000 Retained earnings ............. 120,000 420,000
Totalassets ................ $1,000,000 Total liabilities and equity . ... .. ... $1,000,000
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The appraised fair values as of July 1, 2015, is as follows:
INVENTOTY . o ettt e e $270,000
Equipment . ..o o 220,000
Land. .« 180,000
Buildings . .. oo 300,000
Currentliabilities . ... ... 80,000
Bondspayable ... ... ... . 425,000
Record the acquisition of Smyth Company on the books of Radar Corporation.
Exercise 3 (LO 3, 4) Acquisition with special valuations. Pederson Company acquires
the net assets of Shelby Company by issuing 100,000 of its $1 par value shares of common
stock. The shares have a fair value of $20 each. Just prior to the acquisition, Shelby’s balance
sheet is as follows:
Shelby Company
Balance Sheet
January 1,2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity
Accounts receivable ........ ... ... ... $100,000 Current liabilities . . .................. $ 80,000
Inventory .. ... 210,000  Bondspayable ............. ... ..., 200,000  $280,000
Equipment(nef) .............. .. .. ... 100,000  Stockholders’ equity:
land. ... o 200,000 Common stock ($1par)............. $ 10,000
Building (net) ... ... 300,000 Retained earnings .. ............... 620,000 630,000
Totalassefs. . ..o $910,000  Total liabilities and equity .. ........... $910,000
Fair values agree with book values except for the building, which is appraised at $450,000.
The following additional information is available:
¢ The equipment will be sold for an estimated price of $200,000. A 10% commission will be
paid to a broker.
¢ A major R&D project is underway. The accumulated costs are $56,000, and the estimated
value of the work is $90,000.
¢ A warranty attaches to products sold in the past. The estimated future repair costs under the
warranty are $40,000.
¢ Shelby has a customer list that has value. It is estimated that the list will provide additional
income of $100,000 for three years. An intangible asset such as this is valued at a 20% rate of
return.
Record the acquisition of Shelby Company on the books of Pederson Company. Provide
calculations where needed.
Exercise 4 (LO 3, 4) Bargain acquisition. Norton Corporation agrees to acquire the net
assets of Payco Corporation. Just prior to the acquisition, Payco’s balance sheet is as follows:
Payco Corporation
Balance Sheet
January 1,2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity
Accounts receivable ........ ... ... ... $200,000 Current liabilities . . .................. $ 80,000
Invenfory . ......... ... ... 270,000  Mortgage payable ........ ... ... ... 250,000  $330,000
Equipment(nef) .............. ... ... 100,000  Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock ($10par)............ $100,000
Retained earnings . ................ 140,000 240,000
Totalassets. . . ... $570,000 Total liabilities and equity . ............ $570,000
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Fair values agree with book values except for the equipment, which has an estimated fair
value of $40,000. Also, it has been determined that brand-name copyrights have an estimated
value of $15,000. Norton Corporation pays $25,000 in acquisition costs to consummate the
transaction.

Record the acquisition on the books of Norton Corporation assuming the cash paid to
Payco Corporation is $160,000.

Suggestion: Use value analysis to guide your calculations and entries.

Exercise 5 (LO 4) Measurement period. Avery Company acquires the net assets of lowa
Company on July 1, 2015. The net assets acquired include plant assets that are provisionally
estimated to have a fair value of $600,000 with a 10-year usable life and no salvage value.
Depreciation is recorded based on months in service. The remaining unallocated amount of the
price paid is $300,000, which is recorded as goodwill.

At the end of 2015, Avery prepares the following statements (includes Iowa Company for
the last six months):

Balance Sheet

Currentassets .............. $ 300,000 Currentliabilities.............. $ 300,000
Equipment (net) ............. 600,000 Bondspayable ............... 500,000
Plant assets (nef). ............ 1,600,000  Common stock ($1 par)......... 50,000
Goodwill . ... 300,000  Paid-in capital in excess of par . . . 1,300,000
Retained earnings .. ........... 650,000

Totalassets. . . ............ $2,800,000 Total liabilities and equity . . . .. $2,800,000

Summary Income Statement

Salesrevenue . . ... ... $800,000
Costofgoodssold. . ... ... . ... . ... 520,000
Gross profit .. ... $280,000
Operating @XPENSESs . . . ...t $150,000

Depreciation expense .. ... 80,000 230,000
NetinCome . o . vttt $ 50,000

In March 2016, the final estimated fair value of the acquired plant assets is $700,000 with

no change in the estimate of useful life or salvage value.

1. Prepare any journal entries required in March 2016.
2. Prepare the revised balance sheet and income statement for 2015 that will be included in the
2016 comparative statements.

Exercise 6 (LO 5) Deferred tax liability. Your client, Lewison International, has informed
you that it has reached an agreement with Herro Company to acquire all of Herro’s assets. This
transaction will be accomplished through the issue of Lewison’s common stock.

After your examination of the financial statements and the acquisition agreement, you have
discovered the following important facts.

The Lewison common stock issued has a fair value of $800,000. The fair value of Herro’s
assets, net of all liabilities, is $700,000. All asset book values equal their fair values except for
one machine valued at $200,000. This machine was originally purchased two years ago by
Herro for $180,000. This machine has been depreciated using the straight-line method with an
assumed useful life of 10 years and no salvage value. The acquisition is to be considered a tax-
free exchange for tax purposes.

Assuming a 30% tax rate, what amounts will be recorded for the machine, deferred tax liabi-
lity, and goodwill?
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Exercise 7 (LO 5) Tax loss carryover. Lakecraft Company has the following balance sheet
. on December 31, 2015, when it is acquired for $950,000 in cash by Argo Corporation:
-
Lakecraft Company
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity
Current assets . ...vvee e $100,000  Currentliabilities . . .................. $ 60,000
Equipment(net) ....... ... ... ... ... 200,000  Stockholders’ equity:
Building (net) . ...l 270,000 Common stock ($5par)............. $100,000
Retained earnings . ................ 410,000 510,000
Totalassets. . . ... . $570,000 Total liabilities and equity . ............ $570,000

All assets have fair values equal to their book values. The combination is structured as a tax-
free exchange. Lakecraft Company has a tax loss carryforward of $300,000, which it has not
recorded. The balance of the $300,000 tax loss carryover is considered fully realizable. Argo is
taxed at a rate of 30%.

Record the acquisition of Lakecraft Company by Argo Corporation.

Exercise 8 (LO 4) Contingent consideration. Grant Company purchased the net assets
of Harding Company on January 1, 2015, and made the following entry to record the purchase:

Current AsSets . .. oo 100,000

Equipment . ..o 160,000

Land. ..o o 50,000

Buildings . . o 300,000

GoodWill . . oo 100,000
Note Payable. .. ... ... 50,000
Accounttobedetermined ... ... ... ... 40,000
Common Stock ($Tpar). ... 100,000
Paid-in Capital in Excessof Par . .......... .. ... ... ... ... ... 520,000

Provide the correct title for the $40,000 credit account above and make the required entry
on January 1, 2017, for each of the following independent contingency agreements:

1. An additional cash payment would be made on January 1, 2017, equal to twice the amount
by which average annual earnings of the Harding Division exceed $25,000 per year, prior to
January 1, 2017. Net income was $50,000 in 2015 and $60,000 in 2016. Assume that the
expected value of the agreement on the purchase date was $40,000. Assume that no adjust-
ment was made at the end of 2015 or 2016.

2. Added shares would be issued on January 1, 2017, equal in value to twice the amount by
which average annual earnings of the Harding Division exceed $25,000 per year, prior to
January 1, 2017. Net income was $50,000 in 2015 and $60,000 in 2016. The market price
of the shares on January 1, 2017, was $5. Assume that the expected value of the agreement
on the purchase date was $40,000. The agreement is classified as an equity transaction.

3. Added shares or cash (at the option of the acquirer) would be issued on January 1, 2017, to
compensate for any fall in the value of Grant common stock below $6 per share. The market
price of the shares on January 1, 2017, was $5. Assume that the expected value of the agree-
ment on the purchase date was $40,000 and that it is classified as a liability. Assume that no
adjustment was made at the end of 2015 or 2016. Shares were issued on January 1, 2017.

Exercise 9 (LO 7) Goodwill impairment. Anton Company acquired the net assets of Hair
Company on January 1, 2015, for $600,000. Using a business valuation model, the estimated
value of Anton Company was $650,000 immediately after the acquisition. The fair value of
Anton’s net assets was $400,000.

1. What amount of goodwill was recorded by Anton Company when it acquired Hair
Company?
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2. Using the information on page 40, answer the questions posed in the following two inde-
pendent situations:

a. On December 31, 2016, there were indications that goodwill might have been impaired.
At that time, the existing recorded book value of Anton Company’s net assets, including
goodwill, was $500,000. The fair value of the net assets, exclusive of goodwill, was esti-
mated to be $340,000. The value of the business was estimated to be $520,000. Is good-
will impaired? If so, what adjustment is needed?

b. On December 31, 2018, there were indications that goodwill might have been impaired.
At that time, the existing recorded book value of Anton Company’s net assets, including
goodwill, was $450,000. The fair value of the net assets, exclusive of goodwill, was esti-
mated to be $340,000. The value of the business was estimated to be $400,000. Is good-

will impaired? If so, what adjustment is needed?

APPENDIX EXERCISE

Exercise 1A-1 (LO 9) Estimating goodwill. Green Company is considering acquiring the
assets of Gold Corporation by assuming Gold’s liabilities and by making a cash payment. Gold
Corporation has the following balance sheet on the date negotiations occur:

iy

Gold Corporation
Balance Sheet
January 1, 2016

Assets Liabilities and Equity
Accounts receivable ............ $100,000  Total liabilities . .. .............. $200,000
Inventory . ............. ... 100,000  Capital stock ($10par).......... 100,000
land. ... 100,000  Paid-in capital in excess of par . . .. 200,000
Building (net) . ................. 220,000 Retainedearnings .............. 300,000
Equipment(net) ....... ... ... .. 280,000
Total assets. . ................ $800,000 Total liabilities and equity . .. . .. $800,000

Appraisals indicate that the inventory is undervalued by $25,000, the building is underva-
lued by $80,000, and the equipment is overstated by $30,000. Past earnings have been consid-
ered above average and were as follows:

Year Net Income
2011 $ 90,000
2012 110,000
2013 120,000
2014 140,000*
2015 130,000

*Includes a nonrecurring gain of $40,000.

It is assumed that the average operating income of the past five years will continue. In this
industry, the average return on assets is 12% on the fair value of the total identifiable assets.

1. Prepare an estimate of goodwill based on each of the following assumptions:

a. The purchasing company paid for five years of excess earnings.

b. Excess earnings will continue indefinitely and are to be capitalized at the industry normal
return.

c. Excess earnings will continue for only five years and should be capitalized at a higher rate
of 16%, which reflects the risk applicable to goodwill.

2. Determine the actual goodwill recorded if Green pays $690,000 cash for the net assets of
Gold Corporation and assumes all existing liabilities.
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sheet on the date of acquisition:

Part I COMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

PROBLEMS

Problem 1-1 (LO 3, 4) Value analysis, alternative prices. Born Corporation agrees to
acquire the net assets of Wren Corporation on January 1, 2015. Wren has the following balance

Wren Corporation
Balance Sheet
January 1,2015

Liabilities and Equity

Accounts receivable . ........
Inventory ..................
Other currentassets. . ........
Equipment (net) . ............
Trademark . ................

Total assets. . .............

294,000

30,000
$550,000

Current liabilities . .. ........... $125,000
Bonds payable ............... 100,000
Commonstock. . .............. 200,000
Paid-in capital in excess of par . . . 50,000
Retained earnings .. ........... 75,000

Total liabilities and equity .. . . . $550,000

An appraiser determines that in-process R&D exists and has an estimated value of $20,000.
The appraisal indicates that the following assets have fair values that differ from their book

values:

Fair Value
Invenfory ... $ 98,000
Equipment ... . o 340,000
Trademark . ... ... . 30,000

Required » » » B B Use value analysis to prepare the entry on the books of Born Corporation to acquire the net
assets of Wren Corporation under each of the following purchase price scenarios:

1. Purchase price is $540,000.
2. Purchase price is $350,000.

Problem 1-2 (2O 3) Purchase of two companies with goodwill. Bar Corporation has
been looking to expand its operations and has decided to acquire the assets of Vicker Company
and Kendal Company. Bar will issue 30,000 shares of its $10 par common stock to acquire the
net assets of Vicker Company and will issue 15,000 shares to acquire the net assets of Kendal

Company.

Vicker and Kendal have the following balance sheets as of December 31, 2015:

Assets Vicker Kendal

Accountsreceivable ... ... $ 200,000 $ 80,000
Inventory . . ... o 150,000 85,000
Property, plant, and equipment:

Land. .o 150,000 50,000

Buildings . ... o 500,000 300,000

Accumulated depreciation. .. ... (150,000) (110,000)
Total assets . . ..o $ 850,000 $ 405,000
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Liabilities and Equity Vicker Kendal
Current liabilities . . . . ... $160,000 $ 55,000
Bondspayable ... ... . 100,000 100,000
Stockholders’ equity:
Commonsstock ($10par). ... 300,000 100,000
Retained earnings .. ............. 290,000 150,000
Total liabilitiesand equity .. ......... ... .. ... .. ... $850,000 $405,000

The following fair values are agreed upon by the firms:

Assets Vicker Kendal
INVENTOTY © o\ttt et e $190,000 $100,000
Land. ..o 300,000 80,000
Buildings .. ... 450,000 400,000
Bondspayable . ...... ... . .. 90,000 95,000

Bar’s stock is currently trading at $40 per share. Bar will incur $5,000 of acquisition costs in
acquiring Vicker and $4,000 of acquisition costs in acquiring Kendal. Bar will also incur
$15,000 of registration and issuance costs for the shares issued in both acquisitions.

Bar’s stockholders’ equity is as follows:

Common stock ($10par). ....................... $1,200,000
Paid-in capital in excessof par ............. ... ... 800,000
Retainedearnings . . ............ ... . ... ..., 750,000

Record the acquisitions on the books of Bar Corporation. Value analysis is suggested to guide <« € € €4 € Required
your work.

Problem 1-3 (LO 3, 4, 6) Pro forma income after an acquisition. Moon Company is
contemplating the acquisition of Yount, Inc., on January 1, 2015. If Moon acquires Yount, it
will pay $730,000 in cash to Yount and acquisition costs of $20,000.

The January 1, 2015, balance sheet of Yount, Inc., is anticipated to be as follows:

iy

Yount, Inc.
Pro Forma Balance Sheet

January 1,2015

Assets Liabilities and Equity
Cash equivalents . . .......... $100,000 Current liabilities . . . ........... $ 30,000
Accounts receivable . ... ... .. 120,000 Long-term liabilities . ........... 165,000
Inventory .................. 50,000 Common stock ($10par). .. .. ... 80,000
Depreciable fixed assets . . . . . . 200,000 Retained earnings .. ........... 115,000
Accumulated depreciation . . .. (80,000)
Totalassets. .. ............ $390,000 Total liabilities and equity . . . . . $390,000

Fair values agree with book values except for the inventory and the depreciable fixed assets,
which have fair values of $70,000 and $400,000, respectively.
Your projections of the combined operations for 2015 are as follows:

Combined sales. .. ..o $200,000
Combined cost of goods sold, including Yount’s beginning inventory, at book value,

whichwillbe soldin 2015 ... ... . 120,000
Other expenses not including depreciation of Yountassets ........................ 25,000
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Depreciation on Yount fixed assets is straight-line using a 20-year life with no salvage value.

Required » » » » B 1. Prepare a value analysis for the acquisition and record the acquisition.
2. Prepare a pro forma income statement for the combined firm for 2015. Show supporting
calculations for consolidated income. Ignore tax issues.

Problem 1-4 (LO 3, 4) Alternate consideration, bargain. Kiln Corporation is consider-
ing the acquisition of Williams Incorporated. Kiln has asked you, its accountant, to evaluate the
various offers it might make to Williams Incorporated. The December 31, 2015, balance sheet
of Williams is as follows:

Williams Incorporated
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity

Current assefs: Accounts payable .. ............. $ 40,000

Accounts receivable. .. ..... ... $ 50,000

Inventory .......... ... 300,000

$350,000  Stockholders’ equity:

Noncurrent assets: Commonstock................ $ 40,000

land. ...l $ 20,000 Paid-in capital in excess of par . .. 110,000

Building (net) . ............... 70,000 90,000 Retained earnings .. ........... 250,000 400,000
Totalassets .. ................. $440,000 Total liabilities and equity ... ...... $440,000

The following fair values differ from existing book values:

Invenfory ......... .. ..l $250,000
land. .. ... ... 40,000
Building . ............... L 120,000

Required » » B » B> Record the acquisition entry for Kiln Corporation that would result under each of the alterna-
tive offers. Value analysis is suggested.

1. Kiln Corporation issues 20,000 of its $10 par common stock with a fair value of $25 per
share for the net assets of Williams Incorporated.
2. Kiln Corporation pays $385,000 in cash.

Problem 1-5 (1O 3, 4) Revaluation of assets. Jack Company is a corporation that was
organized on July 1, 2015. The June 30, 2020, balance sheet for Jack is as follows:

Assets

Investments . ... .. $ 400,500
Accountsreceivable . ..... ... . L. $1,250,000
Allowance for doubtful accounts. .. ........... (300,000) 950,000
Inventory ... ... 1,500,000
Prepaidinsurance .. .......... ... ..l 18,000
Land. ..o 58,000
Machinery and equipment (net) .............. 1,473,500
Goodwill ...... ... 100,000

Totalassets. . . ..ooove $4,500,000

Currentliabilities . . ........ ... ... ... ... ... $1,475,000
Common stock ($10par). ...t 1,200,000
Retained earnings .. ............ ... . ... .. .. 1,825,000

Total liabilities and equity . .................. $4,500,000
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The experience of other companies over the last several years indicates that the machinery
and equipment can be sold at 130% of its book value.

An analysis of the accounts receivable indicates that the realizable value is $925,000. An
independent appraisal made in June 2020 values the land at $70,000. Using the lower-of-cost-
or-market rule, inventory is to be restated at $1,200,000.

Calway Corporation plans to exchange 18,000 of its shares for the 120,000 Jack shares.
During June 2020, the fair value of a share of Calway Corporation is $270. Acquisition costs
are $12,000.

The stockholders’ equity account balances of Calway Corporation as of June 30, 2015, are
as follows:

Common stock ($10Par). . ..ot $2,000,000
Paid-in capitalinexcessof par ... ... . 580,000
Retained earnings . . . ...ttt 2,496,400
Total stockholders’ equity . ..... ... $5,076,400

Record the acquisition of Jack Company by Calway on July 1, 2020. Use value analysis to sup-
port the acquisition entries.

Problem 1-6 (LO 3, 4) Cash purchase with goodwill. Tweeden Corporation is contem-
plating the acquisition of the net assets of Sylvester Corporation in anticipation of expanding

45

< 4 < < < Required

its operations. The balance sheet of Sylvester Corporation on December 31, 2015, is as =
follows:
Sylvester Corporation
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015

Current assets: Current liabilities:
Notes receivable . . ............. $ 24,000 Accounts payable .. ........ ..., $ 45,000
Accounts receivable ............ 56,000 Payroll and benefit-related liabilities 12,500
Inventory .......... ... ... ... 31,000
Other currentassets. . ........... 18,000 Debt maturing inoneyear. .. .. ... 10,000

Total currentassets. .. ......... $129,000 Total current liabilities ... ... ... $ 67,500
Investments .. ................. 65,000
Fixed assets: Other liabilities:
land. ..o o $ 32,000 Longtermdebt........... ... ... $248,000
Building . ... 245,000 Payroll and benefit-related liabilities 156,000
Equipment . ... . oo 387,000

Total fixed assets . ............ 664,000 Total other liabilities. . . ........ 404,000
Intangibles: Stockholders’ equity:
Goodwill ... . $ 45,000 Commonstock. . ........ ... .. $100,000
Patents................ii 23,000 Paid-in capital in excess of par . . .. 250,000
Tradenames .................. 10,000 Retained earnings .. ............ 114,500

Total intangibles ............. 78,000 Totalequity ................. 464,500
Totalassets .. ................. $936,000 Total liabilities and equity ... .. ... $936,000

An appraiser for Tweeden determined the fair values of Sylvester’s assets and liabilities to be
as shown on next page.
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Assets Liabilities
Notesreceivable . . .. ... .. ... .. .. .. ... $ 24,000 Accountspayable . ... $ 45,000
Accountsreceivable . ... ... 56,000 Payroll and benefit-related liabilities—current. . . . . 12,500
Inventory ......... ... il 30,000
Othercurrentassets. . ... ... 15,000 Debt maturinginoneyear. ................... 10,000
Investments .. ...... .. ... . ... .. .. .. ... 63,000
land. ..o 55,000 longtermdebt. ... 248,000
Building .. ... 275,000 Payroll and benefit-related liabilities—longterm . . . 156,000
Equipment ... o 426,000
Goodwill . ... —
Patents. .. ... ... 20,000
Tradenames ........... i 15,000

Required > » » > >

iy

The agreed-upon purchase price is $580,000 in cash. Acquisition costs paid in cash total
$20,000.

Using the above information, do value analysis and prepare the entry on the books of Twee-
den Corporation to acquire the net assets of Sylvester Corporation on December 31, 2015.

Problem 1-7 (L0 3, 4) Acquisition with contingent consideration. Holt Corporation
is contemplating the acquisition of Sambo Company’s net assets on December 31, 2015. It is
considering making an offer, which would include a cash payout of $225,000 along with giving
15,000 shares of its $2 par value common stock that is currently selling for $20 per share. Holt
also agrees that it will pay an additional $50,000 on January 1, 2018, if the average net income
of Sambo’s business unit exceeds $80,000 for 2016 and 2017. The likelihood of reaching that
target is estimated to be 60%. The balance sheet of Sambo Company is given below, along with
estimated fair values of the net assets to be acquired.

Sambo Company
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015
Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
Current assets: Current liabilities:
Notes receivable . . ............ $ 33,000 $ 33,000  Accountspayable ............. $ 63,000 $ 63,000
Inventory . ................... 80,000 80,000 Taxespayable................ 15,000 15,000
Prepaid expenses ............. 15,000 15,000 Interestpayable............... 3,000 3,000
Total currentassets. . .. ....... $128,000 $128,000 Total current liabilities ... .. ... $ 81,000 $ 81,000
Investments . ................. $ 36,000 $ 55,000
Fixed assets: Other liabilities:
land. ..o $ 15000  $ 90,000 Bondspayable ............... $250,000  $250,000
Buildings . ................... 115,000 170,000  Discount on bonds payable. . . . .. (18,000) (30,000)
Equipment . ... ... ..ol 256,000 250,000
Vehicles. . ................... 32,000 25,000
Total fixed assets . ........... $418,000 $535,000 Total other liabilities. . ... ... .. $232,000 $220,000
Intangibles: Stockholders’ equity:
Franchise................. ... $ 56,000 $ 70,000 Commonstock................ $ 50,000
Paid-in capital in excess of par . .. 200,000
Retained earnings . .. .......... 75,000
Total equity ................ $325,000
Totalassets. .. .............. $638,000 $788,000  Total liabilities and equity . . .. . .. $638,000
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1. Do value analysis and prepare the entry on the books of Holt Corporation to record the <« €4 € € < Required
acquisition of Sambo Company.

2. Assume that the net income of the Sambo business unit is $120,000 for 2016. As a result,
the likelihood of paying the contingent consideration is believed to be 90%. What, if any,
adjusting entry is required as of December 31, 20162

Problem 1-8 (LO 3, 4) Cash acquisition with a gain. Heinrich Company, owned by
Elennor and Al Heinrich, has been experiencing financial difficulty for the past several years.

Both Elennor and Al have not been in good health and have decided to find a buyer. P&F Inter- :-“?
national, after reviewing the financial statements for the previous three years, has decided to
make an offer of $150,000 for the net assets of Heinrich Company on January 1, 2016. The
balance sheet as of this date is as follows:
Heinrich Company
Balance Sheet
January 1,2016
Current assets: Current liabilities:
Accountsreceivable ... ....... ... .. .. .. .. .. $ 87,000 Accountspayable ........ ... $ 56,000
Inventory .. ...t 36,000 Accrued liabilities . ......... ... ... ... . ... 14,000
Othercurrentassets. . ...................... M -
Total currentassets. .. ... ... . $137,000 Total current liabilities .. .................. $ 70,000
Fixed assets: Other liabilities:
Equipment . ... .. $105,000 Notes payable. . ........... ... ... ....... $ 30,000
Vehicles. . ... ... .. ... ... . . ... .. 69,000 -
Total fixed assets .. ...................... $174,000 Total liabilities . ........... .. ... .. ...... $100,000

Intangibles: Stockholders’ equity:
Mailinglists . .......... ... $ 4,000 Commonstock. .. ..o $ 60,000

Paid-in capital in excessof par ............... 100,000

Retained earnings ... ...t 55,000

Totalequity ..o $215,000
Totalassets ............................ $315,000 Total liabilities and equity . .................. $315,000

In reviewing the above balance sheet, P&F’s appraiser felt the liabilities were stated at their
fair values. He placed the following fair values on the assets of the company.

Heinrich Company
Fair Values
January 1, 2016

Current assets:

Accountsreceivable . .. ... $ 90,000

INVENTOTY oo 30,000

Other current assets. . . ..ottt e 8,000
Total CUMTENt ASSES. . . o o oo e $128,000

Fixed assets:

EqQUIPMeENT .« o $ 80,000

Vehicles . . oo 50,000
Total fixed ASSEts . . oot $130,000

Intangibles:

Mailing list. . ..o $ 10,000
TOMAl ASSEES. « v v o ettt e e e $268,000
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Using this information, do value analysis, and prepare the entry to record the acquisition of the
net assets of Heinrich Company on the books of P&F International.

Problem 1-9 (1O 6) Income statements after acquisition. On July 1, 2015, Faber
Enterprises acquired Ann’s Tool Company. Prior to the merger of the two companies, each com-
pany calculated its income for the entire year ended December 31, 2015. (It may be assumed
that all Ann amounts occurred evenly over the year.) These estimates are as follows:

Income Statement Accounts Faber Enterprises Ann'’s Tool Company

SalesRevenue ...................... $550,000 $140,000
Costof GoodsSold .. ................ 200,000 50,000
GrossProfit . ..................... $350,000 $ 90,000
SellingExpenses . ................... $125,000 $30,000
Administrative Expenses . ............. 150,000 45,000
Depreciation Expense . ............... 13,800 7,500
Amortization Expense .. ........... ... 5,600 2,000
Total Operating Expenses ... ........ 294,400 84,500
Operatinglncome .. ................. $ 55,600 $ 5,500
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses:
Interest Expense . . . ................ 4,000
Interestlncome. ................... 7,000
DividendIncome .................. 4,000
Income Before Taxes . . ............... $ 66,600 $ 1,500
Provision for Income Taxes (30% rate). . . . 19,980 450
Netlncome . ....... .. ... ....... $ 46,620 $ 1,050

An analysis of the merger agreement revealed that the purchase price exceeded the fair value of
all assets by $40,000. The book and fair values of Ann’s Tool Company on July 1, 2015, are given
in the table below along with an estimate of the useful lives of each of these asset categories.

Asset Account Book Value Fair Value Useful Life
Inventory .................. $30,000 $ 28,000 Sold August 2015
land. ... ... 50,000 80,000 Unlimited
Buildings . ................. 75,000 125,000 25 years
Equipment ... o L 32,000 56,000 8 years
Truck ..o 1,000 3,000 2 years
Patent. ....... ... ... .. ... 12,000 18,000 6 years
Computer Software . . ........ 0 10,000 2 years
Copyright ............ ..., 0 20,000 10 years

Management believes the company will be in a combined tax bracket of 30%. The company
uses the straight-line method of computing depreciation and amortization and assigns a zero
salvage value.

1. Using the above information, prepare the Faber Enterprises income statement for the year
ending December 31, 2015. Provide supporting calculations.

2. Prepare the required summarized disclosure of 2015 results if the acquisition occurs at the
start of the year.

Problem 1-10 (10 3, 4, 6) Issue stock, goodwiill, pro forma disclosure.

Part A. Garman International wants to expand its operations and decides to acquire the net
assets of Iris Company as of January 1, 2016. Garman issues 10,000 shares of its $5 par value
common stock for the net assets of Iris. Garman’s stock is selling for $27 per share. In addition,
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Garman pays $10,000 in acquisition costs. A balance sheet for Iris Company as of December

31,2015, is as follows:

Current assets:
Accounts receivable ..............

Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total currentassets. . ............

Investments . ....................

Fixed assets:

land. . ... .. $30,000

Building.......... ... ... L. 70,000

Equipment . ... ... ool 56,000
Total fixed assets . ..............

Intangibles: .. ........... ... ..

Patent. . ..o $17,000

Copyrights. .. ... 22,000

Goodwill ... 8,000

Total intangibles

Total assets

$ 15,000
38,000
12,000

$ 65,000

19,000

156,000

47,000
$287,000

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . ........... ... $ 22,000
Interest payable. .. ............... 2,000
Total current liabilities . .......... $ 24,000
Other liabilities:
Long-term notes payable . .. ..... ... 40,000
Total liabilities . ................ $ 64,000
Stockholders’ equity:
Commonstock. .. ..oovo $ 40,000
Paid-in capital in excess of par ... ... 120,000
Retained earnings .. .............. 63,000
Totalequity ................... 223,000
Total liabilities and equity .. ........ $287,000

In reviewing Iris’s balance sheet and in consulting with various appraisers, Garman has
determined that the inventory is understated by $2,000, the land is understated by $10,000,
the building is understated by $15,000, and the copyrights are understated by $4,000. Garman
has also determined that the equipment is overstated by $6,000, and the patent is overstated by

$5,000.

The investments have a fair value of $33,000 on December 31, 2015, and the amount of

goodwill (if any) must be determined.

Part Al. Using the information above, do value analysis, and record the acquisition of Iris

<4 4 4 < < Required

Company on Garman International’s books on January 1, 2016.

Part A2. Garman International wishes to estimate its pro forma disclosure of operations for
2016 resulting from acquisition of Iris. Pro forma disclosure includes revenue and net income.
Projected income statements for 2016 are as follows:

Garman Iris
Income Statement Accounts International Company

SalesRevenue ......... ... .. ... . $(350,000) $(125,000)
Costof Goods Sold .. ......... ... .. 147,000 55,000

GrossProfit ... . $(203,000) $ (70,000)
Selling Expenses™ . ..., $ 100,000 $ 20,000
Administrative Expenses® .. ......... ... . ... .. 50,000 30,000
Depreciation Expense ... ....... ... .. ... ... 12,500 8,600
Amortization Expense . ... ... oL 1,000 3,900

Total Operating Expenses .. ................... $ 163,500 $ 62,500
OperatingIncome . ....... ... i $ (39,500) $ (7,500)
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses:
InterestExpense. ...... ... .. L 3,000
Investmentincome . ........... .. ... ..., (12,000) (4,500)
Income Before Taxes . .............coovveiio... $ (51,500 $ (9,000
Provision for Income Taxes (40%rate). .. ........... 20,600 3,600

Netlncome ................cccoiiiiiio... $ (30,900) $ (5,400

*Does not include depreciation or amortization expense.
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Garman International estimates that the following amount of depreciation and amortiza-

tion should be taken on the revalued assets of Iris Company:

Building depreciation .. ... ... . $4,000
Equipment depreciation .. ........ ... 5,000
Patent amortization . ... . 1,200
Copyrightamortization . . ... .. ... 2,600

Part B1. Using the above information, prepare a pro forma income statement for Garman
International combined with Iris Company for the year ended December 31, 2016. Schedule
your calculations for revenue and net income.

Problem 1-11 (LO 3, 4 Revaluation of leases Sentry, Inc., acquires for $2,300,000 in
cash, the net assets of New Equipment Company. The acquisition is made on December 31,
2015, at which time New Equipment has prepared the following balance sheet:

New Equipment Company
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity
Current assets . ..o $ 100,000 Currentliabilities........... ... ... ...... $ 150,000
Assets under operating leases . .. ............. 520,000  Obligation under capital lease of equipment . . . . 35,000
Net investment in direct financing (capital leases). 730,000  Commonstock ($5par). ... 100,000
Paid-in capital in excessof par ............... 400,000
Leased equipment under capital lease (nef). . . . .. 40,000  Retainedearnings ................... ... 955,000
Buildings (net) . ... 200,000
Land. .o 50,000
Totalassets. .. ..o $1,640,000 Total liabilities and equity . ................ $1,640,000

Required » » » » »

The following information is available concerning the assets and liabilities of New

Equipment:

a.

Current assets and liabilities are stated fairly. No payments resulting from leases are included
in current accounts, since all payments are due each December 31 and payment for 2015 has
been made.

. Assets under operating leases have an estimated value of $580,000. This figure includes con-

sideration of remaining rents and the value of the assets at the end of the lease terms.

. The net investment in direct financing leases represents receivables at their discounted pre-

sent values. All leases except one are based on the current market interest rate of 12%. One
equipment lease is included at an amount of $199,636. This lease includes five and of the
year payments of $50,000 present valued at an 8% interest rate. This lease should be
adjusted to its real fair value using a 12% annual interest rate.

d. The buildings and land have appraised fair values of $400,000 and $100,000, respectively.

. The leased equipment under the capital lease pertains to a computer used by New Equip-

ment. The obligation under the capital lease of equipment includes the present value of five
remaining payments of $9,233 due at the end of each year and discounted at 10%. Title
transfers to the lessee at the end of the lease term. The current interest rate for this type of
transaction is 12%. The fair value of the equipment under the lease is $60,000.

New Equipment has expended $100,000 on R&D leading to new equipment applications.
Sentry estimates the value of this work to be $200,000.

. New Equipment has been named in a $200,000 lawsuit involving an accident by a lessee

using its equipment. It is likely that New Equipment will be found liable in the amount of
$50,000.

Record the acquisition of New Equipment Company by Sentry, Inc. Carefully support your
entry. You may assume that the price will allow goodwill to be recorded.
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Problem 1-12 (LO 5) Tax-free exchange, tax loss carryover. Hanson Company issues
10,000 shares of $10 par common stock for the net assets of Marcus Incorporated on December
31, 2016. The stock has a fair value of $65 per share. Acquisition costs are $10,000, and the cost
of issuing the stock is $3,000. At the time of the purchase, Marcus had the following summar-
ized balance sheet:

Assets Liabilities and Equity
Currentassets . ............. $150,000 Bonds payable ............. $200,000
Equipment(nef) ............. 200,000 Common stock ($10 par). .. ... 100,000
Land and buildings (nef) ... ... 250,000 Retained earnings .. ......... 300,000
Total assets. .. ............ $600,000 Total liabilities and equity . .. $600,000

The only fair value differing from book value is equipment, which is worth $350,000. Mar-
cus has $180,000 in operating losses in prior years. The previous asset values are also the tax
basis of the assets, which will be the tax basis for Hanson, since the acquisition is a tax-free
exchange. Hanson is confident that it will recover the entire tax loss carryforward applicable to
the past losses of Marcus. The applicable tax rate is 30%.

Record the acquisition of the net assets of Marcus Incorporated by Hanson Company. You may
assume the price paid will allow goodwill to be recorded. Use value analysis to support your solution.

Problem 1-13 (LO 4, 6) Contingent consideration. Duko Corporation is acquiring the
net assets, exclusive of cash, of Weber Company as of January 1, 2015, at which time Weber
Company’s balance sheet is as follows:

Assets

Current assets:

Cash ..o $ 30,000

Accountsreceivable. .. ... . .. 50,000 $ 80,000
Noncurrent assets:

Investments in marketable securities . ......... ... . ..... $120,000

Land. .. 600,000

Buildings (net) .......... .. .. 450,000

Equipment(net) ... 800,000

Goodwill ... 100,000 2,070,000
Totalassets ... ... $2,150,000

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:

Accountspayable ........ .. $ 150,000

Income tax payable . . ....... ... .. 190,000 $ 340,000
Equity:

Common stock ($5par) . ... $1,200,000

Retainedearnings . ................. i 610,000 1,810,000
Total liabilitiesand equity .. ........ ... o $2,150,000

Duko Corporation feels that the following fair values should be used for Weber’s book

values:

Cash (nochange) ............................... $ 30,000
Accountsreceivable . ...... ... 60,000
Investment in marketable securities . ................. 150,000
Land. ..o 450,000
Buildings (nochange) ........... ... .. L 450,000
Equipment ... .. 600,000
Accountspayable ......... ... 120,000
Income tax payable (nochange)................. ... 190,000

<4 < < < < Required
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Duko will issue 20,000 shares of its common stock with a $2 par value and a quoted fair
value of $60 per share on January 1, 2015, to Weber Company to acquire the net assets. Duko
also agrees that two years from now it will issue additional securities to compensate Weber
shareholders for any decline in value below that on the date of issue. The estimated settlement
amount is $20,000. This is considered to be an equity agreement (not a liability).

Required » » » » B> 1. Record the acquisition on the books of Duko Corporation on January 1, 2015. Include sup-
port for calculations used to arrive at the values assigned to the assets and liabilities. Use
value analysis to aid your solution.

2. Record settlement (if any) for contingent consideration on January 1, 2017, assuming that
the quoted value of the Duko stock is $57.50. (Round shares to nearest whole share.)

APPENDIX PROBLEM

Problem 1A-1 (LO 9) Estimate goodwill, record acquisition. Caswell Company is
contemplating the purchase of LaBelle Company as of January 1, 2016. LaBelle Company has
provided the following current balance sheet:

Assets Liabilities and Equity

Cash and receivables . .. .. ... $ 150,000 Current liabilities . .. ......... $120,000
Inventory .................. 180,000 9% Bonds payable .......... 300,000
land. ... 50,000 Common stock ($5 par). . ..... 100,000
Building .. ......... ... L. 600,000 Paid-in capital in excess of par . 200,000
Accumulated depreciation . . .. (150,000) Retained earnings . .......... 150,000
Goodwill . ................. 40,000

Total assets. . ............. $ 870,000 Total liabilities and equity . . . $870,000

The following information exists relative to balance sheet accounts:

a. The inventory has a fair value of $200,000.

b. The land is appraised at $100,000 and the building at $600,000.

c. The 9% bonds payable have five years to maturity and pay annual interest each December
31. The current interest rate for similar bonds is 8% per year.

d. It is likely that there will be a payment for goodwill based on projected income in excess of
the industry average, which is 10% on total assets. Caswell will project the average past five
years operating income and will pay for excess income based on an assumption of a 5-year
life and a risk rate of return of 16%. The past five years’ net incomes for LaBelle are as

follows:
2011 $120,000
2012 140,000
2013 150,000
2014 200,000 (includes $40,000 extraordinary gain)
2015 180,000

Required » » » » B 1. Provide an estimate of fair value for the bonds and for goodwill.
2. Using the values derived in part (1), record the acquisition on the Caswell books.
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CASES

Structured Example of Goodwill Impairment

(Note: The use of a financial calculator or Excel is suggested for this case.)
Modern Company acquires the net assets of Frontier Company for $ 1,300,000 on January
1,2015. A business valuation consultant arrives at the price and deems it to be a good value.

Part A. The following list of fair values is provided to you by the consultant:

Assets and Liabilities Comments Valuation Method Fair Value
Cash equivalents Seller's values are Existing book value.
accepted. $ 80,000
Inventory Replacement cost is Market replacement cost for
available. similar items is used. 150,000
Accounts receivable  Asset is adjusted for Aging schedule is used for
estimated bad debits. valuation. 180,000
Land Per-acre value is well Calculation is based on 20 acres
established. at $10,000 per acre. 200,000
Building Most reliable measure is Rent is estimated at $80,000 per
rent potential. year for 20 years, discounted
at 14% return for similar
properties. Present value is
reduced for land value. 329,850
Equipment Cost of replacement Estimated purchase cost of
capacity can be equipment with similar
estimated. capacity is used. 220,000
Patent Recorded by seller atonly ~ Added profit made possible by
legal cost; has patent is $40,000 per year for
significant future value. four years. Discounted at risk-
adjusted rate for similar
investments of 20% per year. 103,550
Current liabilities Recorded amounts are Recorded value is used. (120,000)
accurate.
Mortgage payable Specified interest rate is Discount the $50,000 annual
below market rate. payments for five years at
annual market rate of 7%. (205,010)
Net identifiable
assets at fair
value $ 938,390
Price paid for
reporting unit 1,300,000
Goodwill Believed to existbased on  Implied by price paid.
reputation and
customer list. $ 361,610

Using the information in the preceding table, confirm the accuracy of the present value cal- €4 € € €« <« Required

culations made for the building, patent, and mortgage payable.

Part B. Frontier does not have publicly traded stock. You make an estimate of the value of
the company based on the following assumptions that will later be included in the reporting
unit valuation procedure:

Copyright 2016 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.

Case 1-1




54

Required » » » » »

Required > » » > »

Case 1-2
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a. Frontier will provide operating cash flows, net of tax, of $150,000 during the next
fiscal year.

b. Operating cash flows will increase at the rate of 10% per year for the next four fiscal
years and then will remain steady for 15 more years.

c. Cash flows, defined as net of cash from operations less capital expenditures, will be
discounted at an after-tax discount rate of 12%. An annual rate of 12% is a reason-
able risk-adjusted rate of return for investments of this type.

d. Added capital expenditures will be $100,000 in year 5, $120,000 in year 10, and
$130,000 in year 15.

e. An estimate of salvage value (net of the tax effect of gains or losses) of the assets
after 20 years is estimated to be $300,000. This is a conservative assumption since
the unit may be operated after that period.

—_—

. Prepare a schedule of net-oftax cash flows for Frontier and discount them to present value.

2. Compare the estimated fair value of the reporting unit with amounts assigned to identifiable
assets plus goodwill less liabilities.

3. Record the acquisition.

Part C. Revisit the information in Part A that illustrates the reporting unit valuation
procedure.

Assume that by fiscal year-end, December 31, 2015, events occur that suggest good-
will could be impaired. You have the following information. These new estimates are made
at the end of the first year:

Net book value of Frontier Company including goodwill .. .............. $1,300,000
Estimated implied fair value of the reporting unit, based on cash flow

analysis discounted ata 12% annualrate. . . .......... ... ... ... 1,200,000
Estimated fair value of identifiable net assets using methods excluding

goodwill ... 1,020,000

Has goodwill been impaired? Perform the impairment testing procedure. If goodwill has
been impaired, calculate the adjustment to goodwill and make the needed entry.

Disney Acquires Marvel Entertainment

Required » » » » »

On December 31, 2009, The Walt Disney Company acquired all the capital stock of
Marvel Entertainment Company. Marvel has created heroes such as Spiderman, the Hulk,
and Iron Man.

Disney acquired 79.2 million shares of Marvel Entertainment’s shares. Disney issued
59 million shares of Disney stock plus $30 for each share of Marvel Entertainment stock.
Disney stock, which has a par value of $0.01 per share, had a market value of $32.25 per
share. The estimated fair value of Marvel Entertainment accounts were as follows:

Cash and cash eqgivalents $ 105,000,000
Receivables 141,000,000
Capitalized film costs 269,000,000

3,140,000,000
(325,000,000)
(83,000,000
(1,121,000,000)

Intangible assets

Accounts payable

Other liabilities*

Deferred income tax liability

* Other liabilities was actually a noncontrolling interest which is actually an equity interest that is discussed in Chapter 2.

1. Using the Federal Trade Commission'’s classification of merger types, how would you classify
the acquisition?

2. Calculate the total price paid for Marvel Entertainment. s there goodwill or a gain@

3. Record the acquisition.
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Consolidated Statements:
Date of Acquisition

Learning Objectives
When you have completed this chapter, you should be able to

1. Differentiate among the accounting methods used for investments, based on the level of
common stock ownership in another company.

2. State the criteria for presenting consolidated statements, and explain why disclosure of
separate subsidiary financial information might be important.

3. Demonstrate the worksheet procedures needed to eliminate the investment account.

4. Demonstrate the worksheet procedures needed to consolidate parent and subsidiary
accounts.

5. Apply value analysis to guide the adjustment process to reflect the price paid for the
controlling interest.

6. Develop a determination and distribution of excess (D&D) schedule that will guide the
worksheet procedures needed to consolidate a subsidiary.

7. Explain the impact of a noncontrolling interest on worksheet procedures and financial
statement preparation.

8. Show the impact of preexisting goodwill on the consolidation process, and be able to
include prior investments in the acquisition price.

9. Define push-down accounting, and explain when it may be used and its impact.

10. Demonstrate worksheet procedures for reverse acquisitions. (Appendix)

The preceding chapter dealt with business combinations that are accomplished as asset acquisi-
tions. The net assets of an entire company are acquired and recorded directly on the books of
the acquiring company. Consolidation of the two companies is automatic because all subse-
quent transactions are recorded on a single set of books.

A company will commonly acquire a large enough interest in another company’s voting com-
mon stock to obtain control of operations. The company owning the controlling interest is
termed the parent, while the controlled company is termed the subsidiary. Legally, the parent com-
pany has only an investment in the stock of the subsidiary and will only record an investment
account in its accounting records. The subsidiary will continue to prepare its own financial state-
ments. However, accounting principles require that when one company has effective control over
another, a single set of consolidated statements must be prepared for the companies under common
control. The consolidated statements present the financial statements of the parent and its subsid-
iaries as those of a single economic entity. Worksheets are prepared to merge the separate state-
ments of the parent and its subsidiary(s) into a single set of consolidated statements.

This chapter is the first of several that will show how to combine the separate statements of a
parent and its subsidiaries. The theory of acquisition accounting, developed in Chapter 1, is
applied in the consolidation process. In fact, the consolidated statements of a parent and its 100%
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OBJECTIVE

Differentiate among the
accounting methods used
for investments, based on
the level of common stock
ownership in another
company.

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

owned subsidiary look exactly like they would have had the net assets been acquired. This chapter
contains only the procedures necessary to prepare consolidated statements on the day that
the controlling investment is acquired. The procedures for consolidating controlling invest-
ments in periods subsequent to the acquisition date will be developed in Chapter 3. The effect of
operating activities between the parent and its subsidiaries, such as intercompany loans, merchan-
dise sales, fixed asset sales, bonds, and leases, will be discussed in Chapters 4 and 5. Later chapters
will deal with taxation issues and changes in the level of ownership.

LEVELS OF INVESTMENT

The purchase of the voting common stock of another company receives different accounting
treatments depending on the level of ownership and the amount of influence or control caused
by the stock ownership. The ownership levels and accounting methods can be summarized as
follows:

Level of Ownership Initial Recording Recording of Income
Passive—generally under At cost including brokers’ Dividends as declared (except stock
20% ownership. fees. dividends).
Influential—generally 20% At cost including brokers’ Ownership share of income (or loss) is
to 50% ownership. fees. reported. Shown as investment

income on financial statements.
(Dividends declared are distributions
of income already recorded; they
reduce the investment account.)
Controlling—generally At cost. Ownership share of income (or loss).
over 50% ownership. (Some adjustments are explained in
later chapters.) Accomplished by
consolidating the subsidiary income
statement accounts with those of the
parent in the consolidation process.

To illustrate the differences in reporting the income applicable to the common stock shares
owned, consider the following example based on the reported income of the investor and inves-
tee (the company whose shares are owned by investor):

Account Investor* Investee
SAIBS . $500,000  $300,000
Less: Costofgoodssold. . ... ... 250,000 180,000
Gross Profit . . ... $250,000  $120,000
Less: Selling and administrative expenses. ... ... 100,000 80,000
NEFINCOME .« o oot et e e e e $150,000 $ 40,000

*Does not include any income from investee.

Assume that the investee company paid $10,000 in cash dividends. The investor would
prepare the following income statements, depending on the level of ownership:

10% 30% 80%
Level of Ownership Passive Influential  Controlling
Sales ..o $ 500,000 $ 500,000 $ 800,000
Less: Costofgoodssold. ........................... 250,000 250,000 430,000
Grossprofit . ... $ 250,000 $ 250,000 $ 370,000
Less: Selling and administrative expenses . . .. .......... 100,000 100,000 180,000
(continued)
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10% 30% 80%
Level of Ownership Passive Influential ~ Controlling
Operatingincome. . ... $ 150,000 $ 150,000
Dividend income (10% x $10,000 dividends)............ 1,000
Investment income (30% x $40,000 reported income) . . . . . 12,000
Netincome . ... $151,000 $162,000 $ 190,000
Distribution of income:
Noncontrolling interest (20% x $40,000 reported income) $ 8,000
Controlling interest (100% of investor’s $150,000 + 80%
of investee’s $40,000) .. .. ........... ... ..., $182,000

With a 10% passive interest, the investor included only its share of the dividends declared
by the investee as its income. With a 30% influential ownership interest, the investor reported
30% of the investee income as a separate source of income. With an 80% controlling interest,
the investor (now termed the parent) merges the investee’s (now a subsidiary) nominal accounts
with its own amounts. Dividend and investment income no longer exist. A single set of financial
statements replaces the separate statement of the entities. If the parent owned a 100% interest,
net income would simply be reported as $190,000. Since this is only an 80% interest, the net
income must be shown as distributed between the noncontrolling and controlling interests.
The noncontrolling interest is the 20% of the subsidiary that is not owned by the parent. The
controlling interest is the parent income plus 80% of the subsidiary income.

REFLECTTION

* Aninfluential investment (generally over 20% ownership) requires recording, as a single
line-item amount, the investor’s share of the investee’s income as it is earned.

e A controlling investment (generally over 50% ownership) requires that subsidiary income
statement accounts be combined with those of the parent company.

e The essence of consolidated reporting is the portrayal of the separate legal entities as a
single economic entity.

FUNCTION OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

Consolidated financial statements are designed to present the results of operations, cash flow,
and the balance sheet of both the parent and its subsidiaries as if they were a single company.
Generally, consolidated statements are the most informative to the stockholders of the control-
ling company. Yet, consolidated statements do have their shortcomings. The rights of the non-
controlling shareholders are limited to only the company they own, and, therefore, they get
licdle value from consolidated statements. They really need the separate statements of the sub-
sidiary. Similarly, creditors of the subsidiary need its separate statements because they may look
only to the legal entity that is indebted to them for satisfaction of their claims. The parent’s
creditors should be content with the consolidated statements, since the investment in the sub-
sidiary will produce cash flows that can be used to satisfy their claims.

Consolidated statements have been criticized for being too aggregated. Unprofitable subsi-
diaries may not be very obvious because, when consolidated, their performance is combined
with that of other affiliates. However, this shortcoming is easily overcome. One option is to
prepare separate statements of the subsidiary as supplements to the consolidated statements.
The second option, which may be required, is to provide disclosure for major business seg-
ments. When subsidiaries are in businesses distinct from the parent, the definition of a segment
may parallel that of a subsidiary.
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State the criteria for
presenting consolidated
statements, and explain
why disclosure of separate
subsidiary financial
information might be
important.
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Demonstrate the worksheet
procedures needed to
eliminate the investment
account.
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Criteria for Consolidated Statements

Under U.S. GAAD, there are two models that determine when consolidation of financial state-
ments is required. The most common model is based on control of a voting interest entity. That
is an entity with common stock where the investor company owns over 50% of the voting com-
mon shares. That ownership interest is referred to as a “Controlling Interest.” There are, how-
ever, exceptions where control may also exist with a lesser percentage of ownership such as when
there is control via contract, lease, agreement with other shareholders, or by court decree.! The
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) also requires consolidation where an affiliate is not
majority-owned. The situations where this could apply are:

1. The company financed the affiliate directly or indirectly.

2. The company owns securities that upon exercise or conversion would create majority
ownership.

3. The company will compensate the affiliate for incurred start-up losses.

The second FASB model applies to variable interest entities (VIE). The definition of a VIE is
based on an entity meeting one of four requirements:

1. The possible investor and its related companies participate significantly in the design of the
entity. The entity cannot be a joint venture or a franchisee.

2. The entity is designed such that almost all of its activities include or are for the benefit of the
investor.

3. The investor and its related companies provide over 50% of the equity, subordinated debr,
or other subordinated financial support of the entity. This test is based on the fair value of
the entity.

4. The entity’s activities are mainly financial in nature involving securitizations, asset-backed
financing, or leasing benefiting the investor.

The unique consolidation procedures for VIEs are covered in an appendix to this chapter.

Consolidation may also be required when a not-for-profic (NFP) entity has a controlling
interest in another NFP. Control can be based on ownership of a majority interest or if there are
an economic interest and a majority voting interest. This topic is treated in Chapter 18.

REFLECTTION

e The combining of the statements of a parent and its subsidiaries into consolidated
statements is required when parent ownership exceeds 50% of the controlled firm's shares.

e Consolidation is required for any company that is controlled, even in cases where less
than 51% of the company’s shares is owned by the parent.

TECHNIQUES OF CONSOLIDATION

This chapter builds an understanding of the techniques used to consolidate the separate balance
sheets of a parent and its subsidiary immediately subsequent to the acquisition. The consoli-
dated balance sheet as of the acquisition date is discussed first. The impact of consolidations on
operations after the acquisition date is discussed in Chapters 3 through 8.

Chapter 1 emphasized that there are two means of achieving control over the assets of another
company. A company may directly acquire the assets of another company, or it may acquire a con-
trolling interest in the other company’s voting common stock. In an asset acquisition, the company

1 FASB 810-10-15-8.
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whose assets were acquired is dissolved. The assets acquired are recorded directly on the books of the
acquirer, and consolidation of balance sheet amounts is automatic. Where control is achieved
through a stock acquisition, the acquired company (the subsidiary) remains as a separate legal entity
with its own financial statements. While the initial accounting for the two types of acquisitions dif-
fers significantly, a 100% stock acquisition and an asset acquisition have the same effect of creating
one larger single reporting entity and should produce the same consolidated balance sheet. There s,
however, a difference if the stock acquisition is less than 100%. Then, there will be a noncontrolling
interest in the consolidated balance sheet. This is not possible when the assets are purchased directly.

In the following discussion, the recording of an asset acquisition and a 100% stock acquisi-
tion are compared, and the balance sheets that result from each type of acquisition are studied.
Then, the chapter deals with the accounting procedures needed when there is less than a 100%
stock ownership and a noncontrolling equity interest exists.

Reviewing an Asset Acquisition

[llustration 2-1 demonstrates an asset acquisition of Company S by Company P for cash. Part A of
the exhibit presents the balance sheets of the two companies just prior to the acquisition. Part B shows
the entry to record Company P’s payment of $500,000 in cash for the net assets of Company S.
The book values of the assets and liabilities acquired are assumed to be representative of their fair
values, and no goodwill is acknowledged. The assets and liabilities of Company S are added to those
of Company P to produce the balance sheet for the combined company, shown in Part C. Since
account balances are combined in recording the acquisition, statements for the single combined
reporting entity are produced automatically, and no consolidation process is needed.

Illustration 2-1
Asset Acquisition

Part A. Balance sheets of Companies P and S prior to acquisition:

Company P Balance Sheet

Assets Liabilities and Equity
Cash ..o $ 800,000  Currentliabilities . ......... $ 150,000
Accounts receivable ... .. .. 300,000 Bonds payable ........... 500,000
Inventory ................ 100,000 Commonstock. . .......... 100,000
Equipment (net) ........... 150,000  Refained earnings ......... 600,000
Total.................. $1,350,000 Total . ................. $1,350,000

Company S Balance Sheet

Assets Liabilities and Equity
Accounts receivable .. ... .. $200,000 Current liabilities . .. .. .. ... $100,000
Invenfory ................ 100,000 Commonstock. . .......... 200,000
Equipment (net) ........... 300,000 Retained earnings . ... .. ... 300,000
Total.................. $600,000 Total . ................. $600,000

Part B. Entry on Company P’s books to record acquisition of the net assets of Company S by

Company P:
Accounts Receivable . .. ... ... ... 200,000
Inventory . ... o 100,000
Equipment . ... 300,000
Current Liabilities. . . ... 100,000
Cash ... 500,000

(continued)

Copyright 2016 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



60

Worksheet 2-1: page 89

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

Part C. Balance sheet of Company P (the combined company) subsequent to asset acquisition:

Company P Balance Sheet

Assets Liabilities and Equity
Cash ..o $ 300,000  Currentliabilities . ......... $ 250,000
Accounts receivable .. ... .. 500,000  Bondspayable ........... 500,000
Inventory ................ 200,000 Commonstock. . .......... 100,000
Equipment (nef) ........... 450,000  Retained earnings . ........ 600,000
Total . ..o, $1,450,000 Total. ..o, $1,450,000

Consolidating a Stock Acquisition

In a stock acquisition, the acquiring company deals only with existing shareholders, not the
company itself. Assuming the same facts as those used in Illustration 2-1, except that Company
P will acquire all the outstanding stock of Company S from its sharcholders for $500,000,
Company P would make the following entry:

Investment in Subsidiary S. .. ... ... 500,000
Cash o 500,000

This entry does not record the individual underlying assets and liabilities over which
control is achieved. Instead, the acquisition is recorded in an investment account that
represents the controlling interest in the net assets of the subsidiary. If no further action was
taken, the investment in the subsidiary account would appear as a long-term investment on
Company P’s balance sheet. However, such a presentation is permitted only if consolidation
were not required (i.e., when control does not exist).

Assuming consolidated statements are required (i.e., when control does exist), the balance
sheet of the two companies must be combined into a single consolidated balance sheet. The
consolidation process is separate from the existing accounting records of the companies and
requires completion of a worksheet. No journal entries are actually made to the parent’s or sub-
sidiary’s books, so the elimination process starts anew each year.

The first example of a consolidated worksheet, Worksheet 2-1, appears later in the chapter
on page 89. (The icon in the margin indicates the location of the worksheet at the end of the
chapter.) The first two columns of the worksheet include the trial balances (balance sheet only
for this chapter) for Companies P and S. The trial balances and the consolidated balance sheet
are presented in single columns to save space. Credit balances are shown in parentheses.
Obviously, since there are no nominal accounts listed, the income statement accounts have
already been closed to Retained Earnings.

The consolidated worksheet requires elimination of the investment account balance because
the two companies will be treated as one. (How can a company have an investment in itself?)
Similarly, the subsidiary’s stockholders’ equity accounts are eliminated because its assets and
liabilities belong to the parent, not to outside equity owners. In general journal form, the elimi-
nation entry is as follows:

(EL)  Common Stock, Company S. ... ..o 200,000
Retained Earnings, Company S. .. .......... ... il 300,000
Investmentin Company . ......... .. ... i 500,000

Note that the key (EL) will be used in all future worksheets. Keys, once introduced, will be
assigned to all similar items throughout the text. For quick reference, a listing of these keys is
provided on the inside front cover of this text. The balances in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
column (the last column) are exactly the same as in the balance sheet prepared for the preceding
asset acquisition example—as they should be for a 100% stock acquisition.
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REFLECTTION

e Consolidation when a parent owns 100% of the subsidiary’s voting common stock
produces the same balance sheet that would result in an asset acquisition.

¢ Consolidated statements are derived from the individual statements of the parent and its
subsidiaries.

ADJUSTMENT OF SUBSIDIARY ACCOUNTS

In the last example, the price paid for the investment in the subsidiary was equal to the net book
value of the subsidiary (which means the price was also equal to the subsidiary’s stockholders’
equity). In most acquisitions, the price will exceed the book value of the subsidiary’s net assets.
Typically, fair values will exceed the recorded book values of assets. The price may also reflect
unrecorded intangible assets, including goodwill. Let us revisit the last example and assume that
instead of paying $500,000 cash, Company P paid $700,000 cash for all the common stock
shares of Company S and made the following entry for the purchase:

Investment in Subsidiary S
Cash

700,000

700,000

Use the same Company S balance sheet as in [llustration 2-1, with the following additional
information on fair values:

Company S Book and Estimated Fair Values
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consolidate parent and
subsidiary accounts.

December 31, 2015
Assets Book Value  Fair Value Liabilities and Equity Book Value  Fair Value
Accounts receivable .... $ 200,000 $ 200,000 Currentliabilities.................. $100,000 $ 100,000
Inventory ............. 100,000 120,000
Equipment (net) . ....... 300,000 400,000 Market value of net assets
(assets — liabilities). . .. .... ... $620,000
Totalassets . ... ... $600,000 $720,000
If this were an asset acquisition, the identifiable assets and liabilities would be recorded at
fair value and goodwill at $80,000. This is the price paid of $700,000 minus the $620,000
($720,000 total assets — $100,000 total liabilities) fair value of net assets. Adding fair values to
Company P’s accounts, the new balance sheet would appear as follows:
Company P
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity
Current assets: Current liabilities . ... ... ... $250,000
Cash ..o $100,000 Bonds payable ........... 500,000
Accounts receivable. . . . .. 500,000 Total liabilities . . .......... $ 750,000
Inventory .............. 220,000
Total current assets . . . . . $ 820,000
(continued)
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Assets Liabilities and Equity
Long-term assets: Stockholders’ equity:
Equipment (nef) ......... $550,000 Commonstock. ......... $100,000
Goodwill .............. 80,000 Retained earnings . . . . . .. 600,000
Total long-ferm assets . . . 630,000 Total equity. . .. ....... 700,000
Total assets . ............. $1,450,000  Total liabilities and equity . . . $1,450,000

Worksheet 2-2: page 90

5

OBJECTIVE

Apply value analysis to
guide the adjustment
process to reflect the price
paid for the controlling
interest.

As before, the consolidated worksheet should produce a consolidated balance sheet that
looks exactly the same as the preceding balance sheet for an asset acquisition. Worksheet 2-2, on
page 90, shows how this is accomplished.

¢ The (EL) entry is the same as before: $500,000 of subsidiary equity is eliminated against the

investment account.

¢ Enuy (D) distributes the remaining cost of $200,000 to the acquired assets to bring them
from book to fair value and to record goodwill of $80,000.

In general journal entry form, the elimination entries are as follows:

(EL) Common Stock, Company S. . ... 200,000
Retained Earnings, Company S....................... 300,000
Investmentin Company S. .. ........ ... . ... ... 500,000
(D1) Inventory (to increase from $100,000to $120,000). . .. .. 20,000
(D2)  Equipment (to increase from $300,000 to $400,000) .. .. 100,000
(D3)  Goodwill ($700,000 price minus $620,000 fair value
ASSEES) .+ ot 80,000
(D) Investment in Company S ($700,000 price minus
$500,000 book value eliminated above) .......... 200,000

The Consolidated Balance Sheet column of Worksheet 2-2 includes the subsidiary accounts
at full fair value and reflects the $80,000 of goodwill included in the purchase price. The formal
balance sheet for Company P, based on the worksheet, would be exactly the same as shown
above for the asset acquisition.

Acquisition of a subsidiary at a price in excess of the fair values of the subsidiary equity is as
simple as the case just presented, especially where there are a limited number of assets to adjust
to fair value. For more involved acquisitions, where there are many accounts to adjust and/or
the price paid is less than the fair value of the net assets, a more complete analysis is needed. We
will now proceed to develop these tools.

Analysis of Complicated Purchases—100% Interest

The previous examples assumed the purchase of the subsidiary for cash. However, most acquisi-
tions are accomplished by the parent issuing common stock (or, less often, preferred stock) in
exchange for the subsidiary common shares being acquired. This avoids the depletion of cash
and, if other criteria are met, allows the subsidiary shareholders to have a tax-free exchange. In
most cases, the shares are issued by a publicly traded parent company that provides a readily
determinable market price for the shares issued. The investment in the subsidiary is then
recorded at the fair value of the shares issued. Less frequently, a nonpublicly traded parent may
issue shares to subsidiary shareholders. In these cases, the fair values are determined for the net
assets of the subsidiary company, and the total estimated fair value of the subsidiary company is
recorded as the cost of the investment.

In order to illustrate the complete procedures used to record the investment in and the con-
solidation of a subsidiary, we will consider the acquisition of a 100% interest in Sample Com-
pany. The book and fair values of the net assets of Sample Company on December 31, 2015,
when Parental, Inc., acquired 100% of its shares, were as follows:
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Book Market Book Market
Assets Value Value Liabilities and Equity Value Value
Accounts receivable .. ... .. $ 20,000 $ 20,000 Current liabilities . .. ............... $ 40,000 $ 40,000
Inventory ................ 50,000 55,000 Bondspayable ...... ... ... ... ... 100,000 100,000
land. ... 40,000 70,000 Total liabilities. . .............. $140,000 $140,000
Buildings ................ 200,000 250,000
Accumulated depreciation . . (50,000) Stockholders’ equity:
Equipment............... 60,000 60,000  Commonstock ($1par)............. $ 10,000
Accumulated depreciation . . (20,000) Paid-in capital in excess of par . ... ... 90,000
Copyright . .............. 50,000  Refainedearnings................. 60,000
Totalequity .................. $160,000
Totalassets .. .......... $300,000 $505,000 Netassets...................... $160,000 $365,000

Assume that Parental, Inc., issued 20,000 shares of its $1 par value common stock for 100%
(10,000 shares) of the outstanding shares of Sample Company. The fair value of a share of
Parental, Inc., stock is $25. Parental also pays $25,000 in accounting and legal fees to accomplish
the purchase. Parental would make the following entry to record the purchase:

Investment in Sample Company (20,000 shares issued x $25 fairvalue) ... 500,000
Common Stock ($1 par value) (20,000 shares x $1 par)............ 20,000
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par ($500,000 — $20,000 par value) . . .. 480,000

Parental would record the costs of the acquisition as follows:

Acquisition Expense (closed to Retained Earnings since only balance sheets

Cash. .o 25,000

A value analysis schedule has been designed to compare the fair value of the company
acquired with the fair value of the net assets. In this case, the fair value of the company is based
on the value of the shares exchanged by Parental, Inc. The schedule includes a column for a
noncontrolling interest (NCI) for later cases when the parent does not acquire a 100% interest.

Company Parent NCI
Implied Fair Price Value
Value Analysis Schedule Value (100%) (0%)
Companyfairvalue. . ........ ... ... . $ 500,000 $ 500,000 N/A
Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill .. ............. 365,000 365,000
Goodwill. ..... ... ... .. $135,000 $135,000
Gainonacquisiion. . ... ... N/A N/A

Notice the following features of the value analysis:

¢ In this case, the company fair value exceeds the fair value of the net assets. This means that
all subsidiary accounts will be adjusted to fair value, and goodwill of $135,000 will be shown
on the consolidated balance sheet.

¢ If the company fair value was less than the fair value of the net assets, all of the subsidiary
accounts would still be adjusted to fair value and a gain on the acquisition would be recorded.

REFLECTTION

e The value analysis schedule determines if there will be goodwill or a gain as a result of
consolidating the subsidiary with the parent.
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DETERMINATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF
EXCESS SCHEDULE

The determination and distribution of excess (D&D) schedule is used to compare the company fair
value with the recorded book value of the subsidiary. It also schedules the adjustments that will
be made to all subsidiary accounts in the consolidated worksheet process. The D&D schedule
below is for a 100% interest, but is built to accommodate an NCI in later examples.

quide the worksheet
procedures needed to
consolidate a subsidiary.

Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule

Company Implied Parent Price NCI
Fair Value (100%) Value (0%)
Fair value of subsidiary . ........................ $ 500,000 $500,000 N/A
Less book value of interest acquired:
Commonstock ($1par)....................... $ 10,000
Paid-in capital in excessof par . ................ 90,000
Retained earnings ........................... 60,000
Total stockholders’ equity. .. ................. $ 160,000 $160,000
Interestacquired .......... ... ... . 100%
Bookvalue. ... $160,000
Excess of fair value over book value ............... $340,000 <« $340,000
Adjustment of identifiable accounts:
Adjustment Worksheet Key
Inventory ($55,000 fair — $50,000 book value) . . . . . $ 5,000 debitD1
Land ($70,000 fair — $40,000 book value). . . ... . .. 30,000 debit D2
Buildings ($250,000 fair — $150,000 net book value) 100,000 debit D3
Equipment ($60,000 fair — $40,000 net book value) . 20,000 debit D4
Copyright ($50,000 fair — $0 book value). . ... ... .. 50,000 debit D5
Goodwill. ....... ... 135,000 debit D6
Total ... $340,000 +

Worksheet 2-3: page 91

Note the following features of the above D&D schedule:

® Since this is a 100% interest, the parent price and the implied value of the subsidiary are equal.

¢ The total adjustment that will have to be made to subsidiary net assets on the worksheet is
$340,000.

¢ The schedule shows the adjustments to each subsidiary account. Recall that in Chapter 1, we
recorded the entire value of the subsidiary accounts in the acquisition entry. Now the
subsidiary assets are already listed on the worksheet at book value, and they only need to be
adjusted to fair value.

The D&D schedule provides complete guidance for the worksheet eliminations. Study
Worksheet 2-3 on page 91 and note the following:

¢ Elimination (EL) eliminated the subsidiary equity purchased (100% in this example) against
the investment account as follows:

(EL) Common Stock ($1 par)—Sample .................... 10,000

Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Sample .. ............. 90,000

Retained Earnings—Sample .. ....................... 60,000
Investment in Sample Company. . ................... 160,000
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Chapter 2 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: DATE OF ACQUISITION 65

¢ The (D) series eliminations distribute the $340,000 excess to the appropriate accounts, as
indicated by the D&D schedule. A valuable check is to be sure that the investment account is
now eliminated. If it has not been eliminated, there has been an error in the balances entered
into the Balance Sheet columns of the worksheet. Worksheet eliminations are as follows:

(D1) Inventory ... ... 5,000
D2) land. . ..o 30,000
(D3) Buildings . ... 100,000
(D4) Equipment ... ... 20,000
(D5) Copyright ..o 50,000
(DY) Goodwill ..o 135,000
(D) Investment in Sample Company [remaining excess
after (EL]. ..o 340,000
Dr.=Cr.  CheckTotals ...... .. ... . ... . . .. .. .. . . il 340,000 340,000

The amounts that will appear on the consolidated balance sheet are shown in the final col-
umn of Worksheet 2-3. Notice that we have consolidated 100% of the fair values of subsidiary
accounts with the existing book values of parent company accounts.

Formal Balance Sheet

The formal consolidated balance sheet resulting from the 100% purchase of Sample Company,
in exchange for 20,000 Parental shares, has been taken from the Consolidated Balance Sheet
column of Worksheet 2-3.

Parental, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity
Current assets: Current liabilities . .. ......... $120,000
Cash oo, $ 84,000 Bonds payable ............. 300,000
Accounts receivable. . . ... .. 92,000 Total liabilities .. .......... $ 420,000
Inventory ................ 135,000
Total current assets $ 311,000
Long-term assets: Stockholders’ equity:
land....... ... .. ..., $ 170,000 Common stock ($1 par). . . .. $ 40,000
Buildings ................ 800,000 Paid-in capital in excess of par 680,000
Accumulated Retained earnings . . ....... 456,000
depreciation ........... (130,000)
Equipment ............... 320,000 Total controlling equity . . . .. 1,176,000
Accumulated
depreciation ........... (60,000)
Copyright (nef). . .......... 50,000
Goodwill (net) ............ 135,000
Total long-term assets. . . . . 1,285,000
Totalassets ................ $1,596,000 Total liabilities and equity . . . . . $1,596,000

Bargain Purchase

A bargain purchase refers to an acquisition at a price that is less than the fair value of the subsidiary
net identifiable assets. Let us change the prior example to assume that Parental, Inc., issued only
12,000 shares of its stock. The entry to record the purchase would be as shown on next page.
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Investment in Sample Company (12,000 shares issued x $25 fairvalue) .. 300,000
Common Stock ($1 par value) (12,000 shares x $1par)............. 12,000
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par ($300,000 — $12,000 par value) . .. .. 288,000

The entry to record the costs of the acquisition would be as follows:

Acquisition Expense (closed to Retained Earnings since only balance
sheets are being examined) ............ ... 25,000
Cash .o 25,000

The value analysis schedule would compare the price paid with the fair value of the subsidi-
ary net identifiable assets as follows:

Company Parent NCI
Implied Fair Price Value
Value Analysis Schedule Value (100%) (0%)
Company fairvalue. ................... $ 300,000 $ 300,000 N/A
Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill . . 365,000 365,000
Goodwill .. ... N/A N/A
Gainon acquisition . .......... ... .. $(65,000) $(65,000)

The D&D schedule would be as follows for the $300,000 price:

Determination and Distribution of Excess/Schedule

Company Implied Parent/[Price NCI
Fair Value (100%) Value (0%)

Fair value of subsidiary . .............. ... ... $ 300,000 N/A
Less book value of interest acquired:

Common stock ($T1par)................ .. $ 10,000

Paid-in capital in excess of par ............. 90,000

Retained earnings ....................... 60,000

Totalequity ..o $ 160,000

Interestacquired ............ L
Bookvalue.......... ...
Excess of fair value over book value . .......... $140,000 <«
Adjustment of identifiable accounts:

Adjustment Worksheet Key

Inventory ($55,000 fair — $50,000 book value) $ 5,000 debit D1
Land ($70,000 fair — $40,000 book value). . . . . 30,000 debit D2
Buildings ($250,000 fair — $150,000 net book

value) ..o 100,000 debit D3
Equipment ($60,000 fair — $40,000 net book

value) ..o 20,000 debit D4
Copyright ($50,000 fair — $0 book value). . . . .. 50,000 debit D5
Gainonacquisition .. ............ ... ... (65,000) < credit D7

Total ... ... $140,000 <«
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Note the following features of the above D&D schedule:

¢ All identifiable net assets are still adjusted to full fair value even though it was a bargain
purchase.

¢ A gain will be distributed to the parent on the worksheet.
The D&D schedule provides complete guidance for the worksheet eliminations. Study
Worksheet 2-4 on page 92 and note the following:

¢ Elimination (EL) eliminated the subsidiary equity purchased (100% in this example) against
the investment account as follows:

(EL) Common Stock ($1 par)}—Sample .................... 10,000

Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Sample . .............. 90,000

Retained Earnings—Sample .. ............. ... ... ... 60,000
Investment in Sample Company. .................... 160,000

¢ The (D) series eliminations distribute the $100,000 excess to the appropriate accounts, as
indicated by the D&D schedule. Worksheet eliminations are as follows:

(D1) Inventory .. ... 5,000
(D2) land. .o 30,000
(D3) Buildings . ... ..o 100,000
(D4) Equipment . ... 20,000
(D5) Copyright . ... 50,000
(D7) Retained Earnings—Parental* .. .......... ... .. 65,000
(D) Investment in Sample Company [remaining excess
after (EL)]. ..o 140,000
Dr.=Cr. Check Totals . ... 205,000 205,000

*Since only a balance sheet is being prepared, the gain on the acquisition is closed directly to Parental Retained
Earnings.

The amounts that will appear on the consolidated balance sheet are shown in the final col-
umn of Worksheet 2-4. Notice that 100% of the fair values of subsidiary accounts has been con-
solidated with the existing book values of parent company accounts.

Worksheet 2-4: page 92
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There could be an unusual situation where the price paid by the parent is less than the book
value of the subsidiary net assets. For example, if the price paid by the parent was only
$150,000, the value analysis schedule would be as follows:

Company Parent NCI
Implied Fair Price Value
Value Analysis Schedule Value (100%) (0%)
Company fairvalve. ................... $ 150,000 $ 150,000 N/A
Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill . . 365,000 365,000
Goodwill .. ... N/A N/A
Gainonacquisition . . ............. .. $(215,000) $(215,000)

The D&D schedule would be as follows for the $150,000 pyice:

Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule

Company Implied Parent Price NCI
Fair Value (100%) Value (0%)

Fair value of subsidiary . .................. $ 150,000 $150,000 N/A
Less book value of interest acquired:

Common stock ($1par)................. $ 10,000

Paid-in capital in excessof par ........... 90,000

Retained earnings ..................... 60,000

Total equity. . ..o $ 160,000 $160,000

Interest acquired ............. ...,
Bookvalue.......... ... ...
Excess of fair value over book value . ... ... .. $ (10,000) «
Adjustment of identifiable accounts:

Adjustment Worksheet Key

Inventory ($55,000 fair — $50,000 book $ 5,000 debit D1

value)
Land ($70,000 fair — $40,000 book value). . . 30,000 debit D2
Buildings ($250,000 fair — $150,000 book

value) .. 100,000 debit D3
Equipment ($60,000 fair — $40,000 book

value) .. 20,000 debit D4
Copyright ($50,000 fair — $0 book value). . . . 50,000 / debit D5
Gainon acquisition* .. ....... ... ... ... (215,000) credit D7

Total ....... ... ... $ (10,000) «+

* Agrees with fotal (company) gain in the value analysis schedule.
The eliminations on the worksheet would be as follows:

¢ Elimination (EL) eliminated the subsidiary equity purchased (100% in this example) against
the investment account as follows:

(EL) Common Stock ($1 par)—Sample .................... 10,000

Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Sample . .............. 90,000

Retained Earnings—Sample . .......... ... .. ... ... 60,000
Investment in Sample Company. .................... 160,000
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¢ The (D) series eliminations distribute the $10,000 negative excess to the appropriate
accounts, as indicated by the D&D schedule. Worksheet eliminations are as follows:

(D1) Inventory ... ..o 5,000
(D2) Land. .o 30,000
(D3) Buildings . ... oo 100,000
(D4) Equipment ... 20,000
(D5) Copyright ... 50,000
(D7) Retained Earnings—Parental*. . ...... .. ... . ... 215,000
(D) Investment in Sample Company [remaining excess after
(EL)] . oo 10,000
Dr.=Cr. Check Totals ... ..o 215,000 215,000

*Since only a balance sheet is being prepared, the gain on the acquisition is closed directly to Parental Retained
Earnings.

A worksheet, in this case, would debit the investment account $10,000 to cure the distribu-
tion of adjustments to subsidiary accounts that exceed the amount available for distribution.

REFLECTTION

e The D&D schedule compares the price paid for the investment in the subsidiary with
subsidiary book values and schedules the adjustments to be made on the worksheet.

e The worksheet adjusts the subsidiary accounts to fair values and adds them to the parent
accounts to arrive at a consolidated balance sheet.

CONSOLIDATING WITH A
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

Consolidation of financial statements is required whenever the parent company controls a sub-
sidiary. In other words, a parent company could consolidate far less than a 100% ownership
interest. If a parent company owns 80% of the common stock of a company, the remaining
20% interest is noncontrolling interest. Several important ramifications may arise when less
than 100% interest is consolidated.

¢ The parents investment account is eliminated against only its ownership percentage of the
underlying subsidiary equity accounts.” The NCI is shown on the consolidated balance sheet in
total and is not broken into par, paid-in capital in excess of par, and retained earnings. The NCI
must be shown as a component of stockholders’ equity. In the past, the NCI has also been
displayed on the consolidated balance sheet as a liability, or in some cases has appeared between
the liability and equity sections of the balance sheet. These alternatives are no longer allowed.

¢ The entire amount of every subsidiary nominal (income statement) account is merged with
the nominal accounts of the parent to calculate consolidated income. The noncontrolling
interest is allocated its percentage ownership times the reported income of the subsidiary only. The
precise methods and display of this interest are discussed in Chapter 3. In the past, this share
of income has often been treated as an other expense in the consolidated income statement.
FASB ASC 810-10-65-1 requires that it not be shown as an expense but, rather, as a
distribution of consolidated income.

® Subsidiary accounts are adjusted to full fair value regardless of the controlling interest
percentage. Prior to 2009, subsidiary accounts would only be adjusted to the controlling
interest percentage ownership interest. For example, assume that the parent owns an 80%
interest in the subsidiary. Further assume that the book value of equipment is $100,000 and

2 FASB ASC 810-10-65-1.

69

7

OBJECTIVE

Explain the impact of a
noncontrolling interest on
worksheet procedures and
financial statement
preparation.
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that its fair value is $150,000. Past practice would have been to adjust the asset by $40,000
(80% ownership interest x $50,000 fair value-book value difference). The new requirement
is that the asset will be adjusted for the full $50,000 difference no matter what size the
controlling interest is.

Analysis of Complicated Purchase with a Noncontrolling Interest

We will illustrate consolidation procedures using the 80% acquisition of Sample Company by
Parental, Inc. Presented below are the balance sheet amounts and the fair values of the assets and
liabilities of Sample Company as of December 31, 2015 (same as prior example on page 63).

Book Market Book Market
Assets Value Value Liabilities and Equity Value Value
Accounts receivable . . .. $ 20,000 $ 20,000 Current liabilities . .. ............... $ 40,000 $ 40,000
Inventory ............. 50,000 55,000 Bondspayable ............. ... ... 100,000 100,000
land.......... ... 40,000 70,000 Total liabilities. . . .. ......... .. $140,000 $140,000
Buildings ............. 200,000 250,000
Accumulated depreciation (50,000) Stockholders’ equity:
Equipment ............ 60,000 60,000  Commonstock ($1par)............. $ 10,000
Accumulated depreciation (20,000) Paid-in capital in excess of par ... . ... 90,000
Copyright . ........... 50,000  Retainedearnings ................. 60,000

Total equity . ... $ 160,000

Totalassets ......... $300,000 $505,000 Netassets...................... $160,000 $365,000

Assume that Parental, Inc., issued 16,000 shares of its $1 par value common stock for 80%
(8,000 shares) of the outstanding shares of Sample Company. The fair value of a share of Paren-
tal, Inc., stock is $25. Parental also pays $25,000 in accounting and legal fees to accomplish the
purchase. Parental would make the following entry to record the purchase:

Investment in Sample Company (16,000 shares issued x $25 fair

Value) oo 400,000
Common Stock ($1 par value) (16,000 shares x $1 par). .. ... 16,000
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par ($400,000 — $16,000 par
value) ... 384,000
Parental would record the costs of the acquisition as follows:
Acquisition Expense (closed to Retained Earnings since only
balance sheets are being examined) .............. ... ... 25,000
Cash oo 25,000
The following value analysis would be prepared for the 80% interest:
Company Parent NCI
Implied Fair Price Value
Value Analysis Schedule Value (80%) (20%)
Company fairvalve. . ... ... . ... $ 500,000 $ 400,000 $100,000
Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill . . 365,000 292,000 73,000
Goodwill. ......... ... ... ... . ... .. $135,000 $108,000 $ 27,000
Gainon acquisition. . .................. N/A N/A

Several assumptions went into the above calculation.

¢ Company fair value—TIt is assumed that if the parent would pay $400,000 for an 80%
interest, then the entire subsidiary company is worth $500,000 ($400,000/80%). We will
refer to this as the “implied value” of the subsidiary company. Assuming this to be true, the
NCI is worth 20% of the total subsidiary company value (20% x $500,000 = $100,000).
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Chapter 2 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: DATE OF ACQUISITION 71
This approach assumes that the price the parent would pay is directly proportional to the
size of the interest purchased. We will later study the situation where this presumption is
defeated. Unless otherwise stated, exercises and problems in this text will assume the
value of the NCI is “implied” by the price the parent pays for the controlling interest.
® Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill ($365,000)—The fair values of the subsidiary
accounts are from the comparison of book and fair values. All identifiable assets and all
liabilities will be adjusted to 100% of fair value regardless of the size of the controlling
interest purchased.
¢ Goodwill—The total goodwill is the excess of the “company fair value” over the fair value of
the subsidiary net assets. It is proportionately allocated to the controlling interest and NCI.
Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule
The D&D schedule that follows revalues the entire entity, including the NCI.
Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule
Company Implied Parent Price NClI Value
Fair Value (80%) (20%)
Fair value of subsidiary .......... ... .. .. ... ... $ 500,000 $400,000 $100,000
Less book value of interest acquired:
Common stock ($T1par)...........ooiiiii... $ 10,000
Paid-in capital in excessof par .......... ... ... 90,000
Retained earnings .. ......................... 60,000
Totalequity. . ..o $ 160,000 $160,000 $160,000
Interestacquired . ... 80% 20%
Bookvalue. .. ... $128,000 $ 32,000
Excess of fair value over book value ... ............ $340,000 $272,000 $ 68,000
Adjustment of identifiable accounts:
Adjustment Worksheet Key
Inventory ($55,000 fair — $50,000 book value) . . . . . $ 5,000 debit D1
Land ($70,000 fair — $40,000 book value). ... ... .. 30,000 debit D2
Buildings ($250,000 fair — $150,000 net book value) 100,000 debit D3
Equipment ($60,000 fair — $40,000 net book value) . 20,000 debit D4
Copyright ($50,000 fair — $0 book valve). .. ... . ... 50,000 debit D5
Goodwill ($500,000 fair — $365,000 book value) . 135,000* debit D6
Total ........... ... . . . $340,000 +

* Agrees with fotal (company) goodwill in the value analysis schedule.

Note the following features of a D&D schedule for a less than 100% parent ownership

interest:

*

The “fair value of subsidiary” line contains the implied value of the entire company, the
parent price paid, and the implied value of the NCI from the above value analysis schedule.

The total stockholders’ equity of the subsidiary (equal to the net assets of the subsidiary at
book value) is allocated 80/20 to the controlling interest and the NCI.

The excess of fair value over book value is shown for the company, the controlling interest,
and the NCI. This line means that the entire adjustment of subsidiary net assets will be
$340,000. The controlling interest paid $272,000 more than the underlying book value of
subsidiary net assets. This is the excess that will appear on the worksheet when the parent’s
80% share of subsidiary stockholders’ equity is eliminated against the investment account.
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Worksheet 2-5: page 93
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Finally, the NCI share of the increase to fair value is $68,000.

¢ All subsidiary assets and liabilities will be increased to 100% of fair value, just as would be
the case for a 100% purchase.

The D&D schedule provides complete guidance for the worksheet eliminations. Study
Worksheet 2-5 on page 93 and note the following:

¢ Elimination (EL) eliminated the subsidiary equity purchased (80% in this example) against
the investment account as follows:

(EL) Common Stock ($1 par)—Sample .................... 8,000

Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Sample . .............. 72,000

Retained Earnings—Sample . .............. ... 48,000
Investment in Sample Company. . ................... 128,000

¢ The (D) series eliminations distribute the excess applicable to the controlling interest plus
the increase in the NCI [labeled (NCI)] to the appropriate accounts, as indicated by the
D&D schedule. The adjustment of the NCI is carried to subsidiary retained earnings.
Recall, however, that only the total NCI will appear on the consolidated balance sheet.
Worksheet eliminations are as follows:

(D1) Inventory ... ... 5,000
D2) land. 30,000
(D3) Buildings . ..o 100,000
(D4) Equipment ... ... 20,000
(D5) Copyright ... 50,000
(DY) Goodwill ... 135,000
D) Investment in Sample Company [remaining excess
after (EL)]. .o 272,000
(NCI) Retained Earnings Sample (NCl share of fair market
adjustment) . . ... 68,000
Dr.=Cr. Check Totals .. ... 340,000 340,000

Worksheet 2-5 has an additional column, the NCI column. The components of the NCI are
summed and presented as a single amount in this balance sheet column. Notice that 100% of the fair
values of subsidiary accounts has been consolidated with the existing book values of parent company
accounts. The amounts that will appear on the consolidated balance sheet are shown in the final col-
umn of Worksheet 2-5. The Balance Sheet columns of the worksheet will show the components of
controlling equity (par, paid-in capital in excess of par, and retained earnings) and the total NCI.

Formal Balance Sheet

The formal consolidated balance sheet resulting from the 80% purchase of Sample Company,
in exchange for 16,000 Parental shares, has been taken from the Consolidated Balance Sheet
column of Worksheet 2-5. Recall, this is the date of acquisition. Chapter 3 will explain the
impact of subsequent period activities on the consolidated financial statements.
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Parental, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity
Current assets: Current liabilities $120,000
Cash ................... $ 84,000 Bondspayable ............. 300,000
Accounts receivable. . . .. ... 92,000 Total liabilities ............ $ 420,000
Inventory ................ 135,000
Total current assets. . . . . .. $ 311,000
Long-term assefs: Stockholders’ equity:
land. ... $ 170,000 Common stock ($1 par]. .. .. $ 36,000
Buildings . ............... 800,000 Paid-in capital in excess of par. . 584,000
Accumulated depreciation. . . (130,000) Retained earnings .. ....... 456,000
Equipment ............... 320,000 Total controlling equity . . . .. 1,076,000
Accumulated depreciation. . . (60,000) Noncontrolling interest 100,000
Copyright. . .............. 50,000 Total equity. .. .......... $1,176,000
Goodwill ................ 135,000
Total long-term assets . . . . . 1,285,000
Totalassets ................ $1,596,000 Total liabilities and equity . . . . . $ 1,596,000

Adjustment of Goodwill Applicable to NCI

The NCI goodwill value can be reduced below its implied value if there is evidence that the implied
value exceeds the real fair value of the NCIs share of goodwill. This could occur when a parent pays
a premium to achieve control, which is not dependent on the size of the ownership interest.

The NCI share of goodwill could be reduced to zero, but the NCI share of the fair value of net
tangible assets is never reduced. The total NCI can never be less than the NCI percentage of the
fair value of the net assets (in this case, it cannot be less than 20% x $365,000 = $73,000).

If the fair value of the NCI was estimated to be $90,000 ($10,000 less than the value implied
by parent purchase price), the value analysis would be modified as follows (changes are boldfaced):

Company Parent NCI

Implied Fair Price Value
Value Analysis Schedule Value (80%) (20%)
Company fairvalue. . ....................... $490,000 $400,000 $90,000
Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill . . . . . .. 365,000 292,000 73,000
Goodwill. .......... ... ... ... $125,000 $108,000 $17,000
Gainonacquisition. . ... N/A N/A

Several assumptions went into the above calculation.

¢ Company fair value—This is now the sum of the price paid by the parent plus the newly

estimated fair value of the NCI.

¢ Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill—The fair values of the subsidiary accounts are
from the comparison of book and fair values. These values are never less than fair value.

¢ Goodwill—The total goodwill is the excess of the “company fair value” over the fair value of

the subsidiary net assets.

The revised D&D schedule with changes (from the previous example) in boldfaced type

would be as shown on next page.
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Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule

Company Implied Parent Price NCI Value
Fair Value (80%) (20%)

Fair value of subsidiary . ............ ... ... ... $ 490,000 $400,000 $ 90,000
Less book value of interest acquired:

Common stock ($1par)....................... $ 10,000

Paid-in capital in excessof par ................. 90,000

Retained earnings .. ................ ... ...... 60,000

Totalequity. . ..o $ 160,000 $160,000 $160,000

Interestacquired ................. L 80% 20%
Bookvalue. ... ... . . $128,000 $ 32,000
Excess of fair value over book value ... ............ $330,000 $272,000 $ 58,000
Adjustment of identifiable accounts:

Adjustment Worksheet Key

Inventory ($55,000 fair — $50,000 book value) . . . . . $ 5,000 debitD1
Land ($70,000 fair — $40,000 book value). . . . ... .. 30,000 debit D2
Buildings ($250,000 fair — $150,000 book value) . . . 100,000 debit D3
Equipment ($60,000 fair — $40,000 book value) . . . . 20,000 debit D4
Copyright ($50,000 fair — $0 book value). . .. ... ... 50,000 debit D5
Goodwill ($490,000 fair — $365,000 book value) . 125,000* debit D6

Total ... $330,000

IAS B standards

* Agrees with total (company) goodwill in the value analysis schedule.

If goodwill becomes impaired in a future period, the impairment charge would be allo-
cated to the controlling interest and the NCI based on the percentage of total goodwill each
equity interest received on the D&D schedule. In the original example, where goodwill on the
NCI was assumed to be proportional to that recorded on the controlling interest, the impairment
charge would be allocated 80/20 to the controlling interest and NCI. In the above example, where
goodwill was not proportional, a new percentage would be developed as follows:

Percentage
Value of Total
Goodwill applicable to parent from value analysis schedule . . . . . $108,000 86.4%
Goodwill applicable to NCI from value analysis schedule . . . . . .. 17,000 13.6%

Total goodwill . ... . $125,000

IASB PERSPECTIVES

* The IRRS has a single model to define control for all entities. Control exists when the
investor has the power to direct the entities activities and has the exposure or rights to
variable returns. The investor must have the ability to exercise its power to affect its
returns on its investment. Power may exist with less than a majority ownership position.’

No Goodwill on the Noncontrolling Interest

Currently, International Accounting Standards provide a choice in accounting for the noncontrol-
ling interest. The NCI can be recorded at fair value, which would result in goodwill applicable to

3 IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Chapter 2 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: DATE OF ACQUISITION

the NCI, as demonstrated above. The other choice is to record the NCI at the NCI percentage of
the fair value of the net identifiable assets only, with no goodwill on the NCI. Under the non-
NCI goodwill model, the preceding example would be modified to appear as shown below.*

If the fair value of the NCI is estimated to be $73,000 (20% x $365,000 fair value of sub-
sidiary company net identifiable assets), the value analysis would be modified as follows

(changes are boldfaced):

Company Parent NCI

Implied Fair Price Value
Value Analysis Schedule Value (80%) (20%)
Company fairvalue. . .................. $473,000 $400,000 $73,000
Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill . . 365,000 292,000 73,000
Goodwill. .......... ... ... $108,000 $108,000 $ 0
Gain on acquisition. . .................. N/A N/A

Several assumptions went into the calculation on page 74.
¢ Company fair value—This is now the sum of the price paid by the parent plus the NCI
share of net identifiable assets.

¢ Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill—The fair values of the subsidiary accounts are
from the comparison of book and fair values. These values are never less than fair value.

¢ Goodwill—The only goodwill recorded is that applicable to the controlling interest.

The revised D&D schedule with changes (from the previous example) in boldfaced type
would be as follows:

Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule

75

Company Implied Parent Price NCI Value
Fair Value (80%) (20%)

Fair value of subsidiary . ....................... $ 473,000 $400,000 $73,000
Less book value of inferest acquired:

Commonsstock ($Tpar)...................... $ 10,000

Paid-in capital in excessof par ................ 90,000

Retained earnings .. ................ ... .. ... 60,000

Totalequity. ... ..o $ 160,000 $160,000 $160,000

Interestacquired ......... ...l 80% 20%
Bookvalue. .. ... ... . . . $128,000 $ 32,000
Excess of fair value over book value ... ........... $313,000 $272,000 $41,000
Adjustment of identifiable accounts:

Adjustment Worksheet Key

Inventory ($55,000 fair — $50,000 book value) . . . . $ 5,000 debit D1
Land ($70,000 fair — $40,000 book value). . . ... .. 30,000 debit D2
Buildings ($250,000 fair — $150,000 book value) . . 100,000 debit D3
Equipment ($60,000 fair — $40,000 book value) . . . 20,000 debit D4
Copyright ($50,000 fair — $0 book value). .. ... ... 50,000 debit D5
Goodwill ($473,000 fair — $365,000 book value) 108,000* debit D6

Total . ... ... . $313,000

* Agrees with total (company) goodwill in the value analysis schedule.

If goodwill becomes impaired in a future period, the impairment charge would apply
only to the controlling interest.

4 |FRS 3, Business Combinations ( International Accounting Standards Board, January 2008), para. 19.

Copyright 2016 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).

Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



76

Part 1  COMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

Gain on Purchase of Subsidiary

Let us now study the same example, except that the price paid by the parent will be low enough
to result in a gain. Assume that Parental, Inc., issued 10,000 shares of its $1 par value common
stock for 80% of the outstanding shares of Sample Company. The fair value of a share of Paren-
tal, Inc., stock is $25. Parental also pays $25,000 in accounting and legal fees to complete the
purchase. Parental would make the following journal entry to record the purchase:

Investment in Sample Company (10,000 shares issued x $25 fairvalue) .. 250,000
Common Stock ($1 par value) (10,000 shares x $1par)........... 10,000
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par ($250,000 — $10,000 par value) . .. 240,000

Parental would record the costs of the acquisition as follows:

Acquisition Expense (closed to Retained Earnings since only balance
sheets are being examined) . ........... .. 25,000
Cash. oo 25,000

Refer back to the prior comparison of book and fair values for the subsidiary. The following
value analysis would be prepared for the 80% interest:

Company Parent NCI
Implied Fair Price Value
Value Analysis Schedule Value (80%) (20%)
Company fairvalue. ................... $ 323,000 $ 250,000 $73,000
Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill . . 365,000 292,000 73,000
Goodwill . ... N/A N/A
Gainon acquisition . .............. .. $(42,000) $(42,000)

Several assumptions went into the above calculation.

¢ Company fair value—TIt is assumed that if the parent would pay $250,000 for an 80%
interest, then the entire subsidiary company is worth $312,500 ($250,000/80%). We will
refer to this as the “implied value” of the subsidiary company. Assuming this to be true, the
NCI is worth 20% of the total subsidiary company value (20% x $312,500 = $62,500).
The NCI value, however, can never be less than its share of net identifiable assets ($73,000).
Thus, the NCI share of company value is raised to $73,000 (replacing the $62,500).

¢ Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill—The fair values of the subsidiary accounts are
from the comparison of book and fair values.

¢ Goodwill—There can be no goodwill when the price paid is less than the fair value of the
parent’s share of the fair value of net identifiable assets.

¢ Gain on acquisition—The only gain recognized is that applicable to the controlling interest.

The following D&D would be prepared:

Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule

Company Implied Parent Price NCI Value
Fair Value (80%) (20%)
Fair value of subsidiary . ....................... $ 323,000 $250,000 $ 73,000
Less book value of interest acquired:
Common stock ($T1par)...........ooiiii.. $ 10,000
Paid-in capital in excessof par .......... .. ... 90,000
Retainedearnings . ................. ... 60,000
Total equity. . .. ..o $ 160,000 $160,000 $160,000
Interestacquired ................ L. 80% 20%
Bookvalue. ... o $128,000 $ 32,000
Excess of fair value over book value . ............. $163,000 $122,000 $ 41,000
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Chapter 2 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: DATE OF ACQUISITION

Adjustment of identifiable accounts:

77

Adjustment Worksheet Key
Inventory ($55,000 fair — $50,000 book value) . . . . $ 5,000 debitD1
Land ($70,000 fair — $40,000 book value). . . ... .. 30,000 debit D2
Buildings ($250,000 fair — $150,000 book value) . . 100,000 debit D3
Equipment ($60,000 fair — $40,000 book value) . . . 20,000 debit D4
Copyright ($50,000 fair — $0 book value). ... ... .. 50,000 debit D5
Gain (only applies to controlling interest). . . . (42,000) credit D7
Total . ... L. $163,000

Worksheet 2-6 on page 94 is the consolidated worksheet for the $250,000 price. The D&D

schedule provides complete guidance for the worksheet eliminations.

¢ Elimination (EL) eliminated the subsidiary equity purchased (80% in this example) against
the investment account as follows:

(EL) Common Stock ($Tpar) ... 8,000

Paid-In Capital in Excessof Par . ......... ... ... .. 72,000

Retained Earnings .. ......... ..., 48,000
Investment in Sample Company. .................... 128,000

¢ The (D) series eliminations distribute the excess applicable to the controlling interest plus
the increase in the NCI [labeled (NCI)] to the appropriate accounts as indicated by the
D&D schedule. Worksheet eliminations are as follows:

(D1) Inventory ... ... 5,000
(D2) Land. .o 30,000
(D3) Buildings . ... 100,000
(D4) Equipment ... ... 20,000
(D5) Copyright ..o 50,000
(D7) Gain on Purchase of Subsidiary (since we are dealing only
with a balance sheet, this would be credited to
Controlling Retained Earnings) . .................... 42,000
(D) Investment in Sample Company [remaining excess after (EL)] 122,000
(NCI) Retained Earnings—Sample (NCl share of fair market
adjustment) ... . 41,000

Dr.=Cr. Check Totals .. ... 205,000 205,000

Valuation Schedule Strategy

Here are steps to valuation that will always work if prepared in the order shown below.
Step 1: Enter ownership percentages in C2 and D2. Then enter fair value of net assets of
acquired company in B4, and multiply by ownership percentages to fill C4 and D4.

A B C D
Company Implied

1.| Value Analysis Schedule Fair Value Parent Price NCI Value
2.| Ownership percentages 80% 20%
3.| Company fair value
4.| Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill 365,000 292,000 73,000
5.| Goodwill
6. | Gain on bargain acquisition

Step 2: Enter the price paid by the parent in C3. Then, enter value of NCI in D3. Normally,
this is proportionate to price paid by parent. It can be a separate value, but never less than D4.
This would happen when the parent pays a control premium. B3 is sum of C3 and D3.

Worksheet 2-6: page 94
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A B @ D
Company Implied

1.| Value Analysis Schedule Fair Value Parent Price NCI Value
2. | Ownership percentages 80% 20%
3. | Company fair value 525,000 420,000 105,000
4.| Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill 365,000 292,000 73,000
5.| Goodwill

6. | Gain on bargain acquisition

Step 3: Compare company fair value (B3) with fair value of net assets, excluding goodwill (B4).
If B3 is greater than B4, follow Step 3A (Goodwill). If B3 is less than B4, follow Step 3B (Gain).

Step 3A (Goodwill): Calculate goodwill for B5-D5 by subtracting line 4 from line 3 in
columns B-D.

A B C D

Company Implied
1.| Value Analysis Schedule Fair Value ParentPrice | NCI Value
2.| Ownership percentages 80% 20%
3.| Company fair value 525,000 420,000 105,000
4.| Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill 365,000 292,000 73,000
5.| Goodwill 160,000 128,000 32,000
6.| Gain on bargain acquisition

Step 3B (Gain): Enter the new values for line 3. The NCI value cannot be less than D4 and
normally will be equal to D4. (An exception where it exceeds D4 follows.) B4 is the sum of C4
and D4. Calculate and enter C6. It is C4 minus C3. No other cells are filled.

A B © D
Company Implied

1.| Value Analysis Schedule Fair Value Parent Price NCI Value
2.| Ownership percentages 80% 20%
3.| Company fair value 323,000 250,000 73,000
4.| Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill 365,000 292,000 73,000
5.| Goodwill

6.| Gain on bargain acquisition (42,000)

Step 3B (Gain) Exception for NCI: This exception is for a situation where the NCI value
exceeds its share of fair value of net assets, excluding goodwill.
Enter new Value for D3. Then calculate and enter values for C6 and D6. B6 is sum of C6

and D6.
A B C D
Company Implied

1.| Value Analysis Schedule Fair Value ParentPrice | NCI Value
2.| Ownership percentages 80% 20%
3.| Company fair value 340,000 250,000 90,000
4.| Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill 365,000 292,000 73,000
5.| Goodwill

6.| Gain on bargain acquisition (25,000) (42,000) 17,000
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Chapter 2 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: DATE OF ACQUISITION

The entry to distribute the excess on the worksheet would be as follows:

Investment in Subsidiary ........ ... 42,000
NI 17,000
Gain on Acquisition of Subsidiary . . ........... ... . L 25,000

Parent Exchanges Noncash Assets for Controlling Interest

The parent must bring to fair value any assets, other than cash, that it exchanges for the control-
ling interest. If those assets are retained and used by the subsidiary company, the gain must be
eliminated in the consolidation process.

Assets transferred would be retained by the subsidiary when cither:

1. The assets are transferred to the former sharcholders of the subsidiary company and the
shareholders sell the assets to the subsidiary company, or

2. The assets are transferred directly to the subsidiary company in exchange for newly issued
shares or treasury shares.

The gain would be deferred using the procedures demonstrated in Chapter 4 for the parent
sale of a fixed asset to the subsidiary.

REFLECTTION

¢ Alessthan 100% interest requires that value analysis be applied to the entire subsidiary.

e Subsidiary accounts are adjusted to full fair value regardless of the controlling
percentage ownership.

¢ The noncontrolling interest shares in all asset and liability fair value adjustments.

* The noncontrolling interest does not share a gain on the acquisition (when applicable).

* The noncontrolling share of subsidiary equity appears as a single line-item amount within
the equity section of the balance sheet.

PREEXISTING GOODWILL

If a subsidiary is purchased and it has goodwill on its books, that goodwill is ignored in the
value analysis. The only complication caused by existing goodwill is that the D&D schedule
will adjust existing goodwill, rather than only recording new goodwill. Let us return to the
example involving the 80% acquisition of Sample Company on page 63 and change only two
facts: assume Sample has goodwill of $40,000 and its retained earnings is $40,000 greater. The
revised book and fair values would be as follows:
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OBJECTIVE

Show the impact of
preexisting goodwill on the
consolidation process, and
be able to include prior
investments in the
acquisition price.

Book Market Book Market
Assets Value Value Liabilities and Equity Value Value
Accounts receivable .. ... .. .. $ 20,000 $ 20,000 Currentliabilities . ............ $ 40,000 $ 40,000
Inventory .................. 50,000 55,000 Bondspayable .............. 100,000 100,000
land............. ... L. 40,000 70,000 Total liabilities. . . ... ... .. $140,000 $140,000
Buildings .......... ... .. 200,000 250,000 Stockholders’ equity:
Accumulated depreciation .. .. (50,000) Common stock ($1 par)........ $ 10,000
Equipment ......... ... ..., 60,000 60,000  Paid-in capital in excess of par. . . 90,000
Accumulated depreciation . . .. (20,000) Retained earnings . ........... 100,000
Copyright ... .. 50,000 Totalequity ................. $ 200,000
Goodwill ... 40,000 Total liabilities and equity . . . . .. $340,000
Totalassets .............. $340,000 $505,000 Netassets................. $365,000
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Assume that Parental, Inc., issued 16,000 shares of its $1 par value common stock for 80%
(8,000 shares) of the outstanding shares of Sample Company. The fair value of a share of Paren-
tal, Inc., stock is $25. Parental also pays $25,000 in accounting and legal fees to accomplish the
purchase. Parental would make the following entry to record the purchase:

Investment in Sample Company (16,000 shares issued x $25 fairvalue) . . . ..

400,000

Common Stock ($1 par value) (16,000 shares x $1par)..............

Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par ($400,000 — $16,000 par value)

Parental would record the costs of the acquisition as follows:

Acquisition Expense (closed to Retained Earnings since only balance sheets

are being examined)

16,000
384,000

25,000

The value analysis schedule is unchanged. The fair value of the Sample Company net assets
does not include goodwill.

Company Parent NCI
Implied Fair Price Value
Value Analysis Schedule Value (80%) (20%)
Company fairvalve. . ....................... $ 500,000 $ 400,000 $100,000
Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill . ... ... 365,000 292,000 73,000
Goodwill. .............. ... $135,000 $108,000 $ 27,000
Gain on acquisition
The D&D schedule differs from the eatlier one only to the extent that:
¢ The Sample Company retained earnings is $40,000 greater.
¢ The implied goodwill of $135,000 is compared to existing goodwill of $40,000.
Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule
Company Parent NCI
Implied Fair Price Value
Value (80%) (20%)
Fair value of subsidiary . .............. ... ... ..., $ 500,000 $400,000 $100,000
Less book value of interest acquired:
Common stock ($T1par) ..., $ 10,000
Paid-in capital in excessof par ................. 90,000
Refained earnings . ..., 100,000
Totalequity. . ..o $ 200,000 $200,000 $200,000
Interestacquired . ...l 80% 20%
Bookvalue. ......... . $160,000 $ 40,000
Excess of fair value over book value ... ............ $300,000 $240,000 $ 60,000
Adjustment of identifiable accounts:
Adjustment Worksheet Key
Inventory ($55,000 fair — $50,000 book value) . . . . . $ 5,000 debit D1
Land ($70,000 fair — $40,000 book value). . . . .. . .. 30,000 debit D2
Buildings ($250,000 fair — $150,000 net book value) 100,000 debit D3
Equipment ($60,000 fair — $40,000 net book value) . 20,000 debit D4
Copyright ($50,000 fair — $0 book value). . ........ 50,000 debit D5
Goodwill ($135,000 fair — $40,000 book value) . . 95,000 debit D6
Total ... . $300,000
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Chapter 2 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: DATE OF ACQUISITION

The D&D schedule provides complete guidance for the worksheet eliminations. Changes
from Worksheet 2-5 are in boldface. Study Worksheet 2-7 on page 95 and note the following:

¢ Elimination (EL) eliminated the subsidiary equity purchased (80% in this example) against
the investment account as follows:

(EL) Common Stock ($1 par)—Sample .................... 8,000

Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Sample . .............. 72,000

Retained Earnings—Sample . .......... ... ... oL 80,000
Investment in Sample Company. . ................... 160,000

¢ The (D) series eliminations distribute the excess applicable to the controlling interest plus
the increase in the NCI [labeled (NCI)] to the appropriate accounts, as indicated by the
D&D schedule. The adjustment of the NCl is carried to subsidiary retained earnings.

D1) Inventory . ... 5,000
(D2) Land. .. 30,000
(D3) Buildings .. ... oo 100,000
(D4) Equipment ... 20,000
(D5) Copyright ..o 50,000
(DY) Goodwill ($135,000 — $40,000 book value) ........... 95,000
D) Investment in Sample Company [remaining excess after (EL)] . . . 240,000
(NCI) Retained Earnings Sample (NCl share of fair market adjustment) 60,000
Dr.=Cr. CheckTotals . ...... ... i 300,000 300,000

The Consolidated Balance Sheet column of Worksheet 2-7 is the same as those for Worksheet
2-5 and the resulting balance sheet (as shown on page 73 is unchanged).

REFLECTTION

¢ Where the acquired firm already has goodwill on its books, the D&D adjusts from the
recorded goodwill to the goodwill calculated in the valuation schedule.

OWNERSHIP OF A PRIOR NONCONTROLLING
INTEREST

The acquirer may already own a noncontrolling investment (less than 50%) interest in a company.
It may then decide to buy additional shares of common stock to achieve a controlling interest.
The previously owned shares are adjusted to fair value and a gain or loss is recorded on the invest-
ment. The fair value of the shares is then added to the price paid for the new shares. The prior plus
new interest is treated as one price paid for a controlling interest. Normally, the fair value of the
previously owned shares is based on the price paid for the controlling interest.

For example, assume Company P owns a 10% interest (10,000 shares) in Company S that
Company P purchased at a prior date for $20 per share. At a later date, Company P purchases
another 50,000 shares (50% interest) for $30 per share.

The 10,000 previously purchased shares would be adjusted to fair value as follows:

Investment in Company S shares (10,000 shares x $10 increase) ... .. 100,000
Unrealized Gain on Revaluation of Investments . ................. 100,000

Worksheet 2-7: page 95
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This entry would increase the carrying value of the 10,000 previously owned shares to
$300,000. The acquisition price for the controlling 60% interest would be calculated as follows:

Fair value of previously owned 10% interest. . ................... $ 300,000
Acquisition of 50,000 sharesat $30 ............ ... ... ... ..., 1,500,000
Total acquisition cost. ... ..ot $1,800,000

Assuming cash is paid for the 50,000 shares, the acquisition entry would be as follows:

Investment in Subsidiary Company S ........ ... 1,800,000
Cash (50,000 sharesat $30) .. ... ..ot 1,500,000
Investment in Company S (10,000 shares x $30) ................ 300,000

Value analysis and the D&D schedule would be constructed for a single 60% interest with
an acquisition price of $1,800,000.

Two observations that should be made about the prior investment that is rolled into the
total acquisition cost are as follows:

1. The above investment was a passive investment and was not an influential investment
accounted for under the equity method. Most likely, it would have been an “Available for
Sale” investment. It would have been adjusted to fair value on prior balance sheet dates with
the adjustment going to “Other Comprehensive Income” (OCI). That portion of the port-
folio and OCI adjustment attributable to this investment would be included in future port-
folio valuations. It is unlikely, but possible, that the investment could have been a “Trading
Investment.” In that case, prior portfolio adjustments were recorded as unrealized gains or
losses and were included in net income. The above investment would no longer be included
in the future portfolio adjustments.

2. The previously owned interest may be large enough to be accounted for under the equity
method (typically greater than a 20% interest). If that is the case, the investment will be car-
ried at equity-adjusted cost. It will be adjusted to fair value on the date of the later acquisi-
tion that creates control.

REFLECTTION

e Any previously owned interest in the acquiree is adjusted to fair value based on the price
paid for the later interest that creates control.

PUSH-DOWN ACCOUNTING

Thus far, it has been assumed that the subsidiary’s statements are unaffected by the parent’s pur-
chase of a controlling interest in the subsidiary. None of the subsidiary’s accounts is adjusted on
the subsidiary’s books. In all preceding examples, adjustments to reflect fair value are made only
on the consolidated worksheet. This is the most common but not the only accepted method.
Some accountants object to the inconsistency of using book values in the subsidiary’s sepa-
rate statements while using fair value-adjusted values when the same accounts are included in
the consolidated statements. They would advocate push-down accounting, whereby the subsid-
fary’s accounts are adjusted to reflect the fair value adjustments. In accordance with the new
basis of accounting, retained earnings are eliminated, and the balance (as adjusted for fair value
adjustments) is added to paid-in capital. It is argued that the purchase of a controlling interest
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gives rise to a new basis of accountability for the interest traded, and the subsidiary accounts
should reflect those values.

If the push-down method were applied to the example of a 100% purchase for $500,000 on
page 63, the following entry would be made by the subsidiary on its books:

Inventory . ... 5,000
Land. .. 30,000
Buildings . . ..o 100,000
Equipment ... 20,000
Copyright ... 50,000
Goodwill .. .o 135,000
Paid-In Capital in Excessof Par ........................... 340,000

This entry would raise the subsidiary equity to $500,000. The $500,000 investment account
would be eliminated against the $500,000 subsidiary equity with no excess remaining. All
accounts are adjusted to full fair value, even if there is a noncontrolling interest. The SEC staff has
adopted a policy of requiring push-down accounting, in some cases, for the separately published
statements of a subsidiary. The existence of any significant noncontrolling interests (usually above
5%) and/or significant publicly held debt or preferred stock generally eliminates the need to use
push-down accounting. Note that the consolidated statements are unaffected by this issue.
The only difference is in the placement of the adjustments from the determination and distribu-
tion of excess schedule. The conventional approach, which is used in this text, makes the adjust-
ments on the consolidated worksheet. The push-down method makes the same adjustments
directly on the books of the subsidiary. Under the push-down method, the adjustments are already
made when consolidation procedures are applied. Since all accounts are adjusted to reflect fair
values, the investment account is eliminated against subsidiary equity with no excess. The differ-
ence in methods affects only the presentation on the subsidiary’s separate statements.

IASB PERSPECTIVES

¢ IFRS does not allow "“push-down’” accounting to be used.

REFLECTTION

e Push-down accounting revalues subsidiary accounts directly on the books of the
subsidiary based on adjustments indicated in the D&D schedule.

e Since assets are revalued before the consolidation process starts, no distribution of excess
(to adjust accounts) is required on the consolidated worksheet.

APPENDIX: REVERSE ACQUISITION

A reverse acquisition occurs when a usually larger firm, that is not publicly traded, wishes to
acquire a controlling interest in a usually smaller company, which does not have publicly traded
common stock. The “reverse” nature of the transaction concerns the common shares used in
the exchange. So far, we have assumed that the potential controlling company issues its com-
mon stock shares to make the acquisition. In a “reverse acquisition,” the shares of the “to be”
acquired publicly traded company are used for the exchange. The intent is to end up with a con-
solidated company that has easily tradable stock.
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The following example is taken from FASB ASC 805-40-55-4 to allow the reader additional
information on the process. Prior to the acquisition, assume that Private Company (the
acquirer) and Public Company (the acquiree) have the following balance sheets:

Private Company (the acquirer, but the company receiving public shares)

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity
Currentassets . ................ $ 700 Long-term liabilities . .............. $1,700
Fixedassets . .................. 3,000 Common stock (60 shares) ($1 par) .. 60
Paid-in capital in excess of par .. . ... 540
Retained earnings . ............... 1,400
Totalassets. . ................ $3,700 Total liabilities and equity .. ...... $3,700
Public Company (the acquiree, but the company issuing public shares)
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015
Book Fair Book Fair
Assets Value Value Liabilities and Equity Value Value
Currentassefs .......... $ 500 $ 500 Long-term liabilities . . . . . .. $ 700 $700
Fixedassets . . .......... 1,300 1,500 Common stock (100 shares)
($1par) ..ot 100
Paid-in capital in excess of
PAM . e 200
Retained earnings . . ... ... 800
Total assefs. . ......... $1,800  $2,000 Total liabilities and equity  $1,800

Public Company will issue 150 new shares to Private Company shareholders in exchange
for their 60 outstanding shares of Private Company. Assuming that the fair value of a Public
Company share is $16, the transaction would be recorded by Public Company as follows:

Investment in Private Company (150 shares x $16).............. 2,400
Common Stock ($1 par) (150 shares x $1par) ................. 150
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par ($2,400 - $150par)............. 2,250

The following diagram depicts the change in ownership:

December 31, 2015

Prior to Exchange

Private Company

60 shares outstanding

Public Company

100 shares outstanding

After Exchange

Private Company

60 shares outstanding

Public Company

250 shares outstanding
Investment in Private Company, $2,400
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Chapter 2 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: DATE OF ACQUISITION

After the exchange, all of the shares of Private Company are owned by Public Company. In
most cases, Public Company will distribute Public Company shares to the former Private Com-
pany shareholders. However, the 150 shares of Public Company are owned by the former Pri-
vate Company shareholders. The former Private Company shareholders now own 60% of the
250 total Public Company shares. They, collectively, now have control of Public Company.

Since control of Public Company has been transferred, the company is considered to have
been sold. Thus, it is the Public Company assets and liabilities that must be adjusted to fair
value. Since the fair value per share of Public Company is $16, it is assumed that Public Com-
pany was worth $1,600 (100 shares x $16) prior to the transfer.

Because the shareholders of Private Company are the controlling interest, Private Company
cannot revalue its assets to fair value. The controlled company is Public Company; thus, it is
the company that must have its net assets adjusted to fair value. This means that value analysis
is only applied to Public Company.

The following value analysis would be prepared for Public Company. The fair value analysis
would apply to only those assets present just prior to the acquisition. The fair value of Public Com-
pany at the time of the acquisition can be calculated as $1,600 (100 shares x $16 market value).

The value analysis schedule for Public Company would be as follows:

Company

Implied Fair Parent Price
Value Analysis Schedule Value (100%) NCI Value
Company fairvalue . ................. . $1,600 $1,600
Fair value of assets excluding goodwill ($1,100 net
book value + $200 adjustment to fixed assets) . . . . .. 1,300 1,300
Goodwill ..................... ... ... ... $ 300 $ 300
Gainonacquisition .. ......... . N/A N/A

The determination and distribution of excess schedule would be prepared as follows:

Determination and Distribution of Excess Company Implied Parent Price
Schedule Fair Value (100%) NCI Value
Fair value of subsidiary $1,600 $1,600
Less book value of interest acquired:

Common stock ($1par) ...l $ 100

Paid-in capital in excessof par ............. 200

Retained earnings .................... ... 800

Totalequity. .. ... $1,100 $1,100

Interestacquired ..................... ... 100%
Bookvalue......... ... . $1,100
Excess of fair value over book value ... ........ $ 500 $ 500

Adjustment of identifiable accounts:

Fixed assets $ 200
Goodwill. ......... ... . ... L. 300
Total ......... ... ... $ 500

Worksheet 2A-1 on page 96 includes the consolidation procedures that may be used for the =~ Worksheet 2A-1: page 96
acquisition on the acquisition date. The first step is to eliminate the investment account against
the increase in Public Company equity recorded at the time of the acquisition as follows:

(EL) Common Stock ($1 par)—Public Company (150 shares x $1) ............ 150
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Public Company (150 shares x $15). ... .. 2,250
Investment in Private Company . .......... . i i 2,400
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The assets of Public Company are then adjusted to fair value on the acquisition date, using
the information from the above determination and distribution of excess schedule. The total
adjustment is credited to Public Company retained earnings.

D1) Fixed Assels. ...t 200
D2) Goodwill . .. 300
D) Retained Earnings—Public Company . .......... ... .. ... . 500

Then, the Private Company par and paid-in capital in excess of par amounts are transferred
to the par and paid-in value of the public shares. The retained earnings of the acquired, Public
Company, are also transferred to the paid-in capital in excess of par account of Public Company
as follows:

(Trans) Common Stock ($1 par)—Private Company ......... 60
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Private Company. . . 540
Retained Earnings—Public Company (as adjusted
BY D™} . oo 1,300
Common Stock ($1par)—Public Company (150
shares x $1)........... ... ... ...... 150
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Public Company
($1,900-8150) ............................... 1,750

The consolidation steps can be summarized as follows:

(EL) Remove the investment account and the additions to paid-in capital that occurred on the
purchase date.
(D) Bring the acquired company’s assets and liabilities to fair value on the acquisition date.
(Trans) Assign all remaining equity account values, except the controlling interest share of
retained earnings, to paid-in capital accounts of the publicly traded company. The only retained
earnings that can emerge from the combination are that of the controlling interest.

The following balance sheet results:

Public Company and Subsidiary Private Company
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity

Currentassets . ............... $1,200 Long-term liabilities ............... $2,400

Fixedassefs .. ................ 4,500 Equity:
Goodwill . ................... 300 Common stock ($1par)............ $ 250
Paid-in capital in excess of par . . . . .. 1,950
Retained earnings 1,400
Total controlling interest. . .. ... ... $3,600
Total assets $6,000  Total liabilities and equity ... ... .. $6,000

There are alternative procedures that could be used on the worksheet, but the end result is
that the controlling equity can only include the retained earnings of the acquiring company. In
this case, that is the original $1,400 attributable to Private Company. The total paid-in capital
can be confirmed as follows:

Total equity of acquired Public Company ($100 + $200 + $800) $1,100
Adjustment of Public Company to fair value 500
Total paid-in capital of Private Company ($60 + $540) 600
Total paid-in capital of consolidated Public Company $2,200
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Chapter 2 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: DATE OF ACQUISITION

Reverse Acquisition with Noncontrolling Interest

A portion of the acquiring company shareholders may choose not to exchange their shares for
the company being acquired. Let us change the prior example to assume that only 80% or 48
Private Company shares participate in the exchange. The 20% or 12 Private Company shares
become a noncontrolling interest in Private Company.

Public Company will issue 120 new shares to the Private Company shareholders
in exchange for their 48 outstanding shares of Private Company. Assuming that the fair value
of a Public Company share is $16, the transaction would be recorded by Public Company as
follows:

Investment in Private Company (120 shares x $16) 1,920
Common Stock ($1 par) (120 shares x $1 par) 120
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par ($1,920 - $120 par) 1,800

The following diagram depicts the change in ownership:

December 31, 2015

Prior to Exchange

Private Company Public Company

60 shares outstanding 100 shares outstanding

After Exchange

Private Company Public Company

60 shares outstanding 220 shares outstanding
Investment in Private Company, $1,920

After the exchange, 80% of the shares of Private Company are owned by Public Company.
However, the 120 shares of Public Company are owned by former Private Company share-
holders. The former Private Company sharecholders now own 54.5% of the 220 total Public
Company shares. They, collectively, now have control of Public Company.

Since the control of Public Company has been transferred, the company is considered to
have been sold. Thus, it is the Public Company assets and liabilities that must be adjusted to fair
value. Since the fair value per share of Public Company is $16, it is assumed that Public Com-
pany was worth $1,600 (100 shares x $16) prior to the transfer.

There is no change in the value analysis or the determination and distribution of excess sche-
dule. Since the noncontrolling interest is applicable to Private Company, it does not share in
the revaluation.

Worksheet 2A-2 on page 97 includes the consolidation procedures that may be used for the
acquisition on the acquisition date. The first step is to eliminate the investment account against
the increase in Public Company equity recorded at the time of the acquisition as follows:

(EL) Common Stock ($1 par)—Public Company (120 shares x $1) ... .... 120
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Public Company (120 shares x $15). 1,800
Investment in Public Company . .. ..... ... .. .. ... L 1,920

The assets of Public Company are then adjusted to fair value on the acquisition date, using
the information from the above determination and distribution of excess schedule. The total
adjustment is credited to Public Company retained earnings.

Worksheet 2A-2: page 97

Copyright 2016 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).

Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.

87



Part 1  COMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

D1) Fixed Assets. ... 200
(D2) Goodwill . ... 300
(D) Retained Earnings—Public Company ............ 500

Then, the Private Company par and paid-in capital in excess of par amounts are transferred
to the par and paid-in value of the public shares. The retained earnings of the acquired, Public
Company, are also transferred to the paid-in capital in excess of par account of Public Company

as follows:
(Trans) Common Stock ($1 par)—Private Company
($60 X 80%). .. ...o i 48
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Private Company
($540 X 80%) .. ..o\ 432
Retained Earnings—Public Company (as adjusted
by /D™’) . o 1,300
Common Stock ($1 par)—Public Company (120
shares x $1)................................... 120
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Public Company
($1,780-8120) ...l 1,660

The following balance sheet results:

Public Company and Subsidiary Private Company
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity
Currentassets . ............... $1,200 Long-term liabilities ................ $2,400
Fixedassets . .. ............... 4,500 Equity:
Goodwill .................... 300 Common stock ($1par)............. $ 220
Paid-in capital in excess of par ... .. .. 1,860
Retained earnings 1,120
Total controlling inferest. . .. ....... $3,200
Noncontrolling interest ........... 400
Total equity $3,600
Total assets $6,000 Total liabilities and equity .. ....... $6,000

There are alternative procedures that could be used on the worksheet, but the end result is
that the controlling equity can only include the retained earnings of the acquiring company. In
this case, that is $1,120 (80% x $1,400) attributable to the Private Company controlling inter-
est. The total paid-in capital can be confirmed as follows:

Public Company equity ($100 + $200 + $800) $1,100
Fair value adjustment 500
80% of Private Company paid-in capital (80% x $600) 480
Total paid-in capital in excess of par, Public Company $2,080
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UNDERSTANDING THE ISSUES

1. Jacobson Company is considering an investment in the common stock of Biltrite Com-
pany. What are the accounting issues surrounding the recording of income in future
periods if Jacobson purchases:

a. 15% of Biltrite's outstanding shares.
b. 40% of Biltrite's outstanding shares.
c. 100% of Biltrite's outstanding shares.
d. 80% of Biltrite's outstanding shares.

2. What does the elimination process accomplish?

3. Paulos Company purchases a controlling interest in Sanjoy Company. Sanjoy had identi-
fiable net assets with a book value of $500,000 and a fair value of $800,000. It was
agreed that the total fair value of Sanjoy’s common stock was $1,200,000. Use value
analysis schedules to determine what adjustments will be made to Sanjoy’s accounts
and what new accounts and amounts will be recorded if:

a. Paulos purchases 100% of Sanjoy’s common stock for $1,200,000.
b. Paulos purchases 80% of Sanjoy’s common stock for $960,000.

4. Pillow Company is purchasing a 100% interest in the common stock of Sleep Com-
pany. Sleep’s balance sheet amounts at book and fair values are as follows:

Account Book Value Fair Value
Current Assets . ..o $ 200,000 $ 250,000
FixedAssets. ..................... 350,000 800,000
Liabilities . ..o (200,000} (200,000}

Use valuation analysis schedules to determine what adjustments to recorded values
of Sleep Company’s accounts will be made in the consolidation process (including
the creation of new accounts), if the price paid for the 100% is:

a. $1,000,000.

b. $500,000.

5. Pillow Company is purchasing an 80% interest in the common stock of Sleep Com-
pany. Sleep’s balance sheet amounts at book and fair values are as follows:

Account Book Value Fair Value
CurrentAssets . .. ..o $ 200,000 $ 250,000
Fixed Assets. . ... ... 350,000 800,000
Liabilities .. ......... ... ... .. ... (200,000) (200,000)

Use valuation analysis schedules to determine what adjustments to recorded values
of Sleep Company’s accounts will be made in the consolidation process (including
the creation of new accounts), if the price paid for the 80% is:

a. $800,000.
b. $600,000.

6. Pillow Company is purchasing an 80% interest in the common stock of Sleep Company
for $800,000. Sleep’s balance sheet amounts at book and fair value are as follows:

Account Book Value Fair Value
Current Assets . ..o $ 200,000 $ 250,000
Fixed Assets. ... i .. 350,000 800,000
Liabilities .. ...................... (200,000) (200,000)
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Use a valuation analysis schedule to determine what will be the amount of the non-
controlling interest in the consolidated balance sheet and how will it be displayed in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Exercise 1 (LO 1) Investment recording methods. Santos Corporation is considering
investing in Fenco Corporation, but is unsure about what level of ownership should be underta-
ken. Santos and Fenco have the following reported incomes:

Santos Fenco
Sales ... $700,000 $450,000
Costofgoodssold................. 300,000 300,000
Grossprofit ...................... $400,000 $150,000
Selling and administrative expenses . . . 120,000 80,000
Netincome .................... $280,000 $ 70,000

Fenco paid $15,000 in cash dividends to its investors. Prepare a pro forma income statement for
Santos Corporation that compares income under 10%, 30%), and 80% ownership levels.

Exercise 2 (LO 3) Asset compared to stock purchase. Glass Company is thinking
about acquiring Plastic Company. Glass Company is considering two methods of accomplish-
ing control and is wondering how the accounting treatment will differ under each method.
Glass Company has estimated that the fair values of Plastic’s net assets are equal to their book
values, except for the equipment, which is understated by $20,000.

The following balance sheets have been prepared on the date of acquisition:

Assets Glass Plastic
Cash ... $540,000 $ 20,000
Accounts receivable ........ .. ... .. 50,000 70,000
Inventory .......... . ... i 50,000 100,000
Property, plant, and equipment (nef) . . . 230,000 270,000
Totalassets. . .. ..o $870,000 $460,000

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities . . ................ $140,000 $ 80,000
Bonds payable ................... 250,000 100,000
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock ($100 par). ... .. ... 200,000 150,000
Retained earnings .. ............. 280,000 130,000
Total liabilities and equity ......... $870,000 $460,000

1. Assume Glass Company purchased the net assets directly from Plastic Company for $530,000.

a. Prepare the entry that Glass Company would make to record the purchase.
b. Prepare the balance sheet for Glass Company immediately following the purchase.

2. Assume that 100% of the outstanding stock of Plastic Company is purchased from the for-
mer stockholders for a total of $530,000.

a. Prepare the entry that Glass Company would make to record the purchase.

b. State how the investment would appear on Glass’s unconsolidated balance sheet prepared
immediately after the purchase.

c. Indicate how the consolidated balance sheet would appear.
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Exercise 3 (LO 5) Simple value analysis. Flom Company is considering the cash purchase of
100% of the outstanding stock of Vargas Company. The terms are not set, and alternative prices are
being considered for negotiation. The balance sheet of Vargas Company shows the following values:

Liabilities and Equity

Assets
Cash equivalents . . .......... .. $ 60,000
Inventory .......... ... ... ... 120,000
land. ... ... 100,000
Building (net) .. ............... 200,000
Totalassets. . ...............

$480,000

Current liabilities . . ............ $ 60,000

Common stock ($5 par)......... 100,000

Paid-in capital in excess of par . .. 150,000

Retained earnings . . ........... 170,000
Total liabilities and equity . . . ..

$480,000

Appraisals reveal that the inventory has a fair value of $160,000 and that the land and build-
ing have fair values of $120,000 and $300,000, respectively.

1. Above what price will goodwill be recorded?

2. Below what price will a gain be recorded?

Exercise 4 (LO 5, 6) Recording purchase with goodwill. Woolco, Inc., purchased all
the outstanding stock of Paint, Inc., for $980,000. Woolco also paid $10,000 in direct acquisi-

tion costs. Just before the investment, the two companies had the following balance sheets:

Assets Woolco, Inc. Paint, Inc.
Accountsreceivable ... ...... .. .. .. $ 900,000 $ 500,000
Inventory .......... ... i 600,000 200,000
Depreciable fixed assets (nef) ........ 1,500,000 600,000

Totalassets. . ................... $3,000,000 $1,300,000
Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities . .. ............... $ 950,000 $ 400,000
Bondspayable ................... 500,000 200,000
Common stock ($10par). ........... 400,000 300,000
Paid-in capital in excess of par ... . ... 500,000 380,000
Retained earnings .. ............... 650,000 20,000
Total liabilities and equity ......... $3,000,000 $1,300,000

Appraisals for the assets of Paint, Inc., indicate that fair values differ from recorded book
values for the inventory and for the depreciable fixed assets, which have fair values of $250,000

and $750,000, respectively.

1. Prepare the entries to record the purchase of the Paint, Inc., common stock and payment of

acquisition costs.

2. Prepare the value analysis and the determination and distribution of excess schedule for the

investment in Paint, Inc.

3. Prepare the elimination entries that would be made on a consolidated worksheet.
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Exercise 5 (LO 5, 6) Purchase with a gain. Libra Company is purchasing 100% of the
outstanding stock of Genall Company for $700,000. Genall has the following balance sheet on
the date of acquisition:

Assets Liabilities and Equity

Accounts receivable . .......... $ 300,000 Currentliabilities . ............. $ 250,000

Inventory .................... 200,000 Bondspayable ............... 200,000

Property, plant, and equipment Common stock ($5 par)......... 200,000
(net) ..o 500,000

Paid-in capital in excess of par . .. 300,000

Computer software ............ 125,000 Retained earnings ............. 175,000

Totalassets. . . ........oo.. .. $1,125,000 Total liabilities and equity . . . .. $1,125,000

Appraisals indicate that the following fair values for the assets and liabilities should be
acknowledged:

Accounts receivable ............... $300,000
Inventory ......... ... .. o oL 215,000
Property, plant, and equipment. .. . ... 700,000
Computer software ................ 130,000
Current liabilities . . ................ 250,000
Bondspayable ................... 210,000

1. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule.
2. Prepare the elimination entries that would be made on a consolidated worksheet prepared
on the date of purchase.

Exercise 6 (LO 5, 6, 7) 80% purchase, alternative values for goodwill. Quail Com-
pany purchases 80% of the common stock of Commo Company for $800,000. At the time of
the purchase, Commo has the following balance sheet:

Assets Liabilities and Equity
Cashequivalents. . ............ $ 120,000 Currentliabilities . ............. $ 200,000
Inventory ......... ... ..., 200,000 Bondspayable ............... 400,000
land. ... 100,000 Common stock ($5 par)......... 100,000
Building (net) ... ............ .. 450,000  Paid-in capital in excess of par . .. 150,000
Equipment nef) ............ ... 230,000 Retained earnings ............. 250,000
Totalassets. . . ... .. $1,100,000 Total liabilities and equity . . . .. $1,100,000

The fair values of assets are as follows:

Cash equivalents . ................. $120,000
Inventory ......... ... ... oL 250,000
land. . ... 200,000
Building. ... L. 650,000
Equipment........ ... oo ool 200,000

1. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule
under three alternatives for valuing the NCI:

a. The value of the NCI is implied by the price paid by the parent for the controlling interest.
b. The market value of the shares held by the NCI is $45 per share.
c. The international accounting option, which does not allow goodwill to be recorded as

part of the NCI, is used.

2. Prepare the elimination entries that would be made on a consolidated worksheet prepared
on the date of purchase under the three alternatives for valuing the NCI:

a. The value of the NCI is implied by the price paid by the parent for the controlling interest.

b. The market value of the shares held by the NCI is $45 per share.

¢. The international accounting option, which does not allow goodwill to be recorded as
part of the NCI, is used.
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Exercise 7 (LO 5, 6, 7, 8) 80% purchase with a gain and preexisting goodwill. Venus
Company purchases 8,000 shares of Sundown Company for $64 per share. Just prior to the

purchase, Sundown Company has the following balance sheet:

Assets

Liabilities and Equity

Inventory ........ ... ... . L. 280,000
Property, plant, and equipment (net) . 400,000
Goodwill . ... 100,000

Totalassets. . ................. $800,000

Current liabilities . .. ............. $250,000
Common stock ($5 par)........... 50,000
Paid-in capital in excess of par .. . .. 130,000

370,000

Total liabilities and equity ... .. .. $800,000

Retained earnings .. .............

Venus Company believes that the inventory has a fair value of $400,000 and that the prop-
erty plant, and equipment is worth $500,000.

1. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule.
2. Prepare the elimination entries that would be made on a consolidated worksheet prepared
on the date of acquisition.

Exercise 8 (LO 1, 5, 6, 7, 8) Prior investment, control with later acquisition. Barns
Corporation purchased a 10% interest in Delta Company on January 1, 2015, as an available-
for-sale investment for a price of $42,000.

On January 1, 2020, Barns Corporation purchased 7,000 additional shares of Delta Com-
pany from existing shareholders for $350,000. This purchase raised Barns’s interest to 80%.
Delta Company had the following balance sheet just prior to Barns’s second purchase:

Assets Liabilities and Equity

$165,000 Liabilities .......... ... .. $ 65,000
140,000  Common stock ($10par).......... 100,000
100,000  Retained earnings ............... 240,000

$405,000 Total liabilities and equity .. .. ... $405,000

Currentassets ..................
Buildings (nef) ..................
Equipment (net) ......... ... ..

Totalassets. . .................

At the time of the second purchase, Barns determined that Delta’s equipment was under-
stated by $50,000 and had a 5-year remaining life. All other book values approximated fair

values. Any remaining excess was attributed to goodwill.

1. Prepare the value analysis and the determination and distribution of excess schedule for the
2020 purchase.

2. Record the investment made by Barns on January 1, 2020, and any required adjustment of
the prior 10% interest.

Exercise 9 (LO 9) Push-down accounting. On January 1, 2021, Knight Corporation pur-
chases all the outstanding shares of Craig Company for $950,000. It has been decided that
Craig Company will use push-down accounting principles to account for this transaction. The
current balance sheet is stated at historical cost.

The following balance sheet is prepared for Craig Company on January 1, 2021:

Assets Liabilities and Equity

Current assets:

Cash ...............

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses. . . . . .

Building (net) .........

Total assets. . .........

....... $ 80,000
....... 260,000

....... 20,000 $ 360,000

Property, plant, and equipment:
....... $200,000

....... 600,000
....... $1,160,000

Current liabilities $ 90,000
Long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable. . .............. $300,000
Deferredtaxes .. .............. 50,000

Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock ($10par). . ... ... $300,000
420,000

350,000

Retained earnings .. ........... 720,000

800,000

Total liabilities and equity . ... ... $1,160,000
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Knight Corporation receives the following appraisals for Craig Company’s assets and
liabilities:

Cash ... $ 80,000
Accounts receivable ....... ... 260,000
Prepaid expenses . ........... 20,000
land. ..o 250,000
Building (net) .. .............. 700,000
Current liabilities . .. .......... 90,000
Bonds payable .............. 280,000
Deferred tax liability .......... 40,000

1. Record the investment.

2. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule.

3. Record the adjustments on the books of Craig Company.

4. Prepare the entries that would be made on the consolidated worksheet to eliminate the
investment.

APPENDIX EXERCISE

Exercise 2A-1 (LO 10) Reverse acquisition. Small Company acquired a controlling
interest in Big Company. Private Company had the following balance sheet on the acquisition
date:

Small Company (the acquirer)
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity
Currentassets .......oooouun... $1,000 Long-term liabilities .. ............ $2,000
Fixedassets . . ................. 5,000 Common stock ($1 par) (100 shares) 100
Paid-in capital in excess of par .. . .. 900
Retained earnings .. ............. 3,000
Totalassets. .. ............... $6,000 Total liabilities and equity ... .. .. $6,000

Big Company had the following book and fair values on the acquisition date:

Assets Book Value  Fair Value Liabilities and Equity ~ Book Value  Fair Value
Currentassets . ....... $1,000 $1,000 Long-term liabilities . ... $1,000 $1,000
Fixedassets . ......... 2,000 3,000 Common stock ($1 par)

(200 shares) . . ..... 200
Paid-in capital in excess

ofpar.......... ... 800
Retained earnings . . . . . 1,000

Total liabilities and
Total assets. .. ...... $3,000 $4,000 equity. .......... $3,000

The shareholders of Small Company requested 300 Big Company shares in exchange for all
of their 100 shares. This was an exchange ratio of 3 to 1. The fair value of a share of Big Com-
pany was $25.

Prepare an appropriate value analysis and a determination and distribution of excess schedule.
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PROBLEMS

Problem 2-1 (L0 3, 4, 5, 6) 100% purchase, goodwill, consolidated balance sheet. On
July 1, 2016, Roland Company exchanged 18,000 of its $45 fair value ($1 par value) shares for
all the outstanding shares of Downes Company. Roland paid acquisition costs of $40,000. The
two companies had the following balance sheets on July 1, 2016:

Required » » » » »

Required » » » » »

Assets Roland Downes
Other currentassets. .. ............. $ 50,000 $ 70,000
Inventory .......... . ... il 120,000 60,000
land. .. .. 100,000 40,000
Building (net) ... ... L 300,000 120,000
Equipment(net) ......... .. .. oL 430,000 110,000
Total assets. . ... $1,000,000 $400,000
Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities . .. ............... $ 180,000 $ 60,000
Common stock ($1par)............. 40,000 20,000
Paid-in capital in excess of par ... .... 360,000 180,000
Retained earnings .. ............... 420,000 140,000
Total liabilities and equity ......... $1,000,000 $400,000

The following fair values applied to Downes’s assets:

Building..........
Equipment ........

$ 70,000
80,000
90,000

150,000
100,000

1. Record the investment in Downes Company and any other entry necessitated by the purchase.
2. Prepare the value analysis and the determination and distribution of excess schedule.
3. Prepare a consolidated balance sheet for July 1, 2016, immediately subsequent to the

purchase.

Problem 2-2 (10 3, 4, 5, 6, 7) 80% purchase, goodwill, consolidated balance
sheet. Using the data given in Problem 2-1, assume that Roland Company exchanged 14,000
of its $45 fair value ($1 par value) shares for 16,000 of the outstanding shares of Downes

Company.

1. Record the investment in Downes Company and any other purchase-related entry.
2. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule.
3. Prepare a consolidated balance sheet for July 1, 2016, immediately subsequent to the purchase.

Problem 2-3 (10 3, 4, 5, 6) 100% purchase, bargain, elimination entries only. On
March 1, 2015, Carlson Enterprises purchases a 100% interest in Entro Corporation for
$400,000. Entro Corporation has the following balance sheet on February 28, 2015:

Entro Corporation
Balance Sheet

February 28,2015

Assets

Liabilities and Equity

Accounts receivable . ... ... .. ...
Inventory .......... . ... L.

$ 60,000 Currentliabilities.............. $ 50,000
80,000 Bondspayable ............... 100,000
(continued)
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Assets Liabilities and Equity
land. ... 40,000 Common stock ($5 par)......... 50,000
Buildings .. ... 300,000  Paid-in capital in excess of par ... 250,000
Accumulated depreciation—building .. (120,000) Retained earnings............. 70,000
Equipment........ ... ool 220,000
Accumulated depreciation—equipment (60,000)
Totalassets. .. .................. $ 520,000  Total liabilities and equity ... .. $520,000

Carlson Enterprises receives an independent appraisal on the fair values of Entro Corpora-
tion’s assets and liabilities. The controller has reviewed the following figures and accepts them as
reasonable:

Accounts receivable .......... $ 60,000
Inventory ......... ... L 100,000
land. .. ... 40,500
Building . ................ ... 202,500
Equipment ... ... ool 162,000
Current liabilities . .. .......... 50,000
Bonds payable .............. 95,000

Record the investment in Entro Corporation.

Prepare the value analysis and the determination and distribution of excess schedule.

3. Prepare the elimination entries that would be made on a consolidated worksheet prepared
on the date of acquisition.

N —

Problem 2-4 (10 3, 4, 5, 6, 7) 80% purchase, bargain, elimination entries only. On
March 1, 2015, Penson Enterprises purchases an 80% interest in Express Corporation for

$320,000 cash. Express Corporation has the following balance sheet on February 28, 2015:

Express Corporation
Balance Sheet

February 28,2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity

Accountsreceivable . ........ .. .. .. $ 60,000 Currentliabilities .. ................ $ 50,000
Inventory .............. .. 80,000 Bondspayable ................... 100,000
Land. ... 40,000 Common stock ($10par)............ 50,000
Buildings ........................ 300,000 Paid-in capital in excess of par . ... ... 250,000
Accumulated depreciation—buildings .  (120,000) Retained earnings................. 70,000
Equipment . ... ool 220,000
Accumulated depreciation—equipment  (60,000)

Totalassets. . .. ..o $ 520,000 Total liabilities and equity .. ..... .. $520,000

Penson Enterprises receives an independent appraisal on the fair values of Express Corpora-
tion’s assets and liabilities. The controller has reviewed the following figures and accepts them as
reasonable:

Accounts receivable .. ........ $ 60,000
Inventory ...... .. ... .. 100,000
land. ... 50,000
Buildings . ............ ... ... 200,000
Equipment . ....... ... 162,000
Current liabilities . . ........... 50,000
Bonds payable .............. 95,000

105
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1. Record the investment in Express

Part I COMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

Corporation.

2. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule.
3. Prepare the elimination entries that would be made on a consolidated worksheet prepared

on the date of acquisition.

Problem 2-5 (10 5, 6, 9) 100% purchase, goodwill, push-down accounting. On
March 1, 2015, Collier Enterprises purchases a 100% interest in Robby Corporation for
$480,000 cash. Robby Corporation applies push-down accounting principles to account for

this acquisition.

Robby Corporation has the following balance sheet on February 28, 2015:

Robbf/ Corporation
Balance Sheet
February 28, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity

Accountsreceivable ........... ... .. $ 60,000 Currentliabilities.............. $ 50,000
Inventory . ........cooviiiiiii, 80,000 Bondspayable ............... 100,000
land. ... 40,000 Common stock ($5)............ 50,000
Buildings .......... ... L. 300,000 Paid-in capital in excessof par ... 250,000
Accumulated depreciation—buildings .. (120,000) Retained earnings ............. 70,000
Equipment......... ... o ool 220,000
Accumulated depreciation—equipment . (60,000)

Totalassets. . ..o, $ 520,000  Total liabilities and equity . . . .. $520,000

Collier Enterprises receives an independent appraisal on the fair values of Robby Corpora-
tion’s assets and liabilities. The controller has reviewed the following figures and accepts them as

reasonable:

Buildings .........
Equipment . .......
Current liabilities . . .

Bonds payable

[a—y

$ 60,000
100,000
55,000
200,000
150,000
50,000
98,000

Record the investment in Robby Corporation.

2. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess

schedule.

3. Give Robby Corporation’s adjusting entry.

Problem 2-6 (LO 3, 4, 5, 6) 100%

purchase, goodwill, worksheet. On December 31,

2015, Aron Company purchases 100% of the common stock of Shield Company for $450,000
cash. On this date, any excess of cost over book value is attributed to accounts with fair
values that differ from book values. These accounts of Shield Company have the following fair

values:

Cash

Buildings and equipment. .. .. ..

Copyrights. . ......
Current liabilities . . .
Bonds payable

$ 40,000
30,000
140,000
45,000
225,000
25,000
65,000
105,000
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The following comparative balance sheets are prepared for the two companies immediately
after the purchase:

Aron Shield

Cash oo $ 185,000 $ 40,000
Accounts receivable .......... ... .. 70,000 30,000
Inventory .......... ... ... oL 130,000 120,000
Investment in Shield Company . ... ... 450,000
land. . ... 50,000 35,000
Buildings and equipment. . ....... ... 350,000 230,000
Accumulated depreciation .......... (100,000) (50,000)
Copyrights. .. ... oL 40,000 10,000

Totalassets. . . oovveeene ... $1,175,000 $415,000
Current liabilities . .. ............... $ 192,000 $ 65,000
Bondspayable ................... 100,000
Common stock ($10 par)—Aron. . . ... 100,000
Common stock ($5 par)—Shield. . . . .. 50,000
Paid-in capital in excess of par ... .. .. 250,000 70,000
Retained earnings .. ............... 633,000 130,000

Total liabilities and equity ......... $1,175,000 $415,000

1. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule < €4 <€ €4 < Required
for the investment in Shield Company.

2. Complete a consolidated worksheet for Aron Company and its subsidiary Shield Company
as of December 31, 2015.

Problem 2-7 (1O 3, 4, 5, 6, 7) 80% purchase, goodwill, worksheet. Using the data

given in Problem 2-6, assume that Aron Company purchases 80% of the common stock of

Shield Company for $320,000 cash. -
The following comparative balance sheets are prepared for the two companies immediately

after the purchase:

iy

Aron Shield

Cash .oooeii $ 315,000 $ 40,000
Accounts receivable . ... ... . ... 70,000 30,000
Inventory .......... ... 130,000 120,000
Investment in Shield Company .. ..... 320,000
land. .o 50,000 35,000
Buildings and equipment. ........... 350,000 230,000
Accumulated depreciation .......... (100,000) (50,000)
Copyrights. .. ..o 40,000 10,000

Totalassets. . ................... $1,175,000 $415,000
Current liabilities . .. ............... $ 192,000 $ 65,000
Bondspayable ................... 100,000
Common stock ($10 par)—Aron. . . . .. 100,000
Common stock ($5 par)—Shield. . . . .. 50,000
Paid-in capital in excess of par ... . ... 250,000 70,000
Retained earnings .. ............... 633,000 130,000

Total liabilities and equity ......... $1,175,000 $415,000

1. Prepare the value analysis and the determination and distribution of excess schedule for the < €4 € €4 <« Required
investment in Shield Company.

2. Complete a consolidated worksheet for Aron Company and its subsidiary Shield Company
as of December 31, 2015.
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Use the following information for Problems 2-8 through 2-11:

In an attempt to expand its operations, Palto Company acquires Saleen Company on
January 1, 2015. Palto pays cash in exchange for the common stock of Saleen. On the
date of acquisition, Saleen has the following balance sheet:

Saleen Company
Balance Sheet
January 1,2015

Assets Liabilities and Equity

Accounts receivable .. ........ $ 20,000 Currentliabilities .. .............. $ 40,000
Inventory . ... L. 50,000 Bondspayable ................. 100,000
land. ... 40,000 Commonstock ($1 par)........... 10,000
Buildings ................... 200,000 Paid-in capital in excess of par . . . .. 90,000
Accumulated depreciation . . . .. (50,000) Retained earnings ............... 60,000
Equipment . ... ... 60,000
Accumulated depreciation . . . .. (20,000)

Total assets. . ..o .. $300,000  Total liabilities and equity ... .. .. $300,000

An appraisal provides the following fair values for assets:

Accounts receivable .......... $ 20,000
Inventory .......... ... ...... 60,000
land. ... 80,000
Buildings . ........... ... .. 320,000
Equipment...... ... ... L 60,000
Copyright . ................. 50,000

Problem 2-8 (10 3, 4, 5, 6) 100% purchase, goodwill, worksheet. Use the preceding
information for Palto’s purchase of Saleen common stock. Assume Palto purchases 100% of the
Saleen common stock for $500,000 cash. Palto has the following balance sheet immediately
after the purchase:

Palto Company

Balance Sheet
January 1,2015

Assets Liabilities and Equity

Cash ... $ 61,000 Currentliabilities............... $ 80,000
Accounts receivable . ........... 65,000 Bondspayable ................ 200,000
Inventory .............. ... .. .. 80,000 Common stock ($1par).......... 20,000
Investmentin Saleen ............ 500,000  Paid-in capital in excess of par . . .. 180,000
land. ... 100,000 Retained earnings . ............. 546,000
Buildings ..................... 250,000
Accumulated depreciation . ... ... (80,000)
Equipment . ... ... oL 90,000
Accumulated depreciation .. ... .. (40,000)

Totalassets ............... $1,026,00 Total liabilities and equity ..  $1,026,00

1. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule
for the investment in Saleen.

2. Complete a consolidated worksheet for Palto Company and its subsidiary Saleen Company
as of January 1, 2015.
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Problem 2-9 (10 3, 4, 5, 6, 7) 100% purchase, bargain, worksheet. Use the preceding
information for Palto’s purchase of Saleen common stock. Assume Palto purchases 100% of the
Saleen common stock for $400,000 cash. Palto has the following balance sheet immediately
after the purchase:

Palto Company
Balance Sheet

January 1, 2015

Assets Liabilities and Equity

Cash ... $ 161,000 Current liabilities . .. .......... $ 80,000
Accounts receivable .......... 65,000  Bonds payable ($1 par) ....... 200,000
Inventory ........... ... ... .. 80,000 Commonstock. .............. 20,000
Investmentin Saleen .......... 400,000  Paid-in capital in excess of par .. 180,000
land. ... 100,000 Retained earnings . ........... 546,000
Buildings ................... 250,000
Accumulated depreciation . . . .. (80,000)
Equipment ... ... 90,000
Accumulated depreciation . . . .. (40,000)

Total assets. .. .oovovn. .. $1,026,000 Total liabilities and equity . ... $1,026,000

1. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule
for the investment in Saleen.

2. Complete a consolidated worksheet for Palto Company and its subsidiary Saleen Company
as of January 1, 2015.

Problem 2-10 (L0 3, 4, 5, 6, 7) 80% purchase, goodwill, worksheet. Use the preceding
information for Palto’s purchase of Saleen common stock. Assume Palto purchases 80% of the
Saleen common stock for $400,000 cash. The shares of the noncontrolling interest have a fair
value of $46 each. Palto has the following balance sheet immediately after the purchase:

Palto Company
Balance Sheet
January 1,2015

Assets Liabilities and Equity

Cash ..o, $ 161,000 Currentliabilities .. ............ $ 80,000
Accounts receivable . ... ... ... 65,000 Bondspayable ............... 200,000
Inventory ................... 80,000  Common stock ($1 par)......... 20,000
Investmentin Saleen .......... 400,000  Paid-in capital in excess of par . . . 180,000
land. ... ... 100,000  Retained earnings . ............ 546,000
Buildings . ............ ..., 250,000
Accumulated depreciation . . . .. (80,000)
Equipment ... ... ... oL 90,000
Accumulated depreciation . . . .. (40,000)

Totalassets. . .............. $1,026,000 Total liabilities and equity . . . .. $1,026,000

1. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule
for the investment in Saleen.

2. Complete a consolidated worksheet for Palto Company and its subsidiary Saleen Company
as of January 1, 2015.
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Problem 2-11 (LO 3, 4, 5, 6, 7) 80% purchase, bargain, purchase, worksheet. Use
the preceding information for Palto’s purchase of Saleen common stock. Assume Palto pur-
chases 80% of the Saleen common stock for $300,000 cash. Palto has the following balance
sheet immediately after the purchase:

Palto Company
Balance Sheet
January 1,2015

Assets Liabilities and Equity

Cash oo, $ 261,000  Currentliabilities . ............ $ 80,000
Accounts receivable . ... ... ... 65,000 Bondspayable .............. 200,000
Inventory ........... ... ... .. 80,000 Common stock ($1 par)........ 20,000
Investment in Saleen .......... 300,000  Paid-in capital in excess of par . . 180,000
land. ... .. 100,000  Retainedearnings ............ 546,000
Buildings ............ ... ... 250,000
Accumulated depreciation . . . .. (80,000)
Equipment......... ... L 90,000
Accumulated depreciation . . . .. (40,000)

Total assets. . .............. $1,026,000 Total liabilities and equity . ... $1,026,000

1. Prepare the value analysis and the determination and distribution of excess schedule for the
investment in Saleen.

2. Complete a consolidated worksheet for Palto Company and its subsidiary Saleen Company
as of January 1, 2015.

Use the following information for Problems 2-12 through 2-15:
Purnell Corporation acquires Sentinel Corporation on December 31, 2015. Sentinel has
the following balance sheet on the date of acquisition:

Sentinel Corporation

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity
Accounts receivable . ......... $ 50,000 Current liabilities . .. .......... $ 90,000
Inventory . .................. 120,000  Bondspayable .............. 200,000
land. ... 100,000  Common stock ($1par)........ 10,000
Buildings . ............... ... 300,000  Paid-in capital in excessof par .. 190,000
Accumulated depreciation . . . .. (100,000)  Retained earnings ............ 140,000
Equipment . ... ... 140,000
Accumulated depreciation . . . .. (50,000)
Patent...................... 10,000
Goodwill ........... ... 60,000
Totalassets. .. ............. $ 630,000 Total liabilities and equity .... $630,000
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An appraisal is performed to determine whether the book values of Sentinel’s net
assets reflect their fair values. The appraiser also determines that intangible assets exist,
although they are not recorded. The following fair values for assets and liabilities are
agreed upon:

Accounts receivable .. ... ... .. $ 50,000
Inventory ......... . ... 100,000
land. ... 200,000
Buildings . ........... ... .. 400,000
Equipment ... ... ... 200,000
Patent. ... ... ... ... 150,000
Computer software . .......... 50,000
Current liabilities . . ........... 90,000
Bonds payable .............. 210,000

Problem 2-12 (10 3, 4, 5, 6, 8 100% purchase, goodwill, several adjustments,
worksheet. Use the preceding information for Purnell’s purchase of Sentinel common stock.
Assume Purnell exchanges 22,000 shares of its own stock for 100% of the common stock of
Sentinel. The stock has a market value of $50 per share and a par value of $1. Purnell has the
following trial balance immediately after the purchase:

Purnell Corporation
Trial Balance

December 31, 2015

Cash . 20,000
Accounts Receivable . ... ... .. ... .. 300,000
Inventory ... ... 410,000
Investment in Sentinel ........ ... ... L 1,100,000
land. . 800,000
Buildings .. ... 2,800,000
Accumulated Depreciation .............. ... ..., (500,000)
Equipment . ... . 600,000
Accumulated Depreciation . ............. ... . (230,000)
Current Liabilities. . .................. ... ... (150,000)
BondsPayable............ ... . . (300,000)
Common Stock ($1par) ............. (95,000)
Paid-In Capital in Excessof Par ........................ (3,655,000)
Retained Earnings . .. ... (1,100,000)

Total. .o 0

1. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule
for the investment in Sentinel.

2. Complete a consolidated worksheet for Purnell Corporation and its subsidiary Sentinel Cor-
poration as of December 31, 2015.

Problem 2-13 (10 3, 4, 5, 6, 8) 100% purchase, bargain, several adjustments, work-
sheet. Use the preceding information for Purnell’s purchase of Sentinel common stock.
Assume Purnell exchanges 16,000 shares of its own stock for 100% of the common stock of
Sentinel. The stock has a market value of $50 per share and a par value of $1. Purnell has the
following trial balance immediately after the purchase, as shown on next page.
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Purnell Corporation
Trial Balance
December 31, 2015

Cash 20,000
Accounts Receivable . ... ... . 300,000
Inventory .. ... 410,000
Investmentin Sentinel ....... ... ... . ... . 800,000
land. ... 800,000
Buildings . ..o 2,800,000
Accumulated Depreciation . ... (500,000)
Equipment . ... o 600,000
Accumulated Depreciation .. ......... ... (230,000)
Current Liabilities. . . ... (150,000)
Bonds Payable. ....... ... (300,000)
Common Stock ($Tpar) ... (89,000)
Paid-In Capital in Excessof Par . ............. ... ... . ..., (3,361,000)
Retained Earnings ... ... ... (1,100,000)

Total. . 0

1. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule
for the investment in Sentinel.

2. Complete a consolidated worksheet for Purnell Corporation and its subsidiary Sentinel Cor-
poration as of December 31, 2015.

Problem 2-14 (10 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8) 80% purchase, goodwill, several adjustments,
worksheet. Use the preceding information for Purnell’s purchase of Sentinel common stock.
Assume Purnell exchanges 19,000 shares of its own stock for 80% of the common stock of Sen-
tinel. The stock has a market value of $50 per share and a par value of $1. Purnell has the fol-
lowing trial balance immediately after the purchase:

Purnell Corporation
Trial Balance

December 31, 2015
Cash 20,000
Accounts Receivable . ... ... . 300,000
INVENTOry . .o 410,000
Investmentin Sentinel ... ... ... ... . ... 950,000
land. .. .. 800,000
Buildings . ..o 2,800,000
Accumulated Depreciation . ... (500,000)
Equipment . . ..o 600,000
Accumulated Depreciation .. ......... ... (230,000)
Current Liabilities. . . ... (150,000)
BondsPayable. . ... ... .. (300,000)
Common Stock ($Tpar) ... (92,000)
Paid-In Capital in Excessof Par . ............. ... . ... ..., (3,508,000)
Retained Earnings ... ... ... (1,100,000)
Total

................................................ 0

1. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule
for the investment in Sentinel.

2. Complete a consolidated worksheet for Purnell Corporation and its subsidiary Sentinel
Corporation as of December 31, 2015.
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Problem 2-15 (10 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8) 80% purchase, bargain, several adjustments,
worksheet. Use the preceding information for Purnell’s purchase of Sentinel common stock.
Assume Purnell exchanges 10,000 shares of its own stock for 80% of the common stock of Sen-
tinel. The stock has a market value of $50 per share and a par value of $1. Purnell has the fol-
lowing trial balance immediately after the purchase:

Purnell Corporation
Trial Balance

December 31, 2015
Cash oo 20,000
AccountsReceivable .. ... ... 300,000
Inventory . ... .. 410,000
Investmentin Sentinel .. ... .. .. 500,000
Land. . 800,000
Buildings .. ..o 2,800,000
Accumulated Depreciation .. .......... ... (500,000)
Equipment . .. 600,000
Accumulated Depreciation .. .......... ... (230,000)
CurrentLiabilities. . .............. . .. (150,000)
BondsPayable. . ....... .. (300,000)
Common Stock ($T1par) ... (83,000)
Paid-In Capital in Excessof Par . ............................ (3,067,000)
Retained Earnings . ... ... .. (1,100,000)

Total. .o 0

1. Prepare the value analysis schedule and the determination and distribution of excess schedule < €4 <€ €4 < Required
for the investment in Sentinel.

2. Complete a consolidated worksheet for Purnell Corporation and its subsidiary Sentinel
Corporation as of December 31, 2015.

APPENDIX PROBLEM

Problem 2A-1 (LO 10) Reverse acquisition On January 1, 2016, the shareholders of
Unknown Company request 6,000 Famous shares in exchange for all of their 5,000 shares. This
is an exchange ratio of 1.2 to 1. The fair value of a share of Famous Company is $60. The acqui-
sition occurs when the two companies have the following balance sheets:

Unknown Company (the acquirer)
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Equity

Currentassets ............... $ 10,000 Long-term liabilities .. .......... $ 5,000

Building (nef) ... ............. 150,000 Common stock ($1 par) (5,000
shares). ................... 5,000
Equipment(net) .............. 100,000 Paid-in capital in excess of par . .. 115,000
Retained earnings .. ........... 135,000
Totalassets. . .. ............ $260,000 Total liabilities and equity . . . .. $260,000
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Famous Company (the acquiree)
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets Book Value Fair Value Liabilities and Equity Book Value Fair Value
Currentassets ... ........ $ 5,000 $ 5,000 Long-term liabilities . ......... $ 10,000 $10,000
Building (net) . ........... 100,000 200,000 Common stock ($1 par)
(4,000 shares) ........... 4,000
Equipment (net) .......... 20,000 40,000 Paid-in capital in excess of par 96,000
Retained earnings .. ......... 15,000
Total assefs. . .......... $125,000 $245,000 Total liabilities and equity . . . $125,000

Required » » » > >

Case 2-1

1. Prepare an appropriate value analysis and a determination and distribution of excess
schedule.

2. Complete a consolidated worksheet for Unknown Company and its subsidiary, Famous
Company, as of January 1, 2016.

CASES

Consolidating a Bargain Purchase

Your client, Great Value Hardware Stores, has come to you for assistance in evaluating an
opportunity to purchase a controlling interest in a hardware store in a neighboring city.
The store under consideration is a closely held family corporation. Owners of 60% of the
shares are willing to sell you the 60% interest, 30,000 common stock shares in exchange
for 7,500 of Great Value shares, which have a fair value of $40 each and a par value of
$10 each.

Your client sees this as a good opportunity to enter a new market. The controller of
Great Value knows, however, that all is not well with the store being considered. The store,
Al’s Hardware, has not kept pace with the market and has been losing money. It also has a
major lawsuit against it slemming from alleged faulty electrical components it supplied that
caused a fire. The store is not insured for the loss. Legal counsel advises that the store will
likely pay $300,000 in damages.

The following balance sheet was provided by Al's Hardware as of December 31,
2015:

Assets Liabilities and Equity

Cash ... $ 180,000 Currentliabilities........... $ 425,000
Accountsreceivable . ........... ... 460,000 8% Mortgage payable ... ... 600,000
Inventory .......... ... ... . L. 730,000  Common stock ($5 par). . .. .. 250,000
Land. ..o 120,000  Paid-in capital in excess of par 750,000
Building .. ... 630,000 Retained earnings . ......... (80,000)
Accumulated depreciation—building . . (400,000)
Equipment ... ... oo 135,000
Accumulated depreciation—equipment (85,000)
Goodwill .. ... 175,000

Totalassets. .. ..o $1,945,000 Total liabilities and equity .. $1,945,000
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Your analysis raises substantial concerns about the values shown. You have gathered
the following information:
1. Aging of the accounts receivable reveals a net realizable value of $350,000.
2. The inventory has many obsolete items; the fair value is $600,000.
3. Appraisals for long-lived assets are as follows:

land. ... $100,000
Building .. ... 300,000
Equipment . ... ... 100,000

4. The goodwill resulted from the purchase of another hardware store that has since been con-
solidated into the existing location. The goodwill was attributed to customer loyalty.

5. liabilities are fairly stated except that there should be a provision for the estimated loss on
the lawsuit.

On the basis of your research, you are convinced that the statements of Al's Hardware
are not representative and need major restatement. Your client is not interested in being
associated with statements that are not accurate.

Your client asks you to make recommendations on two concerns:

1. Does the price asked seem to be a real bargain? Consider the fair value of the entire equity
of Al's Hardware; then decide if the price is reasonable for a 60% interest.

2. If the deal were completed, what accounting methods would you recommend either on the
books of Al's Hardware or in the consolidation process Al's Hardware would remain a
separate legal entity with a substantial noncontrolling interest.

Copyright 2016 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



Copyright 2016 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



Consolidated Statements: ERFYRER;
Subsequent to Acquisition

Learning Objectives
When you have completed this chapter, you should be able to

1. Show how an investment in a subsidiary account is maintained under the simple equity,
sophisticated equity, and cost methods.

2. Complete a consolidated worksheet using the simple equity method for the parent's
investment account.

3. Complete a consolidated worksheet using the cost method for the parent’s investment account.

4. Describe the special worksheet procedures that are used for an investment maintained under
the sophisticated equity method (investment account is adjusted for amortizations of excess
resulting from purchase).

5. Distribute and amortize multiple adjustments resulting from the difference between the price
paid for an investment in a subsidiary and the subsidiary equity eliminated.

6. Demonstrate the worksheet procedures used for investments purchased during the financial
reporting period.

7. Demonstrate an understanding of when goodwill impairment loss exists and how it is
calculated.

8. Consolidate a subsidiary using vertical worksheet format. (Appendix A)

9. Explain the impact of tax-related complications arising on the purchase date. (Appendix B)

This chapter’s mission is to teach the procedures needed to prepare consolidated income state-
ments, retained earnings statements, and balance sheets in periods subsequent to the acquisition
of a subsidiary. There are several worksheet models to master. This variety is caused primarily
by the alternative methods available to a parent for maintaining its investment in a subsidiary
account. Accounting principles do not address the method used by a parent to record its
investment in a subsidiary that is to be consolidated. The method used is of no concern to
standard setters since the investment account is always eliminated when consolidating.
Thus, the method chosen to record the investment usually is based on convenience.

In the preceding chapter, worksheet procedures included asset and liability adjustments to
reflect fair values on the date of the purchase. This chapter discusses the subsequent deprecia-
tion and amortization of these asset and liability revaluations in conjunction with its analysis of
worksheet procedures for preparing consolidated financial statements. Appendix A, page 143,
explains the vertical worksheet as an alternative approach to the horizontal worksheet, which is
primarily used in this text chapter for developing consolidated statements.

This chapter does not deal with the income tax issues of the consolidated company except
to the extent that they are reflected in the original acquisition price. Appendix B, page 144, con-
siders tax issues that arise as part of the original purchase. These include recording procedures
for deferred tax liabilities arising in a tax-free exchange and tax loss carryovers. A full discussion
of tax issues in consolidations is included in Chapter 6.
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OBJECTIVE

Show how an investment in
a subsidiary account is
maintained under the
simple equity, sophisticated
equity, and cost methods.

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

ACCOUNTING FOR THE INVESTMENT
IN A SUBSIDIARY

A parent may choose one of two basic methods when accounting for its investment in a subsid-
iary: the equity method or the cost method. The equity method records as income an ownership
percentage of the reported income of the subsidiary, whether or not it was received by the par-
ent. The cost method treats the investment in the subsidiary like a passive investment by record-
ing income only when dividends are declared by the subsidiary.

Equity Method

The equity method records as income the parent’s ownership interest percentage multiplied by the
subsidiary reported net income. The income is added to the parent’s investment account. In a
like manner, the parent records its share of a subsidiary loss and lowers its investment
account for its share of the loss. Dividends received from the subsidiary are viewed as a con-
version of a portion of the investment account into cash; thus, dividends reduce the invest-
ment account balance. The investment account at any point in time can be summarized as
follows:

Investment in Subsidiary (equity method)

Original cost less:  Ownership interest x Reported losses of
plus:  Ownership interest x Reported income of subsidiary since acquisition
subsidiary since acquisition less:  Ownership interest x Dividends declared by

subsidiary since acquisition

equals: Equity-adjusted balance

The real advantage of using the simple equity method when consolidating is that every
dollar of change in the stockholders’ equity of the subsidiary is recorded on a pro rata basis
in the investment account. This method expedites the elimination of the investment account
in the consolidated worksheets in future periods. It is favored in this text because of its
simplicity.

For some unconsolidated investments, the sophisticated equity method is required. Under this
method, a company’s investment is adjusted for amortizations of excess shown on the determi-
nation and distribution of excess schedule. For example, assume that the price paid for an
investment in a subsidiary exceeded underlying book value and that the determination and dis-
tribution of excess schedule attributed the entire excess to a building. Just as a building will
decrease in value and should be depreciated, so should that portion of the price paid for the
investment attributed to the building also be amortized. If the estimated life of the building is
10 years, then the portion of the investment price attributed to the building should be amor-
tized over 10 years. This would be accomplished by reducing the investment income each year
by the amortization, which means that the income posted to the investment account each year
is also less by the amount of the amortization.

The sophisticated equity method is required for influential investments (normally 20% to
50% interests) and for those rare subsidiaries that are not consolidated. Its use for these types of
investments is fully discussed in the Special Appendix. The sophisticated equity method also is
used by some parent companies to maintain the investment in a subsidiary that is to be consoli-
dated. This better reflects the investment account in the parent-only statements, but such state-
ments may not be used as the primary statements for external reporting purposes. Parent-only
statements may be used only as supplemental statements when the criteria for consolidated
statements are met. The use of this method for investments to be consolidated makes recording
the investment income and the elimination of the investment account more difficult than under

the simple equity method.
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Cost Method

When the cost method is used, the investment in subsidiary account is retained at its original
cost-of-acquisition balance. No adjustments are made to the account for income as it is earned
by the subsidiary. Income on the investment is limited to dividends received from the subsidi-
ary. The cost method is acceptable for subsidiaries that are to be consolidated because, in the
consolidation process, the investment account is eliminated entirely.

The cost method is the most common method used in practice by parent companies. It is
simple to use during the accounting period and avoids the risk of incorrect adjustments. Typi-
cally, the correct income of the subsidiary is not known until after the end of the accounting
period. Awaiting its determination would delay the parent company’s closing procedures. This
text will follow a procedure of converting cost method investments to the simple equity method
as part of the worksheet investment elimination procedures.

Example of the Equity and Cost Methods

The simple equity, sophisticated equity, and cost methods will be illustrated by an example cov-
ering two years. This example, which will become the foundation for several consolidated
worksheets in this chapter, is based on the following facts:

1. The following D&D schedule was prepared on the January 1, 2015, date of purchase. It is
assumed that the value of the NCI is proportionate to the price paid by Company P for the
controlling interest. This schedule is similar to that of the preceding chapter but is modified
to indicate the period over which adjustments to the subsidiary book values will be amor-
tized. This expanded format will be used in preparing all future worksheets.

2. Income during 2015 was $25,000 for Company S; dividends declared by Company S at the
end of 2015 totaled $10,000.

3. During 2016, Company S had a loss of $12,000 and declared dividends of $5,000.
4. The balance in Company S’s retained earnings account on December 31, 2016, is $73,000.

Company P and Subsidiary Company S
Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule

Company Implied Parent Price NCI Value
Fair Value (90%) (10%)
Fair value of subsidiary . .................. ... $150,000 $135,000 $ 15,000
Less book value of interest acquired:
Common stock ($10par). .................. $ 50,000
Retainedearnings . ....................... 70,000
Total stockholders’ equity. .. .............. $120,000 $120,000 $120,000
Interestacquired ........... ... ... 90% 10%
Bookvalue. . ... ... . $108,000 $ 12,000
Excess of fair value over book value ... ......... $ 30,000 $ 27,000 $ 3,000

Adjustment of identifiable accounts:
Amortization per
Adjustment Year Life Worksheet Key

Patent ($150,000 fair— $120,000 book value) $ 30,000 $ 3,000 10 debit D
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Event Entries on Parent Company’s Books—Simple Equity Method
2015
Jan. 1 Purchase of stock Investment in Company S ................. 135,000
Cash. ... 135,000
Dec. 31 Subsidiary income of $25,000 Investment in Company S ................. 22,500
reported to parent SubsidiaryIncome .. ........... .. ... ... 22,500
31 Dividends of $10,000 declared by Dividends Receivable .................... 9,000
subsidiary Investmentin Company S................ 9,000
Investment Balance, Dec. 31,2015 . . .. $148,500
2016
Dec. 31 Subsidiary loss of $12,000 reportedto | Loss on Subsidiary Operations ............. 10,800
parent Investmentin Company S................ 10,800
31 Dividends of $5,000 declared by Dividends Receivable ................. ... 4,500
subsidiary Investment in Company S................ 4,500
Investment Balance, Dec. 31,2016 .. .. $133,200

2

OBJECTIVE

Complete a consolidated
worksheet using the simple
equity method for the
parent's investment
account.

The journal entries and resulting investment account balances shown above and on page 121
record this informaton on the books of Company P using the simple equity, cost, and sophisti-
cated equity methods. Note that the only difference between the sophisticated and simple equity
methods is that the former records 90% of the subsidiary’s reported income of $25,000. The
sophisticated equity method records 90% of the subsidiary’s income of $25,000 less the amortiza-
tion adjustment of $3,000. Thus, the sophisticated equity share of income the first year is 90% of
$22,000, or $19,800.

REFLECTTION

e The simple equity method records investment income (loss) equal to the parent
ownership interest multiplied by the reported subsidiary income (loss).

* The sophisticated equity method records investment income (loss) equal to the parent
ownership interest multiplied by the reported subsidiary income (loss) and deducts
amortizations of excess allocable to the controlling interest.

¢ The cost method records only dividends as received.

ELIMINATION PROCEDURES

Worksheet procedures necessary to prepare consolidated income statements, retained earnings
statements, and balance sheets are examined in the following section. Recall that the consoli-
dation process is performed independently each year since the worksheet eliminations of
previous years are never recorded by the parent or subsidiary.
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Entries on Parent Company’s Books— Entries on Parent Company’s Books—
Sophisticated Equity Method Cost Method
Investment in Company S ........ 135,000 Investment in Company S ......... 135,000
Cash. ..., 135,000 Cash. ..o 135,000
Investment in Company S°. ... .. .. 19,800 No entry
Subsidiary Income . .. ......... 19,800
Dividends Receivable . .......... 9,000 Dividends Receivable . ........... 9,000
Investmentin Company S. . . .. .. 9,000 Subsidiary (Dividend) Income . . . . 9,000
Investment Balance, Investment Balance,
Dec.31,2015............. $145,800 Dec.31,2015.............. $135,000
Loss on Subsidiary Operations .... 13,500 No entry.
Investment in Company SP. .. . ... 13,500
Dividends Receivable ........... 4,500 Dividends Receivable . ........... 4,500
Investment in Company S. ... . .. 4,500 Subsidiary (Dividend) Income . . . . 4,500
Investment Balance, Investment Balance,
Dec.31,2016............. $127,800 Dec.31,2016.............. $135,000

“Parent’s share of subsidiary income = 90% x ($25,000 - $3,000 amortization adjustment).
BParent's share of subsidiary loss = 90% x (-$12,000 - $3,000 amortization adjustment).

The illustrations that follow are based on the facts concerning the investment in Company S,
as detailed in the previous example. The procedures for consolidating an investment maintained
under the simple equity method will be discussed first, followed by an explanation of how proce-
dures would differ under the cost and sophisticated equity methods. (See the inside front cover
for a complete listing of the elimination codes used in this text.)

Effect of Simple Equity Method on Consolidation

Examine Worksheet 3-1 on pages 150 and 151, noting that the worksheet trial balances for
Company P and Company S are preclosing trial balances and, thus, include the income state-
ment accounts of both companies. Look at Company P’s trial balance and note that Investment
in Company S is now at the equity-adjusted cost at the end of the year. The balance reflects the
following information:

oSt ot $135,000
Plus equity income (90% x $25,000 Company Sincome). . .................... 22,500
Less dividends received (90% x $10,000 dividends paid by Company S) ......... (9,000)

Balance . .. oo $148,500

If we are going to eliminate the subsidiary equity against the investment account and get the
correct excess, the investment account and subsidiary equity must be at the same point in
time. Right now, the investment account is adjusted through the end of the year, and the sub-
sidiary retained earnings is still at its January 1 balance. Eliminating (reversing) the entries that
affected the investment balance during the current year creates date alignment. First, the entry
for (CY1) [for Current Year entry #1] eliminates the subsidiary income recorded against the
investment account as follows:

Eliminate current-year investment income for date alignment:
(CY1)  Subsidiary Income (Company P account)

Investmentin Company S.............. ... ... o ool

Worksheet 3-1: page 150

Copyright 2016 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



122

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

This elimination also removes the subsidiary income account. This is appropriate because
we will, instead, be including the income statement accounts of the subsidiary. The intercom-
pany dividends paid by the subsidiary to the parent will be eliminated next as follows with entry
(CY2):

Eliminate intercompany dividends:
(CY2) Investmentin Company S ....... ... . . L 9,000
Dividends Declared (Company S account) .......... 9,000

After this entry, only subsidiary dividends paid to the noncontrolling shareholders will
remain. These are dividends paid to the “outside world” and, as such, belong in the consoli-
dated statements.

Once you have created date alignment, it is appropriate to eliminate 90% of the subsidiary
equity against the investment account with entry (EL) [for Elimination entry]. This entry is the
same as described in Chapter 2.

Eliminate 90% subsidiary equity against investment

account:
(EL) Common Stock ($10 par)—Company S (90% eliminated) 45,000
Retained Earnings, January 1, 2015—Company S
(P0% eliminated) . .......... ... 63,000
Investmentin Company S........................ 108,000

The excess ($135,000 balance after eliminating current-year entries — $108,000 = $27,000)
should always agree with that indicated by the D&D schedule. The next procedure is to distri-
bute the excess and adjust the NCI with entry (D) [for Distribute entry] and (NCI) [to adjust
the NCI] as indicated by the D&D schedule as follows:

Distribute excess investment account balance to accounts
to be adjusted:

(D)/(NCI)  Patent.......ouuiii i 30,000
Investment in Company S (remaining balance) . .. .. .. 27,000
NCI (use the subsidiary’s retained earnings account) . . 3,000

The D&D schedule indicates that the life of the patent was 10 years. It must now be amor-
tized for the first year with entry (A) [for Amortization entry]:

Amortize excess for current year:
(A) Patent Amortization Expense ($30,000/10 years) . . . .. 3,000
Patent. .. .. 3,000

Patent amortization expense should be maintained in a separate account, so that it will be
available for the income statement as a separate item.

The Consolidated Income Statement column follows the Eliminations & Adjustments col-
umns. The adjusted income statement accounts of the constituent companies are used to calcu-
late the consolidated net income of $62,000. This income is distributed to the controlling
interest and NCI. Note that the NCI receives 10% of the $22,000 adjusted net income of the
subsidiary, or $2,200. The controlling interest receives the balance of the consolidated net
income, or $59,800.

The distribution of income is handled best by using income distribution schedules (IDS),
which appear at the end of Worksheet 3-1. The subsidiary IDS is a “T'account” that begins with
the reported net income of the subsidiary. This income is termed internally generated net income,
which connotes the income of only the company being analyzed without consideration of
income derived from other members of the affiliated group. All amortizations of excess
resulting from the consolidations process are adjusted to the subsidiary’s IDS. Since the NCI
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Chapter 3 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: SUBSEQUENT TO ACQUISITION

shares in the original asset adjustments, it is also adjusted for the amortizations. Subsidiary adjusted
net income is calculated after adjustment for the amortizations of excess. In Worksheet 3-1, the
subsidiary adjusted net income is multiplied by the noncontrolling ownership percentage to calcu-
late the NCI share of income. A similar T account is used for the parent IDS. The parent’s share of
subsidiary net income is added to the internally generated net income of the parent. The balance
in the parent Taccount is the controlling share of the consolidated net income. The IDS is a valu-
able self-check procedure since the sum of the income distributions should equal the consoli-
dated net income on the worksheet.

The NCI column of the worksheet summarizes the total ownership interest of noncontrol-
ling stockholders on the balance sheet date. The noneliminated portion of subsidiary common
stock at par, additional paid-in capital in excess of par, retained earnings (including the NCI
adjustment), the NCI share of income, and dividends declared are extended to this column.
The total of this column is then extended to the Consolidated Balance Sheet column as the non-
controlling interest. The formal balance sheet will show only the total NCI and will not provide
information on the components of this balance.

The Controlling Retained Earnings column produces the controlling retained earnings bal-
ance on the balance sheet date. The beginning parent retained earnings balance, as adjusted by
eliminations and adjustments (in later worksheets), is extended to this column. Dividends
declared by the parent are also extended to this column. The controlling share of consolidated
income is extended to this column to produce the ending balance. The balance is extended to
the balance sheet column as the retained earnings of the consolidated company.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet column includes the consolidated asset and liability bal-
ances. The capital accounts balances of the parent are extended as the consolidated capital
accounts balances. As mentioned above, the aggregate balances of the NCI and the Controlling
Retained Earnings columns are also extended to the Consolidated Balance Sheet column.

Separate debit and credit columns may be used for the consolidated balance sheet. This
arrangement may minimize errors and aid analysis. Single columns are not advocated but are
used to facilitate the inclusion of lengthy worksheets in a summarized fashion.

The information for the following formal statements is taken directly from Worksheet 3-1:

Company P
Consolidated Income Statement
For Year Ended December 31, 2015

REVENUE . . o o o oot $ 175,000
EXPENSES . o oot (110,000)
Patent amortization eXpense . . . ... ... (3,000)
Consolidated netincome. . . .. .. $ 62,000
Distributed to:
Noncontrolling interest .. ... . ... $ 2,200
Controlling interest. . .. ... ..o $ 59,800
Company P

Consolidated Retained Earnings Statement
For Year Ended December 31, 2015

Noncontrolling Controlling
Retained earnings, January 1,2015.................... $10,000 $123,000
Consolidated netincome. . .......... ... ... ... ... ... 2,200 59,800
Dividendsdeclared . .. ........ ... ... . ... ... ... ... (1,000)
Retained earnings, December 31,2015............... $11,200* $182,800
*This does not appear as a separate item on the worksheet.
(continued)
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Company P
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015
Assets Stockholders’ Equity
Net tangible assets ........ $372,000 Controlling interest:
Patent. ... ... 27,000 Common stock . .. ....... $200,000
Retained earnings . ... ... 182,800 $382,800

Noncontrolling interest . . . . . 16,200

Total assets .............. $399,000 Total stockholders’ equity . .. $399,000

You should notice several features of the consolidated statements.

¢ Consolidated net income is the total income earned by the consolidated entity. The
consolidated net income is then distributed to the noncontrolling interest (NCI) and the
controlling interest.

¢ The retained earnings statement includes Noncontrolling and Controlling Interest columns.
The Noncontrolling Interest column includes the dividends declared to noncontrolling

shareholders.

¢ The consolidated balance sheet shows the NCI as a subdivision of stockholders’ equity as
discussed in Chapter 2. The NCI is shown only as a total and is not itemized.

Exhibit 3-1 is taken from the 2013 financial statements of Pfizer Inc. for a real-world exam-
ple of disclosure for the NCI. Look at the lower portion of the consolidated income statement,
and you will see the highlighted allocation of income to the noncontrolling interest. Look at the
lower area of the equity section of the consolidated balance sheet, and you will see the high-
lighted noncontrolling interest in equity.

Exhibit 3-1
Pfizer, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income and Balance Sheets

Consolidated Balance Sheets
Pfizer Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

(Millions, Except Preferred Stock Issued and per Common As of December 31,
Share Data) 2013 2012
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents . ............. ... .. ... .. ..... $ 2,183 $ 10,081
Shortterm investments . . .. ... ... 30,225 22,318
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts:
2013—$478;2012—$324 . ... ... ... ... 9,357 10,675

Inventories . ... ... e 6,166 6,076
Current deferred tax assets and other currenttax assets . ... .. .. 4,624 6,170
Other current assets. . .. ... 3,613 3,567
Assets of discontinued operations and other assets held for sale. . 76 5,944

Total currentassets. .. ... . 56,244 64,831
Long-term investments .. ...... ... 16,406 14,149
Property, plant and equipment, less accumulated depreciation . . 12,397 13,213
Goodwill .. ... .. 42,519 43,661
Identifiable intangible assets, less accumulated amortization.. . . . 39,385 45,146
Noncurrent deferred tax assets and other noncurrent tax assets . . 1,554 1,565
Other noncurrentassets. . . .......ooitii e 3,596 8,233

Totalassets. . . ... $172,101 $185,798
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Chapter 3 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: SUBSEQUENT TO ACQUISITION 125

(Millions, Except Preferred Stock Issued and per Common GicliPeceiballly
Share Data) 2013 2012
Liabilities and Equity
Shortterm borrowings, including current portion of long-term
debt: 2013—$2,060; 2012—$2,449. .. ............... $ 6,027 $ 6,424
Accountspayable .. ... o 3,234 2,921
Dividends payable .......... ... ... .. L. 1,663 1,733
Income taxespayable . ....... ... .o 678 979
Accrued compensation and related items . . .. ............. .. 1,792 1,875
Other current liabilities .. .......... .. ... ... ... ... ..., 9,951 13,812
Liabilities of discontinued operations. . . .................... 21 1,442
Total current liabilities . .......... ... ... ... ... ... .. .. 23,366 29,186
Longtermdebt. ... .. .. 30,462 31,036
Pension benefit obligations, net. . .. ............ ... .. ... ... 4,635 7,782
Postretirement benefit obligations, net. . .. ............... ... 2,668 3,491
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilities. . .. ..................... 25,590 21,193
Othertaxes payable .......... ... .. .. . L 3,993 6,581
Other noncurrent liabilities . ... ............. ... ... ... ... 4,767 4,851
Total liabilities . .. ... ... . .. . L. 95,481 104,120
Commitments and Contingencies
Preferred stock, no par value, at stated value; 27 shares
authorized; issued: 2013—829; 2012—967 ............ 33 39
Common stock, $0.05 par value; 12,000 shares authorized;
issued: 2013—9,051;2012—8,956 .................. 453 448
Additional paid-in capital ....... ... oo 77,283 72,608
Treasury stock, shares at cost: 2013—2,652; 2012—1,680 . . . (67,923) (40,122)
Retainedearnings .. ....... ... . ... ... 69,732 54,240
Accumulated other comprehensive loss. .. .................. (3,271) (5,953)
Total Pfizer Inc. shareholders’ equity . ... ................. 76,307 81,260
Equity attributable to noncontrolling interests . .............. 313 418
Total equity . ..ot 76,620 81,678
Total liabilities and equity ... ... ... ... L. $172,101 $185,798

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, which are an integral part of these statements.

Consolidated Statements of Income
Pfizer Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Year Ended December 31,

(Millions, Except per Common Share Data) 2013 2012 2011
Revenues .. ... ... .. .. $51,584 $54,657 $61,035
Costs and expenses:
Costofsales®. . ... ... ... ... ... ... . ... ... .. 9,586 9,821 12,500
Selling, informational and administrative expenses®. . . 14,355 15,171 17,581
Research and development expenses® ............. 6,678 7,482 8,681
Amortization of intangible assets. . . ............... 4,599 5,109 5,465
Restructuring charges and certain acquisition-related
COSES . o 1,182 1,810 2,841
Other (income)/deductions—net . ................ (532) 4,022 2,486
Income from continuing operations before provision for
fAXESONINCOME. . . ..ttt ettt 15,716 11,242 11,481
Provision for taxesonincome ...................... 4,306 2,221 3,621
Income from continuing operations . . .............. 11,410 9,021 7,860
(continued)
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Year Ended December 31,
(Millions, Except per Common Share Data) 2013 2012 2011
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations—net of tax . . . . . 308 794 885
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations—netoftax .. 10 354 4783 1,304
Discontinued operations—netoftax . .. .............. 10,662 5,577 2,189
Net income before allocation to noncontrolling interests 22,072 14,598 10,049
Less: Net income aftributable to noncontrolling interests. . 69 28 40
Net income attributable to PfizerInc.. . ............. $22,003 $14,570  $10,009
Earnings per common share—basic:
Income from continuing operations attributable to Pfizer
Inc. common shareholders . . ............... .. ... $ 1.67 $ 1.21 $ 1.00
Discontinued operations—netoftax . .. .............. 1.56 0.75 0.28
Net income attributable to Pfizer Inc. common
shareholders . ... ... . . $ 323 § 196 $ 1.28
Earnings per common share—diluted:
Income from continuing operations aftributable to Pfizer
Inc. common shareholders . ... .................. $ 1.65 $ 120 $ 099
Discontinued operations—netoftax . ................ 1.54 0.74 0.28
Net income attributable to Pfizer Inc. common
shareholders .. ... . ... .. ... . .. ... $ 319 $§ 194 $ 127
Weighted-average shares—basic. . ................. 6,813 7,442 7,817
Weighted-average shares—diluted ................. 6,895 7,508 7,870
Cash dividends paid per common share. .. ........... $ 096 $ 088 $ 0.80

“Exclusive of amortization of intangible assets, except as disclosed in Note 1K. Basis of Presentation and
Significant Accounting Policies: Amortization of Intangible Assets, Depreciation and Certain Long-Lived Assets.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, which are an integral part of these statements.

Now consider consolidation procedures for 2016 as they would apply to Compames P and
S under the simple equity method. This will provide added practice in preparing worksheets
and will emphasize that, at the end of each year, consolidation procedures are applied to the
separate statements of the constituent firms. In essence, each year’s consolidation procedures
begin as if there had never been a previous consolidation. However, reference to past work-
sheets is commonly used to save time.

The separate trial balances of Companies P and S are displayed in the first two columns of

Worksheet 3-2:page 152 Worksheet 3-2, pages 152 and 153. The investment in subsidiary account includes the

simple equity-adjusted investment balance as calculated on page 120. Note that the balances in the
retained earnings accounts of Companies P and S are for January 1, 2016, because these are the
preclosing trial balances. The beginning retained earnings amounts are calculated as follows:

Company P: January 1,2015, balance. . ... $123,000
Netincome, 2015 (including Company P’s share
of subsidiary income under simple equity method) . . . ........... 62,500*
Balance, January 1,2016. . ... $185,500

*Company P's own 2015 netincome ($100,000 revenue — $60,000 expenses) + Company P’s share of Company S
2015, $25,000 net income ($25,000 x 90%) = $40,000 + $22,500 = $62,500.

Company S: January 1,2015,balance. . ... $ 70,000
Netincome, 2015, ... 25,000
Dividendsdeclared . ........ ... ... .. ... . .. ... (10,000)

Balance, January 1,2016. ... ... $ 85,000
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As before, entry (CY1) eliminates the subsidiary income recorded by the parent, and entry
(CY2) eliminates the intercompany dividends. Neither subsidiary income nor dividends
declared by the subsidiary to the parent should remain in the consolidated statements. In jour-
nal form, the entries are as follows:

Create date alignment and eliminate current-year
subsidiary income:

(CY1) Investmentin Company S ........ ... . 10,800

Subsidiary Loss . ... ... 10,800
(CY2) Investmentin Company S ....... ... 4,500

Dividends Declared (Company S account) ............ 4,500

At this point, the investment account balance is returned to $148,500 ($133,200 on the
trial balance + $10,800 loss + $4,500 dividends), which is the balance on January 1, 2016.
Date alignment now exists, and elimination of the investment account may proceed. Entry
(EL) eliminates 90% of the subsidiary equity accounts against the investment account. Entry
(EL) differs in amount from the prior year’s (2015) entry only because Company S’s retained
earnings balance has changed. Always eliminate the subsidiary’s equity balances as they appear
on the worksheet, not in the original D&D schedule. In journal form, entry (EL) is as follows:

Eliminate investment account at beginning-of-year balance:

(EL) Common Stock—Company S(90%) .. ...ttt 45,000
Retained Earnings, January 1, 2016—Company S (90%) . . 76,500
Investmentin Company S............... ... ... ... 121,500

Entries (D) and (NCI) are exactly the same as they were on the 2015 worksheet. We are
always adjusting the subsidiary accounts as of the acquisition date. It will be necessary to make
this same entry every year until the markup caused by the purchase is fully amortized or the
asset is sold. In entry form, entry (D)/(NCI) is as follows:

Distribute excess of cost (patent):

(D)/(NCI)  Patent. . ... 30,000
Investmentin Company S.............. ... ... ... .. 27,000
NCI (Retained Earnings—Company S) .. ............. 3,000

Finally, entry (A) includes $3,000 per year amortization of the patent for 2015 and 2016.
The expense for 2015 is charged to Company P retained earnings and the NCI in the
90%/10% ratio. The charge is made to both interests because the asset adjustment was made to
both interests. In journal form, the entry is as follows:

Amortize patent for current and prior year:

(A) Retained Earnings, January 1, 2016—Company P .. .. ... 2,700
NCI (Retained Earnings—Company S) .. ............... 300
Patent Amortization Expense (for currentyear) . .......... 3,000

Patent. ... . 6,000

Note that the 2017 worksheet will include three total years of amortization, since the entries
made in prior periods’ worksheets have not been recorded in either the parent’s or subsidi-
ary’s books. Even in later years, when the patent is past its 10-year life, it will be necessary to use a
revised entry (D), which would adjust all prior years’ amortizations to the patent as follows:

Retained Earnings—Company P (10 years x $2,700). ................ 27,000
NGl 3,000
Investment in Company S (the excess) . . ..., 30,000

Note that the original D&D schedule prepared on the date of acquisiion becomes the
foundation for all subsequent worksheets. Once prepared, the schedule is used without modification.
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3

OBJECTIVE

Complete a consolidated
worksheet using the cost
method for the parent’s
investment account.

Worksheet 3-3: page 154

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

REFLECTTION

e Date alignment is needed before an investment can be eliminated.

e For an equity method investment, date alignment means removing current-year entries
to return to the beginning-of-year investment balance.

e All amortizations of excess resulting from the consolidations process are adjusted to the
subsidiary’s IDS.

* Many distributions of excess must be followed by amortizations that cover the current
and prior years.

* The consolidated net income derived on a worksheet is allocated to the controlling and
noncontrolling interests using an income distribution schedule.

e Each year’s consolidation procedures begin as if there had never been a previous
consolidation.

Effect of Cost Method on Consolidation

Recall that parent companies often may choose to record their investments in a subsidiary under
the cost method, whereby the investments are maintained at their original costs. Income from
the investments is recorded only when dividends are declared by the subsidiary. The use of the
cost method means that the investment account does not reflect changes in subsidiary equity.
Rather than develop a new set of procedures for the elimination of an investment under the cost
method, the cost method investment will be converted to its simple equity balance at the
beginning of the period to create date alignment. Then, the elimination procedures developed
earlier can be applied.

Worksheet 3-3, pages 154 and 155, is a consolidated financial statements worksheet for
Companies P and S for the first year of combined operations. The worksheet is based on the
entries made under the cost method, as shown on page 121. Company P’s Trial Balance column
in Worksheet 3-3 reveals that the investment in the subsidiary account at year-end is still stated
at the original $135,000 cost, and the income recorded by the parent as a result of subsidiary
ownership is limited to $9,000, or 90% of the dividends declared by the subsidiary. When the
cost method is used, the account title Dividend Income may be used in place of Subsidiary
Income.

There is no need for an equity conversion at the end of the first year. Date alignment is auto-
matic; the investment in Company S account and the subsidiary retained earnings are both as
of January 1, 2015. There is no entry (CY1) under the cost method; only entry (CY2) is needed
to eliminate intercompany dividends. All remaining eliminations are the same as for 2015
under the equity method. In journal form, the complete set of entries for 2015 is as follows:

Eliminate currentyear dividends:

(CY2) Subsidiary (or Dividend) Income . ... ... L 9,000
Dividends Declared (Company Saccount) .................. 9,000

Eliminate investment account at beginning-of-year balance:
(EL) Common Stock—Company S ... ... .o 45,000
Retained Earnings, January 1, 2015—Company S . ............ 63,000
Investmentin Company S. .. ... ... ... 108,000

Distribute excess of cost (patent):
(D)/(NCI) Patent. .. ..o 30,000
Investmentin Company S. .. ... 27,000
NCI (use Retained Earnings—Company S) ... ............... 3,000
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Amortize patent for current year:
(A) Patent Amortization Expense. . ......... ... .. oo 3,000
Patent. ... 3,000

The last four columns of Worksheet 3-3 are exactly the same as those for Worksheet 3-1,
resulting in the same consolidated statements.

For periods after 2015 (first year of consolidation), date alignment will not exist, and
an equity conversion entry will be needed. Worksheet 3-4 on pages 156 and 157 is such an
example. The worksheet is for 2016 and parallels Worksheet 3-2 except that the cost method is
in use. The balance in the investment account is still the original cost of $135,000. The retained
earnings of the subsidiary is, however, at its January 1, 2016, balance of $85,000. Note that the
parent’s January 1, 2016, retained earnings balance is $172,000, which is $13,500 less than in
Worksheet 3-2 because it does not include the 2015 undistributed subsidiary income of
$13,500 ($22,500 income less $9,000 dividends received). In order to get date alignment, an
equity conversion entry, (CV), is made to convert the investment account to its January 1,
2016, simple equity balance. This conversion entry is always calculated as follows:

Parent's % x (Subsidiary retained earnings at the beginning of the current year
—Subsidiary retained earnings on the date of purchase) = Equity conversion adjustment

For example:

Date Amount
Retained earnings—Company S (start of currentyear) . . .... .. .. Jan. 1,2016 $85,000
Retained earnings (date of purchase) . .............. ... ..., Jan. 1,2015 70,000
Change in subsidiary retained earnings . . .. ............. ... $15,000
Parent ownershipinterest. . . ........... .. ... x  90%
Equity conversion adjustment (parent share of change) ......... $13,500

Based on this calculation, the conversion entry on Worksheet 3-4 is as follows in journal
entry form:

Convert investment to simple equity method as of
January 1, 2016:
(CV) Investmentin Company S ....... . ... . . 13,500
Retained Earnings, January 1, 2016—CompanyP.......... 13,500

With date alignment created, remaining eliminations parallel Worksheet 3-2 except that there
is no entry (CY1) for current-year equity income. Entry (CY2) is still used to eliminate intercom-
pany dividends. In journal form, the remaining entries for Worksheet 3-4 are as follows:

Eliminate current-year dividends:
(CY2) Subsidiary (or Dividend) Income . ... .......... ..l 4,500
Dividends Declared (Company Saccount) ................ 4,500

Eliminate investment account at beginning-of-year balance:
(EL) Common Stock—Company S . ... 45,000
Retained Earnings, January 1, 2016—Company S . .......... 76,500
Investmentin Company S. . ... ... 121,500

Distribute excess of cost (patent):
(D)/INCI)  Patent. ...t 30,000
Investmentin Company S............. .. ... . o oL 27,000
NCI (Retained Earnings—Company S) .. ................. 3,000

Worksheet 3-4: page 156
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4

OBJECTIVE

Describe the special
worksheet procedures that
are used for an investment
maintained under the
sophisticated equity
method (investment
account is adjusted for
amortizations of excess
resulting from purchase).

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

Amortize patent for current and prior years:

(A) Retained Earnings, January 1, 2016—CompanyP ........... 2,700
NCI (Retained Earnings—Company S) . ... ... 300
Patent Amortization Expense. .. ....... ... 3,000

Patent. ... . 6,000

The last four columns of Worksheet 3-4 are exactly the same as those for Worksheet 3-2, as
are the consolidated financial statements for 2016.

The simplicity of this technique of converting from the cost to the simple equity method
should be appreciated. At any future date, in order to convert to the simple equity method, it is
necessary only to compare the balance of the subsidiary retained earnings account on the work-
sheet trial balance with the balance of that account on the original date of acquisition (included
in the D&D schedule). Specific reference to income earned and dividends paid by the subsid-
iary in each intervening year is unnecessary. The only complications occur when stock dividends
have been issued by the subsidiary or when the subsidiary has issued or retired stock. These
complications are examined in Chapter 8.

REFLECTTION

* For a cost method investment, date alignment means converting the investment account
to its equity-adjusted balance at the start of the year. (No adjustment is needed the first
year.)

* Once converted, all other investment eliminations are the same as for the equity method.

EFFECT OF SOPHISTICATED EQUITY METHOD ON
CONSOLIDATION

In some cases, a parent may desire to prepare its own separate statements as a supplement to the
consolidated statements. In this situation, the investment in the subsidiary must be shown on
the parent’s separate statements at the sophisticated equity balance. This requirement may lead
the parent to maintain its subsidiary investment account under the sophisticated equity
method. Two ramifications occur when such an investment is consolidated. First, the current
year’s equity adjustment is net of excess amortizations; second, the investment account
contains only the remaining unamortized excess applicable to the investment.

The use of the sophisticated equity method complicates the elimination of the investment
account in that the worksheet distribution and amortization of the excess procedures are altered.
However, there is no impact on the other consolidation procedures. To illustrate, the informa-
tion given in Worksheet 3-2 will be used as the basis for an example covering 2016. The trial
balance of Company P will show the following changes as a result of using the sophisticated
equity method:

1. The Investment in Company S will be carried at $132,300 ($137,700 simple equity balance
less parent’s share of two years’ amortization of excess at $2,700 per year).

2. The January 1, 2016, balance for Company P Retained Earnings will be $187,300
($190,000 under simple equity less parent’s share of one year’s amortization of excess of
$2,700).

3. The subsidiary loss account of the parent will have a balance of $13,500 ($10,800 share of
the subsidiary loss plus $2,700 amortization of excess).
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Based on these changes, a partial worksheet under the sophisticated equity method follows:

Company P and Subsidiary Company S
Partial Worksheet for Consolidated Financial Statements
For Year Ended December 31, 2016

(Credit balance amounts are in parentheses.) Eliminations
Trial Balance & Adjustments
Company P Company S Dr. Cr.

Investment in Company S 132,300 (CY1) [13,500| (EL) 126,000

(CY2) | 4,500 (D) 24,300
Patent (D) 27,000 (A) 3,000
Retained Earnings, January 1, 2016—Company P | (187,300)
Common Stock ($10 par)—Company S (50,000) (EL) 45,000
Retained Earnings, January 1, 2016—Company S (20,000) (EL) 81,000| (NCI) 2,700
Revenue (100,000) (50,000)
Expenses 80,000 62,000
Patent Amortization (A) 3,000
Subsidiary Loss 13,500 (CY1) 13,500
Dividends Declared 5,000 (CY2) 4,500

Eliminations and Adjustments:

(CY1) Eliminate the current-year entries made in the investment account to record the subsidiary loss. The loss account now
includes the $2,700 excess amortization.

(CY2) Eliminate intercompany dividends.

(EL) Using the balances at the beginning of the year, eliminate 90% of the Company S equity balance against the remaining

investment account.

(D)/(NCI)  Distribute the remaining unamortized excess applicable to the controlling interest on January 1, 2015 ($27,000 on
purchase date less $2,700 amortization), to the patent account. Adjust the NCl for the remaining excess attributable to
its 10% share ($3,000 — $300 amortization for 2015). The total adjustment to the patent account is $27,000 (the
remaining balance at the start of the year).

(A) Amortize the patent for the current year only; prior-year amortization has been recorded in the parent’s investment
account and has been reflected in the NCI adjustment.

The sophisticated equity method essentially is a modification of simple equity procedures.
The major difference in the consolidation procedures under the two methods is that, subse-
quent to the acquisition, the original excess calculated on the determination and distribution of
excess schedule does not appear when the sophisticated equity method is used. Only the remain-
ing unamortized excess appears. Since the investment account is eliminated in the consolidation
process, the added complexities of the sophisticated method are not justified for most compa-
nies and seldom are applied to consolidated subsidiaries.

REFLECTTION

¢ The investment account is already adjusted for amortizations of excess resulting from the
D&D schedule.

* Only the remaining unamortized excess remains in the investment account, and only the
unamortized balance is distributed to appropriate accounts.

e Comparison of worksheet methods (shown on page 132):
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Simple Equity

Sophisticated Equity

Cost

Investment balance

Cost + parent % of sub
(income — dividends)

Cost + parent % of sub (income
— dividends — amortization
of excess)

Cost

Adjustment needed to
eliminate

None

None

Convert fo simple equity as of
start of year (first year not

needed)

Elimination entry

Eliminate beginning-of-year
balance

Eliminate beginning-of-year
balance

Eliminate beginning-of-year
balance

Excess distribution

Original amount from D&D

Remaining unamortized
balance from D&D

Original amount from D&D

Amortizations of excess

Prior years to retained
earnings; current year fo
nominal accounts

Only current year to nominal
accounts

Prior years to retained earnings;
current year to nominal
accounts

5

OBJECTIVE

Distribute and amortize
multiple adjustments
resulting from the
difference between the
price paid for an investment
in a subsidiary and the
subsidiary equity
eliminated.

Worksheet 3-5: page 158

DETERMINATION OF THE METHOD BEING USED

Before you attempt to prepare a consolidated worksheet, you need to know which of the three
methods is being used by the parent to record its investment in the subsidiary. You cannot begin
to eliminate the intercompany investment until that is determined. The most efficient approach
is as follows:

1. Test for the use of the cost method. If the cost method is used:

a. The investment account will be at the original cost shown on the determination and dis-
tribution of excess schedule.

b. The parent will have recorded as its share of subsidiary income its ownership interest times
the dividends declared by the subsidiary. In most cases, this income will be called “sub-
sidiary dividend income,” but some may call it “subsidiary income” or “dividend
income.” Therefore, do not rely on the title of the account.

2. If the method used is not cost, check for the use of simple equity as follows:
a. The investment account will noz be at the original cost.
b. The parent will have recorded as subsidiary income its ownership percentage times the
reported net income of the subsidiary.

3. If the method used is neither cost nor simple equity, it must be the sophisticated equity
method. Confirm that it is by noting that:
a. The investment account will not be at the original cost.
b. The parent will have recorded as subsidiary income its ownership percentage times the
reported net income of the subsidiary minus the amortizations of excess for the current period.

COMPLICATED PURCHASE, SEVERAL
DISTRIBUTIONS OF EXCESS

In Worksheets 3-1 through 3-4, it was assumed that the entire excess of cost over book value
was attributable to a patent. In reality, the excess will seldom apply to a single asset. The follow-
ing example illustrates a more complicated purchase.

Worksheet 3-5 on pages 158 to 159 is an example of the first year of an 80% purchase with
goodwill. The following table shows book and fair values of Carlos Company on the date of
purchase:
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Chapter 3 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: SUBSEQUENT TO ACQUISITION 133
Carlos Company Book and Estimated Fair Values
December 31, 2015
Book Market Book Market
Value Value Life Value Value Life
Assets Liabilities
Inventory .................. $ 75,000 $ 80,000 1 Currentliabilities .. ........... $ 50,000 $ 50,000 1
land. ..., 150,000 200,000 — Bondspayable .............. 200,000 186,760 4
Buildings .................. 600,000 500,000 20 Total liabilities . ............ $250,000 $236,760
Accumulated depreciation .... (300,000) Stockholders’ equity:
Equipment . ... ... oL 150,000 80,000 5 Commonstock............... $100,000
Accumulated depreciation ....  (50,000) Paid-in capital in excess of par .. 150,000
Patent........ ... .. ....... 125,000 150,000 10 Retainedearnings ............ 250,000
Total equity ............... $500,000
Total assets. .. ..o, $ 750,000 $1,010,000 Netassets . ....ooveeennnn... $500,000 $773,240

The parent company, Paulos, paid $720,000 for

an 80% interest in Carlos Company on

January 1, 2015. It is assumed that the fair value of the NCI is proportionate to the price paid
by Paulos for the controlling interest. The following value analysis schedule was prepared:

Company Parent NCI

Implied Fair Price Value
Value Analysis Schedule Value (80%) (20%)
Company implied fair value $ 900,000 $ 720,000 $180,000
Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill 773,240 618,592 154,648

Goodwill

$126,760 $101,408 $ 25,352

Based on the above information, the following D&D schedule is prepared:

Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule

Company Parent NCI
Implied Price Value
Fair Value (80%) (20%)
Fair value of subsidiary . .............. ... ... ... $ 900,000 $720,000 $180,000
Less book value of inferest acquired:
Common stock ($10par). . ............ooi... $ 100,000
Paid-in capital in excessof par ................. 150,000
Retained earnings . ................. ... ...... 250,000
Totalequity. .. ..o $ 500,000 $500,000 $500,000
Interestacquired ......... ... ... 80% 20%
Bookvalue. ... ... ... .. . . . .. $400,000 $100,000
Excess of fair value over book value .. ............. $400,000 $320,000 $ 80,000
(continued)
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Adjustment of identifiable accounts:

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

Amortization per

Adjustment Year Life Worksheet Key
Inventory ($80,000-$75,000).................. $ 5,000 1 debitD1
Land ($200,000-$150,000) .. ............o.... 50,000 debit D2
Buildings ($500,000 - $300,000 net book value). . . . 200,000 $ 10,000 20 debit D3
Equipment ($80,000 — $100,000 net book value). . . . (20,000) (4,000) 5 credit D4
Patent ($150,000-$125,000) .................. 25,000 2,500 10 debit D5
Discount on bonds payable ($200,000 - $186,760) . 13,240 3,310 4 debit D6
Goodwill. . ..... ... 126,760 debit D7
Total ... . ... $400,000
Eliminations for 2015, in journal entry form, are as follows:
Eliminate subsidiary income recorded by the parent company:
(CYT)  Subsidiarylncome. ............ . 48,000
InvestmentinCarlos. . ........ ... 48,000
Eliminate dividends paid by Carlos to Paulos:
(CY2)  InvestmentinCarlos. . .............. ... ... ... 16,000
Dividends Declared by Carlos. .. ..................... 16,000
Eliminate 80% of Carlos equity against investment in Carlos:
(EL) Common Stock—Carlos .. ...... ... ... ... ... 80,000
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Carlos . . ................ 120,000
Retained Earnings, January 1,2015—Carlos ............. 200,000
InvestmentinCarlos. . ......... ... ... . ... . 400,000
Distribute excess of cost over book value:
D7) Cost of Goods Sold (inventory) ......................... 5,000
D2)  Land. ..o 50,000
(D3) Buildings .. ..o 200,000
(D4) Equipment . ... 20,000
(D5) Patent. . ... 25,000
(D¢) DiscountonBondsPayable . ..................... ... ... 13,240
D7) Goodwill . ..o\ 126,760
D) Investment in Carlos (noneliminated excess) . ............ 320,000
(NCJ) Retained Earnings—Carlos (to adjust NCl to fair value) . . . . 80,000
Amortize excess for current year as shown on schedule with
following entry:
(A3) Depreciation Expense—Buildings. . ..................... 10,000
(A3) Accumulated Depreciation—Buildings .. ............... 10,000
(A4) Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment.................. 4,000
(A4) Depreciation Expense—Equipment.................... 4,000
(A3) Other Expenses (patent amortization) . .. ................. 2,500
(A5) Patent. . ... 2,500
(A9) InterestExpense. ... ... 3,310
(A6) Discounton BondsPayable .. ........... ... ... . ... 3,310

Copyright 2016 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).

Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



Chapter 3 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: SUBSEQUENT TO ACQUISITION

A summary of depreciation and amortization adjustments is as follows:

Account Adjustments to Be Annual Current Prior

Amortized Life Amount Year Years Total Key
Inventory .................. 1 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 — $ 5,000 (D1)
Subject to annual amortization:

Buildings .................. 20 $10,000 $10,000 —  $10,000 (A3)
Equipment . ............. ... 5 (4,000) (4,000) — (4,000) (A4)
Patent. ..., 10 2,500 2,500 — 2,500 (A5)
Bonds payable ............. 4 3,310 3,310 — 3,310 (AG)

Total amortizations .. ...... $11,810 $11,810 —  $11,810

Controlling retained earnings
adjustment. .. ...

NCl retained earnings
adjustment. . ...

Note also in Worksheet 3-5 that the subsidiary IDS schedule picks up the entire adjustment
of the cost of goods sold and all current-year amortizations. This means in the end that the NCI
will absorb 20% of all adjustments, and the remaining 80% will go to the controlling interest.
This is automatic because the adjusted subsidiary income is distributed 20%/80%.

Worksheet 3-6 on pages 162 and 163 is based on the same example, but is prepared as of ~ Worksheet 3-6: page 162

December 31, 2016, the end of the second year.
Eliminations in journal entry form are as follows:

Eliminate subsidiary income recorded by the parent company:

(CYT) Subsidiary Income. ... .
InvestmentinCarlos. . .................... ... ... ...

Eliminate dividends paid by Carlos to Paulos:

(CY2) InvestmentinCarlos. . .................................
Dividends Declared by Carlos. .. ................... ...

Eliminate 80% of Carlos equity against investment in Carlos:

(EL) Common Stock—Carlos . ...

Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Carlos . . .................
Retained Earnings, January 1,2016—Carlos ..............

Investmentin Carlos. . ...

Distribute excess of cost over book value:
D1) Retained Earnings, January 1, 2016—Paulos
(80% of $5,000 prior-year inventory amount)

(D1) Retained Earnings, January 1, 2016—Carlos
(20% of $5,000 prior-year inventory amount] .. .. .. ...

(D2) Land. ... o
D3) Buildings . ..o
(D4) Equipment ... ..o
(D5) Patent. . ..o
(D) DiscountonBondsPayable . .............. .. ... ... ...,
D7) Goodwill . ...
(D) Investment in Carlos (noneliminated excess) . .............
(NCI) Retained Earnings—Carlos (to adjust NCl to fair value)
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80,000
80,000
16,000
16,000
80,000
120,000
232,000
432,000
4,000
1,000
50,000
200,000
20,000
25,000
13,240
126,760
320,000
80,000
(continued)
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Amortize excess for current year as shown on schedule with
following entry:

(A3) Depreciation Expense—Buildings. . ................... ... 10,000
(A3) Accumulated Depreciation—Buildings .. ................ 20,000
(A4) Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment. . ................. 8,000
(A4) Depreciation Expense—Equipment............ ... ... ... 4,000
(A5) Other Expenses (patent amortization) . .. .................. 2,500
(A5) Patent. . ... .o 5,000
(A9) Interest Expense. . ... 3,310
(AG) DiscountonBonds Payable .. .............. ... ... ... 6,620
(A3-A6)  Retained Earnings, January 1,2016—Paulos .............. 9,448
(A3-A6)  Retained Earnings, January 1,2016—Carlos .............. 2,362

A summary of depreciation and amortization adjustments is as follows:

Account Adjustments to Be Annual Current Prior
Amortized Llife  Amount Year Years Total Key
Inventory .................. 1 $ 5,000 $ — $ 5,000 $ 5,000 (D1)
Subject to annual amortization:
Buildings . ............ ... 20  $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $20,000 (A3)
Equipment . .......... ... .. 5 (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) (8,000)  (A4)
Patent. ... ... . ... ... 10 2,500 2,500 2,500 5,000 (AS)
Bonds payable ............. 4 3,310 3,310 3,310 6,620 (A6)
Total amortizations ........ $11,810 $11,810 $11,810 $23,620
Controlling retained earnings
adjustment. . ... ..l $ 9,448* (A3-AY)
NCl retained earnings
adjustment. . ... 2,362** (A3-A¥)

*$11,810 x 80% = $9,448
**¥$11,810 x 20% = $2,362

Take note of the following issues in Worksheet 3-6:

¢ The adjustment of the inventory, at the time of the purchase on January 1, 2015, now goes
to parent and NCI retained earnings, since it is a correction of the 2015 cost of goods sold.

¢ The amortizations of excess for prior periods and the inventory adjustment are carried to
controlling (80%) and NCI (20%) retained earnings. Since the NCI shared in the fair value
adjustments as of the purchase date, it must share in current- and prior-year amortizations.

¢ The controlling and NCI retained earnings balances are adjusted for the above amortizations
of excess before they are extended to the Controlling Retained Earnings and NCI columns.

If a worksheet were prepared for December 31, 2017, the prior years’ amortizations of
excess would cover two prior years as follows:

Account Adjustments to Be Annual Current Prior

Amortized Life Amount Year Years Total Key
Inventory .............. 1 $ 5,000 $ — $ 5,000 $ 5,000 (DT1)
Subject to amortization:

Buildings .............. 20 $10,000 $10,000 $20,000 $ 30,000 (A3)
Equipment ............. 5 (4,000) (4,000) (8,000 (12,000) (A4)
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Account Adjustments to Be Annual Current Prior
Amortized Life Amount Year Years Total Key
Patent.............. ... 10 2,500 2,500 5,000 7,500 (A5)
Bonds payable ......... 4 3,310 3,310 6,620 9,930 (AS)
Total amortizations . . .. $11,810 $11,810 $23,620 $ 35,430
Controlling retained
earnings adjustment . . . $18,896* (A3-A6)
NCI RE adjustment. . . . ... 4,724** (A3-A¢)

*$23,620 x 80% = $18,896
**$23,620 x 20% = $4,724

Worksheet 3-6 would be the source document for the formal consolidated statements

included in Exhibit 3-2.

Exhibit 3-2

Consolidated Financial Statements for Paulos Company

Paulos Company

Consolidated Income Statement

Period Ending December 31, 2016

Salesrevenue ........... .
Less costofgoodssold. . ......... ... . ... L.

Gross profit .. ..o

Less operating expenses:
Depreciation expense (building $65,000 + equipment

$36,000) ...

Other operating expenses (with patent amortization

$2,500). . .\ et

Operating iNnComMe . . . ...t
Interestexpense. . ....... ... . i

Consolidated netincome. .. .......... ... ... ... ....

Distributed to noncontrolling inferest . . . ................
Distributed to controlling interest . .. ...................

* Rounded down from $15,313 to tie to worksheet income

Paulos Company

e 125,500

$153,500
15,310*

$138,190

o $700,000
e 320,000

o $380,000

$101,000

226,500

$ 17,638
$120,552

Consolidated Retained Earnings Statement
Period Ending December 31, 2016

Controlling

Retained Noncontrolling

Earnings Interest
Balance, January 1,2016. . ....................... $714,552 $134,638
Netincome . ....... .. .. ... .. 120,552 17,638
Dividends paid . ... (4,000)
Balance, December 31,2016 ..................... $835,104 $148,276

(continued)
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Paulos Company
Consolidated Balance Sheet

December 31, 2016
Assets Liabilities and Equity
Client easas: Current liabilities . . ............. $ 190,000
Cash ..., $ 452,000 Bonds payable
(6%, due December 31,2018 . 200,000
Inventory .................. 330,000 Discount on bonds payable. . . . . .. (6,620)
Total currentassets. . . .......... $ 782,000 Totalliabilities ............... $ 383,380
Long-term assets:
land. ..o $ 400,000
Buildings . ................. 1,600,000
Accumulated depreciation. . . . . (470,000) Stockholders’ equity:
Equipment . ......... ... 530,000 Commonstock. . ............... $1,500,000
Retained earnings . .. ........... 835,104
Accumulated depreciation. . . . . (172,000) Controlling interest. ... ........ $2,335,104
Patent (net) . . ............... 120,000 Noncontrolling interest .. ... ... 198,276
Goodwill .................. 126,760
Total long-term assets . . . . . .. 2,134,760 Total equity. .. ............. $2,533,380
Totalassets . ................. $2,916,760 Total liabilities and equity . ... . ... $2,916,760

6

OBJECTIVE

Demonstrate the worksheet
procedures used for
investments purchased
during the financial
reporting period.

REFLECTTION

* There may be many asset (and possibly liability) adjustments resulting from the D&D
schedule. Each adjustment is distributed as a part of the elimination procedure.

¢ Most distribution adjustments will require amortization, each over the appropriate life.
The amortizations should be keyed to the distribution entry.

INTRAPERIOD PURCHASE UNDER THE SIMPLE
EQUITY METHOD

The accountant will be required to apply special procedures when consolidating a controlling
investment in common stock that is acquired during the fiscal year. The D&D schedule must
be based on the subsidiary stockholders’ equity on the interim purchase date, including the sub-
sidiary retained earnings balance on that date. Also, the consolidated income of the consoli-
dated company, as derived on the worksheet, is to include only subsidiary income earned
subsequent to the acquisition date.

Assume that Company S has the following trial balance on July 1, 2015, the date of an 80%
acquisition by Company P:

Current ASSets . .. .ot 68,000
Equipment . ..o 80,000
Accumulated Depreciation .. ....... ... . 30,000
Liabilities . .. ..o 10,000
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Common Stock ($10par) ... .o 50,000
Retained Earnings, January 1,2015. . ... ... ..o i 45,000
Dividends Declared . . ... ... . . 5,000
Sales . oo 90,000
Costof Goods Sold . . ... . 60,000
EXPENSes . ..o 12,000

Total. 225,000 225,000

If Company P requires Company S to close its nominal accounts as of July 1, Company S

would increase its retained earnings account by $13,000 with the following entries:
Sales ..o 90,000

Expenses .. ...
Retained Earnings . ... ..ot

Retained Earnings . ... ... 5,000
Dividends Declared . .. ... ... .

60,000
12,000
18,000

5,000

Assume Company P pays $106,400 for its 80% interest in Company S. Assume also that all
assets have fair values equal to book value and that any excess is attributed to goodwill. It is
assumed that the value of the NCI is proportional to the price paid by the parent for the con-

trolling interest. The value analysis would be as follows:

139

Company Parent NCI
Implied Fair Price Value
Value Analysis Schedule Value (80%) (20%)
Company fairvalue. . ... $133,000 $106,400 $26,600
Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill . ............. 108,000* 86,400 21,600
Goodwill. ........ ... .. $ 25,000 $ 20,000 $ 5,000
*Common stock $50,000 + retained earnings ($45,000 + $18,000 — $5,000) = $108,000
Based on the above information, the following D&D schedule is prepared:
Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule
Company Parent NCI
Implied Fair Price Value
Value (80%) (20%)
Fair value of subsidiary .. ....... .. ... . L $133,000 $106,400 $ 26,600
Less book value of inferest acquired:
Common stock ($10par). ... $ 50,000
Retainedearnings .. ... 58,000
Total equity. . ..o $108,000 $108,000 $108,000
Interestacquired .. ... .. 80% 20%
Bookvalue. ... ..o $ 86,400 $ 21,600
Excess of fair value over bookvalue .. .............. ... $25,000 $ 20,000 $ 5,000
Adjustment of identifiable accounts:
Adjustment Worksheet Key
Goodwill $ 25,000 debitD1
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Worksheet 3-7: page 166

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

Proceeding to the end of the year, assume that the operations of Company S for the last six
months result in a net income of $20,000 and dividends of $5,000 are declared by Company S on
December 31. Worksheet 3-7, pages 166 to 167, includes Company S nominal accounts for only the
second 6-month period since the nominal accounts were closed on July 1. Company S Retained
Earnings shows the July 1, 2015, balance. The trial balance of Company P includes operations for
the entdre year. The subsidiary income listed by Company P includes 80% of the subsidiary’s
$20,000 second six months’ income. Company P’s investment account balance shows the following:

Original cost . . . ..o $106,400
80% of subsidiary’s second six months’ income of $20,000 .................. 16,000
80% of $5,000 dividends declared by subsidiary on December 31 ............ (4,000)

Investment balance, December 31,2015, ... ... ... ... . .. . ... $118,400

In conformance with acquisition theory, the Consolidated Income Statement column of
Worksheet 3-7 includes only subsidiary income earned after the acquisition date. Likewise, only
subsidiary income earned after the purchase date is distributed to the NCI and controlling
interest. Income earned and dividends declared prior to the purchase date by Company S are
reflected in its July 1, 2015, retained earnings balance, of which the NCI is granted its share.
The notes to the statements would have to disclose what the income of the consolidated com-
pany would have been had the purchase occurred at the start of the year.

INTRAPERIOD PURCHASE UNDER THE
COST METHOD

There are only two variations of the procedures discussed in the preceding section if the cost
method is used by the parent company to record its investment in the subsidiary:

1. During the year of acquisition, the parent would record as income only its share of dividends
declared by the subsidiary. Thus, eliminating entries would be confined to the intercompany

dividends.

2. For years after the purchase, the cost-to-equity conversion adjustment would be based on
the change in the subsidiary retained earnings balance from the intraperiod purchase date to
the beginning of the year for which the worksheet is being prepared.

DISCLOSURE FOR AN INTRAPERIOD PURCHASE

A company’s consolidated income statement can only include subsidiary account amounts start-
ing on the acquisition date. Page 28 of Chapter 1 included Note 2 from Kellogg’s 2013 annual
report. Kellogg’s 2013 income statement included the results of Pringles only for the period
after May 31, 2012 (the date Pringles was acquired). It is, however, required that the footnotes
to the financial statements show what income would have been had the subsidiary (acquired
during the year) been consolidated for the entire reporting period. Refer back to Note 2 from
Kellogg’s 2013 annual report. The second financial display is the pro forma disclosure that
shows what income would have been had Pringles been consolidated for all of 2012. In a like
manner, since the 2011 income statement is included in the 2013 annual report, there must be
pro forma disclosure of what income would have been had Pringles been consolidated for all of
the 2011 fiscal year. In summary:

¢ When a subsidiary is purchased during the year, the current year must include disclosure of
what income would have been for the year if the subsidiary had been consolidated for the
entire period.

¢ For each period for which prior income statements are included in the annual report, there
must be disclosure of what consolidated income would have been had the subsidiary been
consolidated in those prior periods.
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REFLECTTION

e Purchases during the year require the D&D schedule to be based on the subsidiary equity
on the “during the year" purchase date.

¢ The parent’s share of subsidiary income that was earned prior to the purchase date was
earned by stockholders that are not members of the consolidated company. The accounts
of the acquired company are included in the consolidated income statement starting on
the date of the acquisition.

¢ Disclosure is required as to what income would have been had the acquisition occurred
on the first day of the earliest year included in the comparative income statements.

SUMMARY: WORKSHEET TECHNIQUE

At this point, it is wise to review the overall mechanical procedures used to prepare a consoli-
dated worksheet. It will help you to have this set of procedures at your side for the first few
worksheets you do. Later, the process will become automatic. The following procedures are
designed to provide for both efficiency and correctness:

1. When recopying the trial balances, always sum them and make sure they balance before pro-
ceeding with the eliminations. At this point, you want to be sure that there are no errors in
transporting figures to the worksheet. An amazing number of students’ consolidated balance
sheets are out of balance because their trial balances did not balance from the start.

2. Carefully key all eliminations to aid future reference. You may want to insert a symbol, a lit-
tle “p” for parent or a little “s” for subsidiary, to identify each worksheet adjustment entry
that affects consolidated net income. Such an identification will make it easier to locate the
adjustments that must be posted later to the income distribution schedules. Recall that any
adjustment to income must be assigned to one of the company’s income distribution sche-
dules. (In this chapter, all adjustments are to the subsidiary IDS schedule.) This second step
will become particularly important in the next two chapters where there will be many adjust-
ments to income that will go to either the controlling or the NCI IDS schedule.

3. Sum the eliminations to be sure that they balance before you begin to extend the account totals.

4. Now that the eliminations are completed, cross foot account totals and then extend them to
the appropriate worksheet column. Extend each account in the order that it appears on the
trial balance. Do not select just the accounts needed for a particular statement. For example,
do not work only on the income statement. This can lead to errors. There may be some
accounts that you will forget to extend, and you may not be aware of the errors until your
Consolidated Balance Sheet column total fails to equal zero. Extending each account in
order assures that none will be overlooked and allows careful consideration of the appropri-
ate destination of each account balance.

5. Calculate consolidated net income.

6. Prepare income distribution schedules. Verify that the sum of the distributions equals the con-
solidated net income on the worksheet. Distribute the NCI in income to the NCI column and
distribute the controlling interest in income to the Controlling Retained Earnings column.

7. Sum the NCI column and extend that total to the Consolidated Balance Sheet column. Sum
the Controlling Retained Earnings column and extend that total to the Consolidated
Balance Sheet column as well.

8. Verify that the Consolidated Balance Sheet column total equals zero (or that the totals are
equal if two columns are used).
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OBJECTIVE

Demonstrate an
understanding of when
goodwill impairment loss
exists and how it is
calculated.

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

When circumstances indicate that the goodwill may have become impaired (see Chapter 1), the
remaining goodwill will be estimated. If the resulting estimate is less than the book value of the
goodwill, a goodwill impairment loss is recorded. The impairment loss is reported in the consoli-
dated income statement for the period in which it occurs. It is presented on a before-tax basis as
part of continuing operations and may appear under the caption “other gains and losses.”

The parent company could handle the impairment loss in using one of two methods:

1. The parent could record its share of the impairment loss on its books and credit the investment
in subsidiary account. This would automatically reduce the excess available for distribution,
including the amount available for goodwill. This would mean that the impairment loss on
the controlling interest would already exist before consolidation procedures start. The NCI
share of the loss would be recorded on the worksheet. The summed loss would automatically
be extended to the Consolidated Income Statement column. Since the parent already recorded
its share of the loss, the NCI share would be a bottom line deduction from the NCI share of
consolidated income on the subsidiary IDS schedule.

2. The impairment loss could be recorded only on the consolidated worksheet. This would
adjust consolidated net income and produce a correct balance sheet. The only complication
affects consolidated worksheets in periods subsequent to the impairment. The investment
account, resulting goodwill, and the controlling retained earnings would be overstated.
Thus, on the worksheet, an adjustment reducing the goodwill account, the controlling
retained earnings, and the NCI would be needed.

Recall from Chapter 1, that small and medium-sized entities (SMEs) may elect to use IASB
accounting standards for SMEs. Under these standards, goodwill is amortized rather than being
subject to impairment procedures. Unless the company can defend a different life, the pre-
sumed life is 10 years.

The procedure used in this text will be to follow the first method (shown above) and directly
adjust the investment account on the parent’s books. This approach would mean the price used
in the D&D schedule would be reduced by the amount of the impairment.

The impairment test is based on adjusted subsidiary balance sheet amounts. The impairment
procedures are based on the subsidiary values as adjusted for distributions of excess. The impairment
test must use the sophisticated equity investment balance (simple equity balance less amortizations
of excess to date). For example, suppose Company P purchased an 80% interest in Company S in
2016 and the price resulted in total subsidiary goodwill of $165,000. On a future balance sheet date,
say December 31, 2018, the following information would apply to Company S:

Subsidiary book value based on acquisition date, amortized balances on

December 31, 2018 . .. oot $1,000,000
Estimated fair value of Company S .. ... ... . 900,000
Estimated fair value of netidentifiable assets. . . .......... . ... ... ... ... ... 850,000

Determining if goodwill has been impaired would be calculated as shown here.

Subsidiary (adjusted for acquisition values) book value on December 31,2018. . . .. $1,000,000
Estimated fair value of subsidiary . ......... ... 900,000

Because the investment amount exceeds the fair value, goodwill is impaired, and a loss must
be calculated.

The impairment loss would be calculated as follows:

Estimated fair value of Company S .. ... ... . L $ 900,000
Estimated fair value of net identifiable assets. . .. ... .. 850,000
Estimated goodwill ... ... . . $ 50,000
Existing goodwill . . . ..o 165,000
Goodwill impairmentloss . .. ... $(115,000)
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Chapter 3 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: SUBSEQUENT TO ACQUISITION

The impairment entry on Company P’s books would be as follows:

Goodwill Impairment Loss (80% x $115,000). . .............ccouv.... 92,000
Investmentin Company S. .. ... 92,000

The remaining $23,000 impairment loss applicable to the NCI would be entered on the conso-
lidated worksheet. The above example assumes that original goodwill was allocated 80%/20% on
the acquisition date based on the assumption that the value of the NCI was proportionate to the
price paid for the controlling interest. If that were not the case and the NCI share was less than 20%
of the total goodwill, the allocation percentage used in the above example would be adjusted.

IASB PERSPECTIVES

e Recall that including goodwill on the noncontrolling interest is optional under IFRS. If no
goodwill was recorded applicable to the noncontrolling interest, then impairment
testing and adjustment would only apply to the controlling interest share of goodwill.

REFLECTTION

¢ When the fair value of a subsidiary is less than its consolidated balance sheet equity, any
goodwill arising from the acquisition is impaired, and a related loss must be recognized.

APPENDIX A: THE VERTICAL WORKSHEET

This chapter has used the horizontal format for its worksheet examples. Columns for elimina-
tions and adjustments, consolidated income, NCI, controlling retained earnings, and the bal-
ance sheet are arranged horizontally in adjacent columns. This format makes it convenient to
extend account balances from one column to the next. This is the format that you used for trial
balance working papers in introductory and intermediate accounting. It is also the most com-
mon worksheet format used in practice. The horizontal format will be used in all nonappendix
worksheets in subsequent chapters and in all worksheet problems unless otherwise stated.

The alternative format is the vertical format. Rather than beginning the worksheet with the trial
balances of the parent and the subsidiary, this format begins with the completed income statements,
statements of retained earnings, and the balance sheets of the parent and subsidiary. This method,
which is seldom used in practice and harder to master, commonly has been used on the CPA Exam.

The vertical format is used in Worksheet 3-8 on pages 168 and 169. This worksheet is based
on the same facts used for Worksheet 3-6 (an equity method example for the second year of a
purchase with a complicated distribution of excess cost). Worksheet 3-8 is based on the determi-
nation and distribution of excess schedule shown on page 133.

Note that the original separate statements are stacked vertically upon each other. Be sure to
follow the carrydown procedure as it is applied to the separate statements. The net income from
the income statement is carried down to the retained earnings statement. Then, the ending
retained earnings balance is carried down to the balance sheet. Later, this same carrydown pro-
cedure is applied to the consolidated statements.

Understand that there are no differences in the elimination and adjustment procedures as a
result of this alternative format. Compare the elimination entries to those in Worksheet 3-6.
Even though there is no change in the eliminations, there are two areas of caution. First, the
order in which the accounts appear is reversed; that is, nominal accounts precede balance sheet
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OBJECTIVE

Consolidate a subsidiary
using vertical worksheet
format.

Worksheet 3-8: page 168
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OBJECTIVE

Explain the impact of tax-
related complications arising
on the purchase date.

Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

accounts. This difference in order will require care in making eliminations. Second, the elimina-
tions to retained earnings must be made against the January 1 beginning balances, not the
December 31 ending balances. The ending retained earnings balances are never adjusted but are
derived after all eliminations have been made.

The complicated aspect of the vertical worksheet is the carrydown procedure used to create
the retained earnings statement and the balance sheet. Arrows are used in Worksheet 3-8 to
emphasize the carrydown procedure. Note that the net income line in the retained earnings
statement and the retained earnings lines on the balance sheet are never available to receive elim-
inations. These balances are always carried down. The net income balances are derived from the
same income distribution schedules used in Worksheet 3-6.

REFLECTTION

¢ On vertical worksheets for consolidations subsequent to acquisition, the income
statement accounts appear at the top, followed by the retained earnings statement
accounts, and then the balance sheet accounts appear in the bottom section.

* Netincome is carried down to the retained earnings section.

e Ending retained earnings is then carried down to the balance sheet section.

APPENDIX B: TAX-RELATED ADJUSTMENTS

Recall from Chapter 1 that a deferred tax liability results when the fair value of an asset may not be
used in future depreciation calculations for tax purposes. (This occurs when the acquisition is a zax-
free exchange to the seller.) In this situation, future depreciation charges for tax purposes must be
based on the book value of the asset, and a liability should be acknowledged in the determination
and distribution of excess schedule by creating a deferred tax liability account. Consider the follow-
ing determination and distribution of excess schedule for a subsidiary that has a building with a
book value for tax purposes of $120,000 and a fair value of $200,000. Assuming a tax rate of 30%,
there is a deferred tax liability of $24,000 ($80,000 excess of fair value over tax basis x 30%).

As is true in all determination and distribution of excess schedules, any remaining unallo-
cated value becomes goodwill. In the following example, the remaining unallocated value on
the determination and distribution of excess schedule is $44,000.

Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule

Company Implied Parent
Fair Value Price (100%) NClI Value

Fairvalue of subsidiary . .......... ... ... .. .. ... $ 600,000 $600,000 N/A
Less book value of interest acquired:

Common stock ($10par). ... $ 100,000

Retainedearnings .. ................ ... .. 400,000

Total equity. . . oo $ 500,000 $500,000

Inferestacquired ......... . ... ... 100%
Bookvalue. ... ..o $500,000
Excess of fair value over book value ................... $100,000 $100,000
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Chapter 3 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: SUBSEQUENT TO ACQUISITION

Adjustment of identifiable accounts:

Amortization
Adjustment per Year Life Worksheet Key
Building ($200,000 — $120,000).................... $ 80,000 $4,000 20 debit D1
Deferred tax liability (building), 30% x $80,000......... (24,000) (1,200) 20 credit D2
Goodwill (balance) . .................. ... ... ... 44,000 debit D3
Total ... ... $100,000

The worksheet entry to distribute the excess of cost over book value would be as follows:

Building (to fairvalue) . ......... ... 80,000
Goodwill (balance of excess) ................. ... ... 44,000
Deferred Tax Liability. ... ... 24,000
Investment in Subsidiary S (excess cost after elimination of subsidiary
BQUITY) . v et 100,000

Worksheet eliminations will be simpler if each deferred tax liability is recorded below the
asset to which it relates. It is possible that inventory could have a fair value in excess of its book
value used for tax purposes. This, too, would require the recognition of a deferred tax liability.

A second tax complication arises when the subsidiary has tax loss carryovers. To the extent
that the tax loss carryovers are not recorded or are reduced by a valuation allowance by the sub-
sidiary on its balance sheet, the carryovers may be an asset to be considered in the determination
and distribution of excess schedule. When a tax-free exchange occurs during the accounting per-
iod, a portion of the tax loss carryover may be used during that period." The amount that may
be used is the acquiring company’s tax liability for the year times the percentage of the year that
the companies were under common control. If, for example, the acquiring company’s tax liabi-
lity was $100,000 and the acquisition occurred on April 1, 3/4 of $100,000, or $75,000, of the
tax loss carryover could be utilized. The current portion of the tax loss carryover is recorded as
Current Deférred Tax Asset. Any remaining carryover is carried forward and recorded as a non-
current asset using the account, Noncurrent Deferred Tax Asset. If it is probable that the deferred
tax expense will not be fully realized, a contra-valuation allowance is provided.

Let us consider the example of a subsidiary that has the following tax loss carryovers on the
date of purchase:

Tax loss carryover to be used in currentperiod . ... ... o $100,000
Tax loss carryover to be used in future periods .. ............ .. .. ... L 200,000

Assume that the parent has anticipated future tax liabilities against which the tax loss carry-
overs may be offset and has a 30% tax rate. The value analysis would be prepared as follows:

Company Parent NCI

Implied Fair Price Value
Value Analysis Schedule Value (80%) (20%)
Company fairvalue. ................ ... ... ... $1,118,750 $895,000 $223,750
Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill .. ........ 987,500 790,000 197,500
Goodwill. ....... ... . . ... $ 131,250 $105,000 $ 26,250

1 Section 381(c) (1) (B) of the Federal Tax Code.
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146 Part 1  CoMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

Based on the information shown on page 145, the following D&D schedule is prepared:

Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule

Company Parent NCI
Implied Fair Price Value
Value (80%) (20%)
Fair value of subsidiary ................ .. ... ... $1,118,750 $895,000 $223,750
Less book value of interest acquired:
Common stock ($10par)...................... $ 300,000
Retainedearnings .. ............. .. 597,500
Total €qQUity. . ..o oo $ 897,500 $897,500  $897,500
Interestacquired .. ... 80% 20%
Bookvalue. ... ... .. . . . . $718,000 $179,500
Excess of fair value over book valve . ............ .. $ 221,250 $177,000 $ 44,250
Adjustment of identifiable accounts:
Amortization
Adjustment per Year Life Worksheet Key
Current deferred tax asset ($100,000 x 30%). ... ... $ 30,000 1 debit D1
Noncurrent deferred tax asset ($200,000 x 30%). . . . 60,000 debit D2
Goodwill ($1,118,750 fair— $987,500 book
value) . .. 131,250 debit D3
Total ... ... $221,250

Comprehensive Example.. Both of the preceding tax issues will complicate the consolidated
worksheet. Our example will consider the distribution of the tax adjustments on the worksheet
and the resulting amortization adjustments needed to calculate consolidated net income. We
will consider a nontaxable exchange with fixed asset and goodwill adjustments in addition to a

tax loss carryover.

Assume that Paro Company acquired an 80% interest in Sunstran Corporation on January 1,
2015. Paro expects to utilize $100,000 of tax loss carryovers in the current period and $250,000
in future periods.” A building, which has a 20-year remaining life, is understated by $200,000.

The following value analysis was prepared:

Company Parent NCI

Implied Fair Price Value
Value Analysis Schedule Value (80%) (20%)
Company fairvalue. . ........................ $1,237,500 $990,000 $247,500
Fair value of net assets excluding goodwill . . ... ... 1,045,000 836,000 209,000
Goodwill. .......... .. ...l $ 192,500 $154,000 $ 38,500

2 Considers tax limitations and assumes full realizability of tax loss carryovers.
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Based on the information shown on page 146, the following D&D schedule is prepared:

Determination and Distribution of Excess Schedule

Company Parent NCI
Implied Fair Price Valuve
Valve (80%) (20%)

Fair value of subsidiary . ........... ... . ... ... $1,237,500 $ 990,000 $247,500
Less book value of inferest acquired:

Common stock ($10par). ..., $ 100,000

Paid-in capital in excessof par ................. 300,000

Retainedearnings . ..., 400,000

Totalequity. . . ..o $ 800,000 $ 800,000 $800,000

Interestacquired .. ... 80% 20%
Bookvalue. . ... $ 640,000 $160,000
Excess of fair value over book value .. ............. $ 437,500 $ 350,000 $ 87,500
Adjustment of identifiable accounts:

Amortization Worksheet
Adjustment per Year Life Key

Current deferred tax asset ($100,000 x 30%taxrate) $ 30,000 1 debit D1
Noncurrent deferred tax asset ($250,000 x 30%). . . . 75,000 debit D2
Building .. ... 200,000 $ 10,000 20 debit D3
Deferred tax liability ($200,000 x 30% tax rate). . . . . (60,000) (3,000) 20 credit D3t
Goodwill. ...... ... . ... .. 192,500 debit D4
Total ....... ... $ 437,500

Worksheet 3-9, pages 170 to 171, is the consolidated worksheet for Paro Company and it sub- Worksheet 3-9: page 170

sidiary, Sunstran Corporation, at the end of 2015. Unlike previous worksheets, the nominal accounts
of both firms include a 30% provision for tax on internally generated net income. (Paro does not
include a tax on subsidiary income recorded.). The calculation of the tax liabilities for affiliated firms
is discussed further in Chapter 6. Paro’s internally generated income before tax is $800,000. The
30% tax provision would be $240,000. Only $210,000 is currently payable. The parent company is
aware of the $30,000 reduction of the tax liability made possible by the current portion of the DTA
included in the IDS schedule. On its separate statements, the parent company records the $30,000
as a temporary deferred tax liability (DTL). The parents tax entry was:

Provision for Tax ($800,000 x 30%) .. .............ccoivii ... 240,000
Current Tax Liability. . .. ... 210,000
Deferred Tax Liability. ... ... 30,000

The procedures to eliminate the investment account are the same as for previous examples
using the equity method. In journal entry form, the eliminations are as follows:

(CY1) Eliminate subsidiary income recorded by parent company:

Subsidiary Income. ... ... 84,000
InvestmentinSunstran . ... .. ... 84,000
(CY2) Eliminate dividends paid by Sunstran to Paro:
InvestmentinSunstran .. .. .. ... . 16,000
Dividends Declared (by Sunstran) . ................. ... .. ... 16,000
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(EL)  Eliminate 80% of Sunstran equity against Investment in Sunstran:

Common Stock—Sunstran. . ... ... 80,000
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par—Sunstran ..................... 240,000
Retained Earnings—Sunstran . ............. ... . ... 320,000
InvestmentinSunstran .. ... .. .. 640,000
Distribute excess of cost over book value and adjustment to NCl:
(D1) Deferred Tax Liability (consumption of current DTA) . ............. 30,000
(D2) Noncurrent Deferred Tax Asset .. ..., 75,000
(D3) BUING . -+ v oo e 200,000
(D3t) Deferred Tax Liability (applicable to building). ... ......... ... 60,000
(D4) Goodwill . ... 192,500
(D) Investment in Sunstran (noneliminated excess) . ............... 350,000
(NCI)  Retained Earnings—Sunstran ............................. 87,500
Amortize excess for current year as shown on the following schedule:
(A3) Expenses (for depreciation). . ............. ... ., 10,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Building . . .. ................... 10,000
(A3t) Deferred Tax Liability. ... ... 3,000
Provisionfor Tax . ......... oo 3,000

Amortizations of excess are made for the current year using the following schedule:

Account Adjustments to Be Amount Current Prior

Amortized Life Annual Year Years Total Key
Building 20 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 (A3)
Deferred tax liability (building) 20 (3,000) (3,000) (3,000) (A3t)
Total (excluding inventory) $ 7,000 $ 7,000 $ 7,000

Notice that entry (D1) distributes $30,000 to the parent’s deferred tax liability account and
eliminates the temporary tax liability recorded by the parent. Entry (D2) records the noncurrent
portion of the tax loss carryforward as a deferred tax asset. Entry (D3) increases the building by
$200,000, and entry (D3t) records the deferred tax liability applicable to the building adjust-
ment. Entry (D4) records goodwill of $192,500.

As a result of the increase in the value of the building, entry (A3) increases the depreciation
for the building by $10,000. Given the 30% tax rate, entry (A3t) reduces the provision for tax
account by $3,000 as a result of the depreciation adjustment. This entry is not a reduction in the
current taxes payable. Instead, it is a reduction in the deferred tax liability recorded as part of the
distribution of excess [entry (D3)]. Remember that the deferred tax liability reflects the loss of
future tax deductions caused by the difference between the building’s higher fair value and its
lower book value on the date of the purchase. Thus, the net result of the entry is to record the
tax provision as if the deductions were allowable (for tax purposes) without changing the tax
payable for the current period. There is no amortization of the noncurrent deferred tax asset
since it is not used in the current period. All amortizations of excess and all tax adjustments
are carried to the subsidiary’s income distribution schedule. This is again the case since both
interests share in the allocation of the excess and, thus, share in its amortization.
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REFLECTTION

¢ One of the assets that may be included in the purchase is a tax loss carryover. It should be
separated into its current and noncurrent components.

¢ When assets are part of a tax-free exchange, they must be accompanied by a deferred tax
liability equal to the value of the forfeited tax deduction.
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Simple Equity Method

Company P and Subsidiary Company S
Worksheet for Consolidated Financial Statements
For Year Ended December 31, 2015

(Credit balance amounts are in parentheses.) Trial Balance
Company P Company S

1 Investment in Company S 148,500

2

3

4 Patent

5 Other Assets (net of liabilities) 237,000 135,000
6 Common Stock ($10 par)—Company P (200,000)

7 Retained Earnings, January 1, 2015—Company P (123,000)

8 Common Stock ($10 par)—Company S (50,000)
9 Retained Earnings, January 1, 2015—Company S (70,000)
10 || Revenue (100,000) (75,000)
11 Expenses 60,000 50,000
12 Patent Amortization Expense

13 || Subsidiary Income (22,500)

14 || Dividends Declared 10,000
15 0 0
16 || Consolidated Net Income

17 To NCI (see distribution schedule)

18 Balance to Controlling Interest (see distribution schedule)

19 || Total NCI
20 Retained Earnings, Controlling Interest, December 31, 2015
21

Eliminations and Adjustments:

(CY1) Eliminate subsidiary income against the investment account.

(CY2) Eliminate dividends paid by su%sidicry to parent. After (CY1) and (CY2), the investment account and subsidiary retained
earnings are at a common point in time. Then, elimination of the investment account can proceed.

(EL) Eliminate the pro rata share of Company S equity balances at the beginning of the year against the investment account.
T}Eehehminaﬁon of the parent’s share of subsigiary stockholders’ equity leaves only the noncontrolling interest in each element
of the equity.

(D)/(NCI) Distribu?e 'rtg,e $27,000 excess cost and $3,000 NCI adjustment as required by the D&D schedule on page 119.

In this example, Patent is recorded for $30,000.
(A) Amortize the resulting patents over the 10-year period. The current portion is $3,000 per year ($30,000/10 years).
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Chapter 3 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS: SUBSEQUENT TO ACQUISITION 151

Worksheet 3-1 (see page 121)

Eliminations & Adjustments Consolidated Controlling Consolidated
Income Retained Balance
Dr. Cr. Statement NCI Earnings Sheet
(cY2) 9,000 | (CY1) 22,500 1
(EL) 108,000 2
(D) 27,000 3
(D) 30,000 | (A) 3,000 27,000 4
372,000 5
(200,000) 6
(123,000) 7
(EL) 45,000 (5,000) 8
(EL) 63,000 | (NCI) 3,000 (10,000) 9
(175,000) 10
110,000 11
(A) 3,000 3,000 12
(cY1) 22,500 13
(Y2 9,000 1,000 14
172,500 172,500 15
(62,000) 16
2,200 (2,200) 17
59,800 (59,800) 18
(16,200) (16,200) 19
(182,800) (182,800) 20
0 21
Subsidiary Company S Income Distribution
Patent amortization . ... ........ (A) $3,000 Internally generated netincome .. . . .. $25,000
Adjusted netincome ............... $22,000
NClshare ........... ... .. X 10%
NCE ..o $ 2,200
Parent Company P Income Distribution
Internally generated netincome . ... ... $40,000
90% x Company S adjusted income of
$22,000. ...l 19,800
Controlling interest ................. $59,800
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152 Part I COMBINED CORPORATE ENTITIES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

Simple Equity Method, Second Year

Company P and Subsidiary Company S
Worksheet for Consolidated Financial Statements
For Year Ended December 31, 2016

(Credit balance amounts are in parentheses.) Trial Balance
Company P Company S
1 Investment in Company S 133,200
2
3 || Patent
4 || Other Assets (net of liabilities) 261,500 118,000
5 || Common Stock ($10 par)—Company P (200,000)
6 || Retained Earnings, January 1,2016—Company P (185,500)
7 || Common Stock ($10 par)—Company S (50,000)
8 || Retained Earnings, January 1, 2016—Company S (85,000)
9
10 || Revenue (100,000) (50,000)
11 Expenses 80,000 62,000
12 Patent Amortization
13 || Subsidiary Loss 10,800
14 || Dividends Declared 5,000
15 0 0
16 || Consolidated Net Income
17 To NCI (see distribution schedule)
18 Balance to Controlling Interest (see distribution schedule)
19 || Total NCI
20 || Retained Earnings, Controlling Interest, December 31, 2016
21

Eliminations and Adjustments:

(CY1) Eliminate controlling share of subsidiary loss.

(CY2) Eliminate dividends paid by subsidiary to parent. The investment account is now returned to its January 1, 2016 balance so that
elimination may proceed.
(EL) Using balances at the beginning of the year, eliminate 90% of the Company S equity balances against the remaining

investment account.

(D)/(NCI) Distribute the $30,000 excess cost as indicated by the D&D schedule that was prepared on the date of acq